Page 1 of 160

SOOKE 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
SCHOOLS sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800

SIS Shaping Tomorrow Today

Public Notice — Board of Education Online Public Meeting

A public meeting of the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) will be held on April 30, 2024, at 7:00
pm.

Please note that all Public Board and Committee meetings are now held in person at the District School Board
Office, located at 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria.

Furthermore, the meeting will be livestreamed via MS teams, to encourage more public participation.
To join the in meeting please click here: Public Board Meeting | Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca)
and click Follow Link.

To guide you, the following is information on how to join a live event in MS Team:s.
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-alc7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84
e Anyone who has the link can attend the online meeting without logging in to MS Teams.
e Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items discussed at the

meeting:

0 Selectthe Q&A @function on the right side of the screen.
0 When asking a question using the Q&A function, please identify yourself. Anonymous
questions will not be responded to.
= Areminder for Stakeholder groups to use the Q&A function.
0 Members of the media can direct their questions to the Communications Manager at School
District 62 for response following the meeting.

How to ManmageYour QA Cive Everns T Microsoft Team s T Tatortal

Micvossfy feams

We evewts

If you have questions regarding the meeting and how to access it that aren’t answered in the link above please

email info@sd62.bc.ca. See link for upcoming and previous Board and Committee meetings Public Meetings
Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) materials.



https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings/public-board-meeting-26
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84
mailto:info@sd62.bc.ca
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings

= Page 2 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

BOARD OF EDUCATION
PUBLIC MEETING
By Live Event
April 30,2024 - 7:00 p.m.

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically
Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation, and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with
directly in our schools: Sc’ianew Nation, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast
Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three nations SD62 works with)

2. AGENDA (page 2)
2.1 Call foramendments and additional items
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)
adopt the public meeting agenda of April 30, 2024, as presented (or as
amended).

2.2 Report on In Camera Meeting - Amanda Dowhy
This notice is to inform the public that prior to this meeting an “in-camera” meeting of
the Board was held where issues of legal, land and personnel were discussed.

3. MINUTES (page 6)
3.1 Call for amendments to minutes
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)
adopt the public meeting minutes of the March 12, 2024, as presented (or as
amended).

4. INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS
4.1 Board Chair Update - Amanda Dowhy

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS (page 12)
5.1 School Trip to Baltimore, MA, October 31-November 4, 2024 - Lucas MacNeil

5.2 School Trip to Portland, OR, November 15-November 17, 2024 - Lucas MacNeil




e Page 3 of 160
SOOKEA4A 7 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

53 School Trip to Seattle, WA, December 6-December 8,2024 - Lucas MacNeil

5.4 School Trip to Huntington Beach CA, January 24-January 29, 2025 - Lucas MacNeil
5.5 School Trip to Portland OR, March 14-March 16, 2025 - Lucas MacNeil

5.6 School Trip to Sisters, OR, May 2-May 5, 2025 - Lucas MacNeil

5.7 School Trip to Denver, CO, June 12-June 16,2025 - Lucas MacNeil

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve
the Royal Bay Secondary School Lacrosse trips outlined in 5.1 to 5.7, subject to the
oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s Office.

5.8 School Trip to Tokyo, Japan, Spring 2025 - John McIntosh
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve

the Royal Bay Secondary School Trip to Tokyo, Japan Spring 2025, subject to the
oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s Office.

5.9 Student Trip to Thailand, March 17-March 25, 2025 - Yvonne Clarke

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve
the Spencer Middle School Trip to Thailand, March 17-March 30, 2025, subject to the
oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s office.

5.10  Student Trip to Spain March 2025 - Tiffany Evans

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve
the Belmont Secondary School Trip to Spain, Spring 2025, subject to the oversight and
direction of the Superintendent’s Office.

6. CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS
6.1 Correspondence (page 83)
a. Email from Justine C, dated April 1, 2024, RE: Build Seamless Before & After School
Childcare

6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) - 5 minutes each




= Page 4 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

1. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES
7.1 Resources Committee - Meeting of April 16,2024 - Christine Lervold (page 84)

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all
three readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 30,
2024.

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first,
second and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01.

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)
receive the report from the Resources Committee Meeting of April 16, 2024.

7.2 Education Committee of the Whole Meeting of April 23, 2024 - Amanda Dowhy (page 87)

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive
the report from the Education Committee of the Whole meeting of April 23, 2024.

7.3 2024/25 Annual Budget Bylaw - Harold Cull (page 91)

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first
reading to the 2024/25 Annual Budget Bylaw, specifying a total of $221,123,327.

8. EDUCATION PROGRAM
8.1 Education-Policy Committee - Meeting of April 9, 2024 - Cendra Beaton (page 109)
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give
Notice of Motion to draft Policy and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools”.

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) give
Notice of Motion to new Policy and Regulations F-329 “Records Management”.

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive
the report from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of April 9, 2024.

8.2 Adoption of Policy and Regulations - Paul Block (page 123)
Motion Requested: Given that the required period for Notice of Motion has been

served, that the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt draft revised
Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and Equivalency”.




e Page 5 of 160
\a JOOKEA ") 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC V9B 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62 be.ca | 250.4749800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

9. STUDENTS
9.1 Three-Year Rolling School Year Calendar - Monica Braniff (page 134)
Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give
Notice of Motion to draft a School Year Calendar for 2025-26 and 2026-27.

10. FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE
10.1  Na’tsa’maht Education Council Meeting of April 24, 2024 - Russ Chipps (page 140)

10.2  Trustee Liaison Reports - Board of Education

. Victoria Family Court and Youth Justice Committee - Christine Lervold
o BCSTA Annual General Meeting - Christine Lervold
. French Advisory Committee - Cendra Beaton

11 ADMINISTRATION
11.1  Board of Education 90 Day Work Plan - Amanda Dowhy (page 160)

12. PERSONNEL
12.1  Superintendent’s Report - Paul Block

13. UPCOMING EVENTS
14. FUTURE ITEMS

15. QUESTION PERIOD
Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items
discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams. Individuals must identify
themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their
questions to the Manager, Communications for response following the meeting.

16. ADJOURNMENT




P Page 6 of 160
\» SOOKEA ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC V9B 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62.be.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

MINUTES
BOARD OF EDUCATION
PUBLIC MEETING
March 12,2024 - 7:00 p.m.

TRUSTEES: Amanda Dowhy, Board Chair Cendra Beaton, Vice Chair (virtual)
Russ Chipps (virtual) Christine Lervold
Ebony Logins Trudy Spiller

Allison Watson

STAFF: Paul Block, Superintendent
Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer
Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent
D’Arcy Deacon, Associate Superintendent
David Strange, Associate Superintendent
Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR
Farzaan Nusserwanji, Executive Director, IT
Steve Tonnesen, Manager, IT Operations

REGRETS:

SECRETARY:  Kristina Ross

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by the Board Chair, who acknowledged the
traditional territories of the First Nations.

2. AGENDA
2.1 Call for amendments and additional items

41. MOVED Allison Watson/Trudy Spiller
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public
meeting agenda of March 12, 2024, as amended.
CARRIED




= Page 7 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
\, SCHOOLS\) £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJJ Shaping Tomorrow Today

2.2 Report on In Camera Meeting - Amanda Dowhy
This notice is to inform the public that prior to this meeting an “in-camera” meeting of
the Board was held where issues of legal, land and personnel were discussed.

3. MINUTES
3.1 Call for amendments to minutes

42, MOVED Cendra Beaton/Trudy Spiller
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public
meeting minutes of February 27,2024, as presented.
CARRIED

4, INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS
4.1 Board Chair Update - Amanda Dowhy

The City of Langford officially opened its Progress Pride Flag Crosswalk on February
29" near Spencer Middle School. While it was disheartening to witness the repeat
vandalism of this crosswalk, the District will continue to advocate strongly for all of
our students regardless of their gender, sexual orientation, cultural or ethnic ancestry.
Partners in the community were on hand to support and help celebrate this crosswalk
including the RCMP, trustees and staff and students.

On Tuesday, March 5% the B.C. Government announced that Sooke-Westshore will
receive a Foundry Centre which services young people aged 12-24 and gives access for
mental health and well-being care, substances use, social support and services, and
helps navigate assistance and self-care. The District welcomed this announcement
and looks forward to working with its partners in the community.

On Tuesday, March 12% the B.C. Government announced $12M rebuild of the Port
Renfrew Elementary School; the new school expected to open in 2025 will have a 50-
student capacity. The District and Pacheedaht First Nation Chief Arliss Daniels
welcomed the news and look forward to furthering its partnership as the school
progresses from plans to reality.

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS

6. CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS
6.1 Correspondence

Email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King




= Page 8 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
\, SCHOOLS\) £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJJ Shaping Tomorrow Today

Elementary School

43. MOVED Ebony Logins/Allison Watson
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the email
from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King
Elementary School.
CARRIED

6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) — 5 minutes each
STA - Christina Kempenaar
Christina Kempenaar reported that there were 150 instances of violence reported
by its members to the District in February; this is the highest number of instances
reported ever in one month. It looks forward to working with the Employer in
making schools safer. The STA noted that Human Resources is hiring a record
number of TTOCs however, the District is still having an issue with failure to fill;
teachers are being pulled from positions to backfill enrolling classes. The STA has a
PRO D Day scheduled for April 19, 2024, featuring keynote speakers Anthony
Johnson and Dr. James Makokis.

CUPE 459 - Amber Leonard

Amber Leonard acknowledged International Women’s Day held March 8, 2024, a global day to
recognize and celebrate women’s and girls’ achievements. CUPE is celebrating its 60™
anniversary, and is running local radio ads to acknowledge this milestone. CUPE 459 will host
a PRO D Day on May 17" at Royal Bay Secondary School and is currently planning its
programming. The President acknowledged the budget pressure of between $1.424 to
$2.442M for the upcoming school year. CUPE 459 acknowledges that mitigation strategies
looking at transportation fees and/or transportation service reductions may be required, in
addition to walkable routes.

PVP - Kendra Laidlaw

Kendra Laidlaw thanked members of the Facilities Team who kept school grounds
clear of ice and snow. The President of BCPVPA, Brian Leonard, was recently
hosted by SD 62 at Centre Mountain Lellum Middle School and praised SD 62 for its
valuable working relationships with its Indigenous Partners. PVP are currently
developing 2024/25 school timetables and working through registration requests.
She provided her thanks to Digital Solutions for their support in this.




e Page 9 of 160
SOOKEA4A 7 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
Y\, scHooLsU £ sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

SPEAC - Nevada Kaludjar

SPEAC indicated that they are fielding questions from parents on what the
transportation fee model will look like for the upcoming year. Feedback from the
community on the current transportation survey indicates that parents need specific
fee amounts to properly provide comments. The Superintendent, Board Chair and
Secretary-Treasurer are attending the SPEAC meeting on March 13, 2024, to help
answer any questions.

1. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES

7.1 Resources Committee Meeting of March 6, 2024 - Christine Lervold
Trustee Lervold provided an overview of the Resources Committee Meeting of March
6, 2024, to the Board of Education.

44, MOVED Ebony Logins/Trudy Spiller
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct staff to bring
back transportation service reduetion models during the 2024/2025 budget
development process.
CARRIED

45. MOVED Christine Lervold/Ebony Logins
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve the Ethical
Decision-Making Framework as presented at the Resources Committee
meeting of March 6, 2024.
CARRIED

46. MOVED Christine Lervold/Cendra Beaton
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report
from the Resources Committee Meeting of March 6, 2024.
CARRIED

8. EDUCATION PROGRAM
8.1 Education-Policy Committee Meeting of March 5, 2024 - Cendra Beaton
Trustee Beaton provided an overview of the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of
March 5, 2024, to the Board of Education.

47. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson




o Page 10 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1

_ ShCHOOLS - sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJJ Shaping Tomorrow Today

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion
to draft Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and Equivalency”.
CARRIED

48. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Trudy Spiller
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the report
from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of March 5, 2024.
CARRIED

9. STUDENTS
9.1 School Calendar — Monica Braniff
The Deputy Superintendent indicated that the District is working in coordination with
SD 61 and SD 63 in the development of a rolling three year School Calendar. The
calendar will be presented to the Education-Policy Committee in May, coming to the
Board of Education for approval in June.

10. FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE
10.1  Trustee Liaison Reports — Board of Education
Trustee Lervold and the Board Chair attended the First Nations Regional Emergency
Management Planning Gathering hosted by MLA Dean and Parmar on March 8". The
initial meeting was an opportunity to bring stakeholders together in the affected
communities (Port Renfrew to Esquimalt) and speak about the purpose of developing
a community emergency strategic plan.

10.2  Na’tsa’maht Education Council Meeting of February 28, 2024 - Paul Block
The Superintendent congratulated newly elected Chief Arliss Daniels of Pacheedaht
First Nation and Chief Lawrence Underwood of T’Sou-ke First Nation. He thanked out-
going Chief Jeff Jones and Chief Gordon Planes for their leadership and contributions
to their communities. Joe Heslip, the Equity in Action Liaison for the Ministry of
Education, provided a presentation to the Na’tsa’maht Education Council, in addition
to a presentation on the Proposed Elementary Blended Learning Program, by Heather
Lait, Principal SD 62 Online & Continuing Education.

11, ADMINISTRATION
11.1  Board of Education 90 Day Work Plan - Amanda Dowhy
The Board Chair provided an overview of the work plan to the Board of Education.

12. PERSONNEL
12.1  Superintendent’s Report - Paul Block




e Page 11 of 160

\a JOOKEA ") 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC V9B 5R1
) a N ShCHOOLS d sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJ\/ Shaping Tomorrow Today

The Superintendent provided the Board of Education an update on Learning,
Engagement and Growth. The District is supporting its students while they access and
apply for the numerous scholarships that are available. A recap of previous
scholarship awards for the school year will be made available to the Board of
Education in June and September. The Superintendent will engage with students
around the topic of transportation and budget concerns.

13. UPCOMING EVENTS

14, FUTURE ITEMS
March 18/April 2 - Spring Break
March 31- Transgender Day of Visibility
April 3 - Schools Reopen
April 9 - Education-Policy Committee Meeting
April 16 - Resources Committee Meeting
April 17/21-BCSTA AGM
April 18 - Early Dismissal
April 19 - Non-Instructional Day
April 23 - Education Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 30-Public Board Meeting

15. QUESTION PERIOD
Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items
discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams. Individuals must identify
themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their
questions to the Manager, Strategic Communications for response following the meeting.

16. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 8:29 p.m.

Certified Correct:

Chairperson of the Board Secretary-Treasurer




ty

L)

+

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the
trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parentsiguardians can
commence,

Part A:

School: fﬂga@l Yo, _ Date Submitted: _ 2o D 200 Y
Principal: ]:!fl;; - QH;“;&

Supervisor (Educator in charge); e /e Cooe

Destination of Trip: jﬁlb_yy{{p Pl lodd .

Departure Date: _ Dok B 2oy U‘Return Date: ___1D0v R /¢«

Grade level(s): lo-1T No. of students involved; __ 20-27
Approx. cost of tour: $ £ 000 Approx. cost to students: $ 1200 = I~00
Transportatiqn: £ %44[_' 1 (R del CCXY

No. of school days missed (recommend 3 days maximum)__ 2.~

Source of Funding: _&A(mgthﬁ 1 Low Lv\a*

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet Hotel/Mot Camping Other

* How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?

A 8 9z ‘
o b - [ XA DX =Wl w,

b done. d‘_tfx'.k&‘\' of e o .

* Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: m_ﬁmm._g@f@

- Cod Ore. IAS .




Page 13 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the foliowing information:
1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

o AN

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning fo ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

8. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to pian the above International Educational Trip. | have read all applicable
documents and addressed the responsibility of the supervisor. The preliminary International
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal guardian approval for
student participation will be obtained. Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-111
Volunteers in Schopls will obtain criminaf record checks. '

/%Mxé@ [ib |5 900y

ervisors Signature Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

FEB 26 2024

Principaj/4 Sighature Date

Associate 7ef/ﬁéﬁdent’s Signature Date

1



Page 14 of 160
STEP 1—-PARTB

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

s Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take a grade 10-12 team to Baltimore for a lacrosse tournament.
The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going to this tournament
allows the students an opportunity to show/preform their development and learnings that they have
worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as we are teaching students
how to travel appropriately within a group, during a schocl sanctioned event. Students will be

____ participating against other high schools and teams of students the same age.

o During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults {including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students will always be under supervision, even during “free time”. Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner if the restaurant allows
large groups.

2. Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

3. Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using money from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

**ramilies will need to provide physical evidence of...

trip cancelation insurance

trip medical insurance

covid-19 vaccine proof {if required)

2 copies of student pass port {1 for the school and 1 for Lucas to have on the trip)

4. Supervisors.

e Lucas MacNeil (staff}, Armaan Sohi (coach), Cody Cock (staff)

¢ _ All participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
school and schoal district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.

s Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

5. Travel Insurance

Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.
Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely not needed. But in case of an issue arising, communication with
_both Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur.

o

Pertinent information.

We have been to this event. It a HUGE recruiting showcase for students to be seen by NCAA coaches.

Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

7. All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.



Page 15 of 160
All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.

THURSDAY OCTOBER 31 2024
5 AM - Everyone meet at Victoria airport. We will check in as a group and make this as easy as possible.
At some point Thursday early evening we will land at Baltimore Washington International & get rentals.
Check into Best western Hotel BWI Airport.

FRIDAY NOVEMBER 1 2024

8 arn wake up

Tour and practice at John’s Hopkins. Hopefully get in a scrimmage.
Return to hotel to clean up and eat.

Have time for homework

We will go to Sammy’s Pasta with alumni and coaches.

SATURDAY NOVEMBER ¥

Games 9:30, 11:30 am and 1:30 pm
We will clean up after and do an early dinner.

SUNDAY NOVEMBERE %

Games 7:30, 10 am and 12:30 pm
Lunch
Homewaork time (if timer permits}
Dinner and check into flights.
MONDAY NOVEMBER & ¢

11 am Check out of hotel

Flu out of BWI Airport

Depart BWI 3:50 pm, Air Canada Flight 1037
Arrive Victoria, 8:53 pm



Ocogpiesico @

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the
trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence.

Part A:

" School: jﬁl S Date Submitted: _{"edn €T Zore4
Principal: ‘e @'u:k_,

Supervisor (Educator in charge): Voo e Cw‘k_,

Destination of Trip: _Yockle. g . Dce %Dm
Departure Date: _ VY |5 207 H Return Date: _ A0y |71 7074

Grade level(s): -y No. of students involved: <
Approx. costof tour: $§ |, 00O Approx. cost to students: $ 26T~ “100O
Transportation: C e B

No. of school days missed (recommend 3 days maximum) =T _ o8
Source of Funding: . X \Q)J (/\6 -

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet A@a otel Camping Other

* How has the proposed International Educational Trip been inciuded in the overall plan for the year?

Studedy, WAL sy \- T dog of sded. Lok il he woote

0
* Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: "Ry ,_. S, bcw,&; b(‘duu.\ oS . QA?J""—\@\.L

e Vove ot of waedical ¢ Covalodion tesipoas




Page 17 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

oA W

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning to ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

6. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to plan the above Intemational Educational Trip. | have read alf applicable
documents and addressed the responsibility of the supervisor, The prefiminary International
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal guardian approval for
student participation will be obtained. Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-111
Volunteers in Schoolsill obtain criminal record checks.

/ 3 - Ay V5 224

Supervisor's Signature Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

M Y FEB 2.6 2024
[=]

Ffincipals Si Date

Associate Supj;,(w;?nt’s Signature Date

-



1.

2.

3.

Page 18 of 160
STEP 1 —PARTHB

Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

&  Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take a grade 9/10 and a 11 team to Portland for a lacrosse
tournament. The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going to this
tournament allows the students an opportunity to show/preform their development and learnings that
they have worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as we are teaching
students how to travel appropriately within a group, during a school sanctioned event. Students will be
participating against other high schools and teams of students the same age.

¢ During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults (including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students will always be under supervision, even during “free time”. Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner.

Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using money from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

**Families will need to provide physical evidence of..

& ® * & I

trip cancelation insurance, trip medical insurance, 2 copies of student pass port (1 for the school and 1 for Lucas
to have on the trip)

Supervisors.

Lucas MacNeil (staff),

Cody Cock

Armaan Sohi {coach)

All participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
school and schoot district. They wili be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.

Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

5. Travel Insurance

Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.
Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely not needed. But in case of an issue arising, communication with
hoth Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur, Because we are driving over the barder, we can still have the
opportunity to get home via Black Ball Ferry Line, or Anacortes Ferry Terminal,

Pertinent information.

We have been to this event several times. it is a great event for family to watch and for students to spend time
together on the bus to build a positive/inclusive culture.

Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.



Page 19 of 160
8. All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,

because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emersgency.

Field Trip Itinerary — Can change hased on schedule

Estimated times
Friday NOVEMBER 15* 2024
8:05 am. Students will meet at BC Walk on Ferry Terminal - Swartz Bay
9:00 am. Coaches and Students will board the ferry to Vancouver, Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.
10:50 am. Group will board a 54 seat charter bus.
12:30 pm. Group stop off at 10600 Quil Ceda Bivd, Tulalip, WA 98271, United States for lunch and an hour of shopping.
1:30 pm. Re-board the bus.
4:30 pm. Arrive at Hotel.
5 pm. Students will be playing games anywhere between, 5 pm and 3 pm.
11:00 pm. Curfew. Kids are in bed.
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule.

Saturday NOVEMBER 16% 2024

7am Wake up for JR team.

We will have games all day and be at the fields.

**There are food trucks and a warm field house for players to stay during the day. There are also change rooms with
warm showers if needed**

Sunday NOVEMBER 17"’ 2024

Estimated times. Games can go from 8am - 3pm

Pending on game time, we will be up an hour and a half before start time.

7:00 am Wake up and go for breakfast.

8:45 am check out and leave hotel for playing field.

Remainder of day we will be finishing off our games to be played.

1:30-4:00 pm leave field to head back to Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.

7 or 9:00 pm catch the ferry back to Victoria.

9:30 or 10:30 arrive to Swartz Bay ferry terminal where students will be picked up by parents.

Supplies and Equipment for Staff to Bring
Cell phone

First aid kit

Garbapge bags for bus

Students medical card information and emergency contact information

DOWN LOAD “TOURNEY MACHINE” ON YOUR PHONE FOR ALL SCHEUDLES AND UPDATES



Page 20 of 160

Sehu.

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the

trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence,

Part A;

Schoot Yl Hrolo _/7' _ Date Submitted: GJD 1T o4
Principat:___ ?M‘:LL B,
Superviser (Educator in charge): _Lg_._,&s Yo, + %_Qn\z\_

Destination of Trip: __ Sea-Wt . |

Departure Date: _ et & Return Date: __{e ¥,
Grade level(s): _ 4-17¢ No. of students involved: __ Ry B0
Approx. cost of tour: $ /%", om0 Approx. cost to students: $ __2¢&0 ~ TedD

Transportation; J:e_('cv\( 1 el .
No. of school days missed (recommend 3 days maximum) |
Source of Funding: Mf o&‘n\w\é t @Dw\vé\ -

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet I@Motel Camping Other )

» How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?

R schad o  Covpl, L.

= Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: E«@S; b(‘ugﬁ%%T ool \etven ELQJ'"QN,
Wv@:‘r\,&,?ca&?— 0@ wadwok & Comllodys. wa.




Page 21 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

i. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

;e eomn

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning to ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

8. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to plan the above Intemational Educational Trip. | have read alf applicable
documents and addressed the responsibility of the supervisor. The prellminary International
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal Quardian approval for
student participation will be obtained. Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-117

Volunteers W obtain criminal record checks,
/(g L/z;r th_ [ o2y

Supervisor's Signature” v Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
" INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

W FEB 26 2024

Principal's $igngftre Date
Associate SWﬂéﬂfs Signature Date




Page 22 of 160

STEP 1—PARTB

1, Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

» Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take a grade 9/10 and a 11/12 team to Seattle for a lacrosse
tournament. The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going to this
tournament allows the stidents an opportunity to show/preform their development and learnings that
they have worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as we are teaching
students how to travel appropyiately within a group, during a school sanctioned event. Students will be
participating against other high schools and teams of students the same age. We will be going with a
grade 9/10 group, and a grade 11/12 group.

¢ During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults (including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students will always be under supervision, even during “free time”, Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner if the restaurant allows
large groups.

2. Praposed itinevary — please see last pages.

3. Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using money from our academy fund raising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

**ramilies will need to provide physical evidence of...

e trip cancelation insurance, trip medical insurance, 2 copies of student pass port {1 for the schooi and 1 for Lucas
to have on the trip)

4. Supervisors.

 Lucas MacNeil (staff), Armaan Sohi {coach), Cody Cook (staff) plus 2 more

«  All participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
school and school district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.

«  Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hote).

5. Travel Insurance

e Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.

e Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely not needed. But in case of an Issue arising, communication with
both Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur. Because we are driving over the border, we can still have the
opportunity to get home via Black Ball Ferry Line, or Anacortes Ferry Terminal,

6. Pertinent information.

e We have been to this event several times. It is a great event for family to watch and for students to spend time
together on the bus to build a positive/inclusive culture.

e Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

7. Al students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian, Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.



Page 23 of 160

8. All tournaments have waivers where it reqguires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.

Field Trip Itinerary — Can change based on schedule

Estimated times
Friday December 6 2024
8:05 am, Students will meet at BC Walk on Ferry Terminal - Swartz Bay
9:00 am. Coaches and Students will board the ferry to Vancouver, Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.
10:50 am. Group will board a 54 seat charter bus.
12:30 pm. Group stop off at 10600 Quil Ceda Blvd, Tulalip, WA 98271, United States for lunch and an hour of shopping.
1:30 pm, Re-board the bus. '
4:30 pm. Arrive at Hotel
S pm. Students will be playing games anywhere between, 5 pm and 9 pm.
11:00 pm. Curfew. Kids are in bed.
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule.

Saturday December 7' 2024
7am Wake up for JR team.

Games will be all day. 1f we can, we will do a team dinner.
**There are food trucks and a warm field house for players to stay during the day. There are also change rooms with
warm showers if needed**

Sunday December 8 2022

Estimated times. Games can go from 8am —3pm

Pending on game time, we will be up an hour and a half before start time.

7:00 am Wake up and go for breakfast,

8:45 am check out and leave hotel for playing field.

Remainder of day we will be finishing off ourgames to be played.

1:30-4:00 pm leave field to head back to Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.

7 or 8:00 pm catch the ferry back to Victoria.

9:30 or 10:30 arrive to Swartz Bay ferry terminal where students will be picked up by parents.

Supplies and Equipment for Staff to Bring
¢ Celi phone
s First aid kit
s Garbage bags for bus
» Students medical card information and emergency contact information
+  DOWN LOAD “TOURNEY MACHINE” ON YOUR PHONE FOR ALL SCHEUDLES AND UPDATES



Page 24 of 160

Cals @

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the

trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence.

Part A:

school: Wzl Ecas Date Submitted: _{2%y 77 2oy
Principal: ' \QNM 2 Q‘(A_ﬁh./ -
Supervisor (Educator in charge); _ngg.z;_l"[mmg[&_igﬁ% CoxSn.
Destination of Trip: __{ ¢ ch“EbC“ Ao _
Departure Date: _ TRt <p. 902 Return Date: ~TR.E>. Qow. 2o7<”
Grade level(s): O\ No. of students involved:.__ 2> -S5O

Approx. cost of tour: 3 TBEN Approx. cost to students: $§ TR |
Transportation: g\l'ﬂ{)\r\'{” t_Qeodel Ccc

No. of schaol days missed (recommend 3 days maximum)__ 2.~ %
Source of Funding: ‘CON\V.\(\. 1 (OSSR .

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet otal/Motel Camping Other

*» How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?

Mw&m%'zfs%_df_mmwmk

n,,g..dg‘_%cv\é W dn g

» Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: Ewm: b bonm, WQM
Wt Youe 4‘3:0@% ot pedical  t cocolesho. WS fe.00




b

Page 25 of 160

. PartB
Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the frip

Proposed draft itinerary

Methad of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (inciude number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning to ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should fravel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety,

B. Any other pertinent information

Eallb

Lyl

LA Mgy, 1| o7«

Supervisors Sigriatire” Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

y, FEB 26 2024

Prikcipal's re Date

Ass IateS/'/‘t’S'atu %;::Z ///%;/7/
oc 7}7&@13 ignature




1

2.

3.

Page 26 of 160

STEP1—PARTB

Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

« Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take a team of grade 9-11's to California for a lacrosse
tournament. The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going to this
tournament allows the students an opportunity to show/preform their development and learnings that
they have worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as we are teaching
students how to travel appropriately within a group, during a school sanctioned event. Students will be:
participating against other high schools and teams of students the same age.

e During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults {Including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students will always he under supervision, even during “free time”. Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel.

Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using money from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

* *Families will need to provide physical evidence of...

4,

Supervisors.
Lucas MacNeil (staff), Cody Cook (staff}, Armaan Sohi (coach)
And 1-2 more chaperones or coaches. TBD still on who exactly they will be.

All participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
school and school district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations

. forinternational travel.

Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

5. Travel Insurance

Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.
Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely nat needed. But in case of an issue arising, communication with
both Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur.

Pertinent information.

This is a new event so we have not yet been. Itis a great experience for students to fly, and for students to
spend time together on the bus to build a positive/incusive culture.

Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.

All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.



-

Page 27 of 160

Field Trip Itinerary — Can change based on schedule

Estimated times and dates — pending what event we go to.

Friday Yanuary 24 2024

4:45 am. Students will check in at Victoria Air Port, Coaches and chaperanes take attendance and check in.
6:30 am. Take off for Vancouver. Flight __ACB146_ with Air Canada. Take attendance before boarding.

7 am Land in Vancouver.

9:56 am. Take off for John Wayne International. Flight __ AC598 with Air Canada. Take attendance.

12:44 am Land in Huntington Beach and go through customs, together. Collect bags together and wait for shuttle bus to
get rentals from AVIS.

2:00 pm, Check into Hotel - TBD

3 pm. Go to Huntington Beach Pier

5 pm Dinner @ __Sea Cliff Village Shopping Center__

7:30 pm. Students will be taken to Target store for snacks and water
10:15 pm. Student's rooms will be checked for curfew.

Saturday January 25" 2025

Pending on game time, we will be up 2 hours before start time.

9:00 am Wake up and go for breakfast.

9:45 am breakfast

Games will run all day. We will stick together at the fields or back to the hotel with supervision,

Lunch and dinner wili ke bought at the fields from the vendors, as games that day will be from morning to evening,
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule,

Sunday January 26", 2025

Pending on game time, we will be up 2 hours before start time.

9:00 am Wake up and ga for breakfast.

9:45 am breakfast

Games will run ali day. We will stick together at the fields or back to the hotet with supervision.

Lunch and dinner will be bought at the fields from the vendors, as games that day will be from morning to evening.

If given the opportunity, we will organize a team dinner Sunday evening depending on final game time.
**Before bed, rooms will be cleaned and bags packed to make the morning easier.

Monday, January 29'", 2024 **Please note, we may also come home Sunday Jan 28" if needed.

9 am —Wake up
10 am leave hotel to return rentals. Attendance taken by coaches and chaperones,
11:40 pm - Check in for Flights at lohn Wayne Int. Attendance taken by coaches and chaperones.

1:40 pm - Flight leaves Cafifornia for _ Vancouver__ . Flight __AC 559__ with Air Canada. Take attendance before
boarding.

4:38 pm — Land in Vancouver.
8:25pm — Leave Vancouver for Victoria. Flight __ AC 8167_ with Air Canada. Take attendance before boarding.
8:54 pm — Land in Victoria and go through customs.



O Ceqo~ P/mﬁv
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION ‘
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA} six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the
trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parentsiguardians can
commence.

Part A:
School;

. Zou,
Principal: e Mool

Supervisor (Educator in charge): Lam_vmnm_r_@%_cw :
Destination of Trip: O@Q&)r\ o ool udoc,

_ Date Submitted: _{2 & 72, Q002

Departure Date: '\ _Return Dagz Ylceu, o B\ voer
a L)

Grade level(s): -1 2 No. of students involved:__n.o00 SO

Approx. cost of tour: $ \'5@0 Approx. cost to students: $ _ exXO

Transportation; Cgm t_ Vedey Qs>
No. of school days misszd (r&:ﬁzi:end/! ays maximum} [~
\

Source of Funding: CoiSe .

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet @M otel Camping Other

» How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?

SBradeds call aes \ﬁtd&«&% of  seled. Vt?ouﬁ = (Y

(\‘L—hm\}l

* Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: M\_&M_,MMW

west  houe c\xa:»% ot wadoed ¢t o was.




Page 29 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

O b wwd

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning to ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

6. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to plan the above Interational Educational Trip. | have read alf applicable
documents and addressed the responsibility of the supervisor. The preliminary International
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal guardian approval for
student participation will be obtained. Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-111
Volunteers in Schopls will obtainfcriminal record checks.

@/{' ‘ L s 2024

Supervisor's Signature Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

?’{745(\/7 FEB 25 20

Principal's ajure Date

Associate Su?ﬁﬁ?ﬁt's Signature Date

LB



1.

Page 30 of 160
STEP 1-PARTB

Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

¢ Purpose of the extracurricular trip fs to take a grade 9/10 and 11/12 team to Portland, Oregon for a
lacrosse tournament. The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going
to this tournament allows the students an opportunity to show/preform their development and
learnings that they have worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as
we are teaching all students how to travel appropriately within a group, during a school sanctioned
event. Students will be participating against other high schools and teams of students the same age.

¢ During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults {including teachers, supervisors and chaperones}.
Students will always be under supervision, even during “free time”, Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner if the restaurant alfows
large groups.

Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using maney from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

Supervisors.

Lucas MacNeil (staff), Cody Cook (staff), Armaan Schi (coach)

Additional Chaperones as needed (coach)

All participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadars of both the
school and school district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.

Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

5. Travel Insurance

Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.
Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely not needed. But in case of an issue arising, communication with
both Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur. -Because we are driving over the border, we can still have the
opportunity to get home via Black Ball Ferry Line, or Anacortes Ferry Terminal.

Pertinent information.

S WEMave been to this area before. Itis a great chance for students to spend time together on the bus to build a

7.

positive/inclusive culture, and compete Vs some of the top high schools in Oregon.

All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.

All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.



Page 31 of 160 L2

Field Trip Itinerary — Sist@rs Portland feurnament Gow.eg

Estimated times And dates

Friday March 14 2025

6:200 am. Students will meet at BC Walk on Ferry Terminal - Swartz Bay

7 am. Coaches and Students will board the ferry to Vancouver, Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.
8:45 am. Coaches and students will walk off the ferry and pick up their baggage.

9 am, Group will board charter bus which will take us to Oregon.

1:30 pm. — Arrive @ Tumwater and get food at grocery store

2 pm Leave Tumwater

4:30 pm - Arrive Best western Lake Oswego/Portland Hotel and Suites — Check in

5:15 Get dinner across the road at Olive Garden

7:30 pm Game at Lake Ridge High school

All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule.

Saturday March 15 2025

9am. Wake up.

7:45 am. Go for breakfast at hotel

10 am. Leave for Nike Head Quarters with the kids

2:30 pm. JV group plays vs Jesuit

4:30 pm. Varsity group plays vs Jesuit

6 pm. Dinner with all groups after provided by lesuit.

7:30 pm. If desired, we go to top golf. Otherwise, we return to hotel to relax for the evening.
All times and events are flexibie, depending on game schedule.

Sunday March 16" 2025

8:00 am. Wake up.

8:20 am. Go for breakfast.

9:15 am. Leave hotel to go to lacrosse fields. Check out.
10:15 am IV plays vs Lake Oswego

11:45 am Varsity plays Lake Oswego

1:30 pm leave Lake Oswego and return to Tsawwassen ferry to come home to Swartz Bay. Likely onthe 7 or 9
pm boat back to Victoria
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule,

Supplies and Equipment for Staff to Bring

Cell phone

First aid kit

Garbage bags for bus

Students medical card information and emergency contact informaticn



Qs

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS @
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE -

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the
trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence.

Part A:
School: e\ e Date Submitted: fd:. UL 2o
Principal: YA &1/!.0[”

Supervisor (Educator in charge): _L;m_\-_{(gﬁ_@q( A Cod"@ Qoela
A

Destination of Trip: __ DV'SARES ,
Departure Date: __4Apw T EQZS  Return Date: = (o 2 Y, O X A

Grade level(s): A \{ No. of students invol\@d: 20~ o
Approx, cost of tour: $ lb',OOO Approx. cost to students: $ 200400
Transportation: __ adscin & (Radel \ouS

No. of schoolldays missed (%commend 3 days maximum) T

Source of Funding: &) | L - Qkol\('c‘ci:\\_b,

Accommodation Arangements: Billet @il\dotel Camping Other

* How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?

%{i&.&g_ ui‘\k whd (~C dQ.\Q&. ot scionl, oo, wdl loge

\
b&mde_ibfﬁ_wgmdi&_@r»‘ng v ale Y N aki
 Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: f*Ed.,Qﬁ., g ses. ool O, E@? .

st Lo t{mo-(‘v ot waduel % oo 0ol. St 0o




Page 33 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

ook wN

Travel insurance and altemate destination planning to ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

6. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to plan the above International Educational Trip. | have read all applicable
documents and addressed the responsibility of the supervisor. The preliminary international
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal guardian approval for
student participation will be obtained, Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-111
Volunteers in Schools will obtain criminal record checks.

s 2UDZ 4

Supenvisor's Signature Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

P FEB 2 6 2024
Principai's Signgtu Date

/ / :
Associate Supeﬁnﬂ/nd?ftZSignature Date



[ Page 34 of 160
STEP 1-—-PARTB

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

» Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take 2 grade 9/10 team to Sisters, Oregon for a lacrosse
tournament. The lacrosse academy students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going to this
tournament allows the grade 9 and 10 students an opportunity to show/preform their development and
learnings that they have worked on each day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect ta it, as
we are teaching the grade 9 students how to travel appropriately within a group, during a school
sanctioned event. Students will be participating against other high schools and teams of students the
same age.

e  During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults (including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students will always be under supervision, even during “free time”. Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner if the restaurant allows
large groups.

2. Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

3. Method of Financing the Trip — We will be using money from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themsalves..

. Supervisors.
¢ Lucas MacNeil {staff}, Armaan Sohi {coach}, Cody Cook
s Al participants will comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
school and school district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.
s Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

5. Travel Insurance

¢ Families will be informed that they MUST have trip cancelation insurance, and travel medical insurance. The
families will be accountable for any changes. Again, they must provide physical proof of this before the trip.

e Alternate destination plan for this trip is likely not needed. But in case of an issue arising, communication with
both Mike Huck and Wayne Kelly will occur. Because we are driving over the border, we can still have the
opportunity to get home via Black Ball Ferry Line, or Anacortes Ferry Terminal.

€. Pertinent information.

* We have been to this event once before. Itis a great event for students to spend time together on the bus to
build a positive/inclusive culture.

e Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

7. All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsibie for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.

8. All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.



Page 35 of 160
Field Trip Itinerary — Sisters Oregon Tournament

Estimated times and dates.

Friday May 2 2025

* 6:20 am. Students will meet at BC Walk on Ferry Terminal - Swartz Bay
s 7 am. Coaches and Students will board the ferry to Vancouver, Tsawwassen Terminal as walk ons.
* 8:45 am. Coaches and students will walk off the ferry and pick up their baggage.
* 9am. Group will board charter bus which will take us to Sisters.
¢ 1 pm - Stop for 10 minutes to stretch and walk around
s 3:30 pm. — Arrive @ Woodburn Premium Qutlets for an hour to shop and eat quickly
- Woodburn Premium Qutlets, 1001 N Arney Rd, Woodburn, OR 97071, USA
e 4:30 pm — Leave Woodburn Shopping Centre
*  5:30 pm - Arrive at Sisters Inn and Suites
¢ 10:15 pm. Student’s rooms will be checked for curfew.
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedute.

Saturday May 3, 2025

¢ 7:30am. Wake up.
e 7:45 am. Go for breakfast.

e 8:45am. Leave hotel to go to lacrosse fields. Will spend most of the day at the field where there will be food

vendars. The hotel is .7 of a mile from the field so we will walk.
* BOYS PLAY between 10 and 4pm

¢ |f needed, parent drivers driver can head back to the hotel with a chaperone and group of students if they need

to get food.
*  6:00 pm. If done games, we will go for team dinner.
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule.

Sunday May 4, 2025

*  3:00am. Wake up.
o 8:20 am. Go for breakfast.

»  9:45am. Leave hotel to go to lacrosse fields. Will spend most of the day at the field where there will be food

vendors. The hotel is .7 of a mile from the field so we will walk.
s BOYS PLAY between 9 and 3

¢ If needed, parent drivers driver can head back to the hotel with a chaperone and group of students if they need

to get food.
¢ 5:00 pm. if done games, we will go for team dinner.
All times and events are flexible, depending on game schedule.

Monday May 5% 2025

e 7:00 am Wake up

*  8:00 am check out and leave hotel for home

= 11 am Stop off at Nike Outlet centre in Portland

= 7 or 9 pm catch the ferry back to Victoria.

s B:30 or 10:30 arrive to Swartz Bay ferry terminal where students will be picked up by parents.



INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS @
PRELIMINARY APPLICATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as Step One of an approval process. It must be approved
by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (outside Canada and continental USA) six
months before the date of departure. Once this completed form has been approved, the
trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence,

Part A:

School: _@g_,&.\ &v\, Date Submitted: &,\Q - 2572_"(
Principal: ﬁibu,. Q‘QAU’\- : .
Supervisor (Educator in charge): _Le~ceN el (o ¢ Qlﬁa Gaom. -
Destination of Trip:__ 1)~ 2.5", O .

Departure Date: “fsarl~ |7 767 Retumn Date:  “Jeows— \E 2028
Grade level(s): _ A-\T No. of students involved:__ Y& p.pu-
Approx. costof tour: § §6 —(O 4. Approx. cost to students: $ _ {7200 ~{eO / <sthvdag .
Transportation: _ < \¢ G:lfdr X (el welielo :

No. of school days missed (recommend 3 days maximum)___ 2>

Source of Funding: @w;u— ese. t Lcuy LM\.\-

Accommodation Arrangements: Billet otel/Motel Camping Other

* How has the proposed International Educational Trip been included in the overall plan for the year?
Shdodk wall wigs 2-3 %@G ctess. Vleg ol gy
U e
V‘MD;LFY-\Q shal ol digime Neip-
» Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: MLMM%M
ek Vo pmol of wadee | « Cccel. WS concp




Page 37 of 160

. PartB

Please provide a detailed attachment with the following information:

1. Educational objectives/purpose of the trip

Proposed draft itinerary

Method of financing the trip

Plan for supervision (include number of supervisors and names - minimum 1:10)

A

Travel insurance and alternate destination planning fo ensure minimal financial impact to
participants should travel plan changes need to be made, to ensure student safety.

6. Any other pertinent information

Permission is requested to plan the above Intermnational Educational Trip. | have read all applicable
docurnents and addressed the responsibifity of the supervisor. The preliminary International
Educational Trip application form has been reviewed and parent/ legal guardian approval for
student participation will be obtained. Volunteers as defined by Policy and Regulations D-111
Volunteers in Schools will obtain criminaf record checks.

‘ _//&&‘ BUS Y 7oy

rvisor's Signature Date

PERMISSION GRANTED TO PLAN THE PROPOSED
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP

%’; VA FEB 26 204

Principal’s Si re Date

Associate Su7?l;ént‘s Signature Date

s



1.

5.

Page 38 of 160
STEP 1 — PARTE

Educational objectives/purpose of the trip.

» Purpose of the extracurricular trip is to take a team (19-23 students) to Denver for a lacrosse
tournament that will have several colleges looking for future student athletes. The lacrosse academy
students work very hard in their academy/PHE class. Going 1o this tournament allows the students an
opportunity to show/preform their full year development and learnings that they have worked on each
day at school. This trip does have a curricular aspect to it, as we are teaching students how to travel
appropriately within a group, during a school sanctioned event. Students will also be showing what they
have learned from class all year. Students will be participating against other high schools and teams of
students the same age.

¢ During this trip, there will be a ratio of 1:10 adults (including teachers, supervisors and chaperones).
Students witl always be under supervision, even during “free time”. Students will be spending most of
their time either at the playing fields or hotel. We may go for a team dinner if the restaurant allows
large groups.

Proposed itinerary — please see last pages.

Method of Financing the Trip —~ We will be using money from our academy fundraising account, as well as
money from families that want to pay themselves.

Supervisors.

Lucas MacNeil (staff), Cody Cook (teacher), 1 additional parent if needed

All participants wilt comply with the school And District Codes of Conduct, acting as ambassadors of both the
schooi and school district. They will be provided with a trip booklet and waiver form that outlines expectations
for international travel.

Activities include playing lacrosse, going for food, and staying at the hotel.

Travel Insurance

**Families will need to provide physical evidence of...

» trip cancelation insurance, trip medical insurance, covid-19 vaccine proof (if required)
= 2 copies of student pass port

Pertinent information.

1 have been to this event several times. [t is a great event for students to play and perform against several other
programs in North America. Caming from this, students build an positive/inclusive culture after travelling and
playing amongst their peers.

Due to the tournament having a waiver to be signed as a condition of participation, it is pertinent that students
will have individual medical insurance to ensure they are taken care of and will safely get home.

All students will sign trip waivers promising to be good citizens as they are ambassadors of the school and school
district. Students may be returned home with notification to the parents if the student compromises safety to
self or others and does not follow expectations. In addition, if a student has to return home, parent/guardians
will be responsible for the travel costs for both the child and the supervisor accompanying them. That said,
cancelation insurance will be the responsibility of the parent/guardian. Trips can be cancelled or postponed and
the cost will not be covered by the school district. Families are responsible for trip cancellation insurance as well
as medical insurance. THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED WITH THE PARENTS.

All tournaments have waivers where it requires the participant to sign as a condition to participate. However,
because it is mandatory that parents MUST have medical and cancelation insurance before travelling, this
ensures that their child will be taken care of in case of a medical emergency.



Page 39 of 160

Denver, June 2025 Field Trip ltinerary

Estimated times and dates

Thursday lune 12%, 2025

4 am. Students will check in at Victoria Air Port, Coaches and chaperones take attendance and check in.
5:30 am. Take off for Seattle. Flight AS2353 with Alaska. Take attendance befaore boarding.

6:18 am Land in Seattle and go through customs, together.

5:35 am take off for Denver. Flight AS0674 with Alaska. Take attendance before boarding.

1:20 pm Land in Denver. Collect bags together and wait for shuttle bus to Budget Rental.

3:30 pm Leave Budget Rental with 4 vans. 40 students and 4 adults and drivers.

4:15 pm — Check into Hotel — TBD
6 pm. Pinner @ North Field Shopping Center

7:30 pm. Students will be taken to Target store for snacks and water
10:15 pm. Student’s rooms wilt be checked for curfew.

Friday June 13", 2025

9:00 am. Wake up

9:30 am. Breakfast @ hotel, or students can eat breakfast from the groceries.

11:00 am. Leave hotel to go to lacrosse fields for practise @ Dicks Sporting Good’s Field
1:00 pm. Team lunch at North Field Shopping Center. Return to hotel when done.

2:30 pm. Study session for those who have work or finals. 1.5 hours

e

5:30 pm. Games can start at Dicks sporting goods field -~ may be later game but guaranteed we play Friday evening. Will

leave the hotel an hour before the game starts.
10 pm. Lights out and room checks.

Saturday June 14%, 2025

Pending on game time, we will be up 2 hours before start time,

5:00 am Wake up and go for breakfast.

9:45 am breakfast

Games will run all day. We will stick together at the fields or back to the hotel with supervision.

Lunch and dinner will be bought at the fields from the vendors, as games that day will be from morning to evening.

Sunday June 15", 2025

Pending on game time, we will be up 2 hours before start time.

9:00 am Wake up and go for breakfast.

9:45 am breakfast

Games will run all day. We will stick together at the fields or back to the hotel with supervision,

Lunch and dinner will be bought at the fields from the vendors, as games that day will be from morning to evening.

If given the opportunity, we will organize a team dinner Sunday evening depending on final game time.
**Before bed, rooms will be cleaned and bags packed to make the morning easier.

Monday, June 16", 2025

5am —Wake up

5:30 am leave hotel to return rentals at Budget Rental. Attendance taken by coaches and chaperones.
6:00 am - Check in for Flights at Denver International. Attendance taken by coaches and chaperones.
8:10 am —Flight leaves Denver for Seattle. Flight AS1173 with Alaska. Take attendance before boarding.
10:09 am — Land in Seattle.

11:35 am - Leave Seattle for Victoria. Flight A52384 with Alaska. Take attendance before boarding.
12:29 pm - Land in Victoria and go through customs.



Page 40 of 160

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS APPLICATION INFORMATION STEP ONE This form must be
completed as part of a detailed approval process. It must be reviewed and supported by the Principal
and Associate Superintendent (for trips outside of Canada and continental USA) and submitted to the
Board of Education for approval at least six months prior to date of departure. Once the field trip has
been approved, trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and parents/guardians can
commence.

Part A: School: Royal Bay Secondary School

Date Submitted: 2

Principal: Mike Huck

Supervisor {(Educator in charge): John Mcintosh
Destination of Trip: Japan

Departurg Dite: T8D (SPRING 2025)

Return Date: TBD (SPRING 2025)

Grade level(s): 10-12

- No. of students involved: 16

Part B: SUPERVISION:

1 a) Name of Lead Supervisor:
e John Mclntosh (male teacher)

b) Names of Supervisors (indicate male/female/other, teacher, parent/guardian, volunteer, etc.):
e Jouelle Brick (female teacher)

(Note: Volunteers have obtained Criminal Record Checks (as per Policy E-118). Copies filed with school
principal prior to trip departure.)

c) Names of Supervisor or tour company representative with firsthand knowledge of customs and culture
of country being visited:

e EF Tours
TRAVEL: 2. Method of travel/transportation:

e Travel arrangements are organized by EF Tours and include flights, trains, private buses, and
public transportation.

| 4



ITINERARY:

3. Brief Itinerary and Details: 7 T

Day 1: Fily overnight to Japan

" Page'410f160 =

Students will meet at the airport where teachers will confirm all documents are in order.

Day 2: Tokyo

Meet your Tour Director at your destination
Day 3: Tokyo

Tour Tokyo with an expert local guide
Walking Tour in Harajuku Shopping District
Visit the Meiji Shinto Shrine

Take a walking tour of Shibuya

Visit the Asakusa Kannon Temple

Take a tour of Akihabara Electric Town
Sumao-style Hot Pot Dinner

Day 4: Tokyo

Disneyland Tokyo

Day 5: Tokyo * Kamakura » Hakone
Travel to Hakone via Kamakura

Visit the Hachimangu shrine

Visit the Great Buddha of Kamakura
Explore Kamakuyra on your own

Day 6: Hakone » Odawara « Kyoto

Travel to Odawara via Owakudani and Fuji-Hakone-lzu.National Park

Visit Fuji-Hakone-lzu National Park

Visit the Hakone Open Air Museum

Ride the Mount Komagatake cable car

Enjoy free time in Owakudani

See Odawara Castle

Trave! by buliet train to Kyoto

Day 7: Kyoto

Tour Kyoto with an expert local guide

Visit the Gbld Pavillion

Visit the Nishijin Textile Centre

Visit Nijo Castle

Tour the Arashiyama Bamboo Forest
Walking tour of Arashiyama Forest

Day 8: Kyoto » Osaka

Visit the Fushimi Inari-taisha shrine

Take a guided tour of Nara

Visit Todaiji Temple

Visit Kasuga-taisha, Nara's most celebrated shrine
Travel to Osaka

Take a tour of Osaka's Delonbori canal street
Enjoy dinner at the Dotonbori Canal Street Market
Day 9: Depart for home

e



Page 42 of 160

PLANNING DETAILS:
4 Educaticnal Objectives:

a. DescriBg the curricular and/or extra-curricular relevance students will receive from the International
Education tripr - -

This educational journey is carefully crafted to not only provide a memorable experience for our
students but also to enhance their learning in line with provincial educational goals. By
immersing students in the rich cultural, historical, and linguistic aspects of Japan, we aim to
reinforce classroom learning and deepen their understanding of global perspectives.

Social Studies:

¢ Learning Goal: Develop an understanding of world geography, history and cultures.
» Trip Component: Visits to historical landmarks, museums, and cultural institutions in
lapan, providing hands-on experience aligned with the Social Studies curriculum.

Lanpuage Arts:

e Learning Goat Enhance communication skills and appreciation for diverse literary
traditions.

+ Trip Companent: Interaction with local students, opportunities for journaling, and
engagement with Japanese literature, promoting language development and cultural
appreciation.

Modérn tangages {Japanese]:

s Learning Goal: Develop introductory proficiency in the Japanese language,
e Trip Component: Real-life language application through interactions with native
speakers, reinforcing language skills acquired in the classroom.

S Career Education:

s Learning Goal: Foster global citizenship and prepare students for an interconnected
world.

s Trip Component: Exposure to international environments, promoting adaptability,
intercultural communication, and a sense of global responsibility.

Fine Arts:

s Learning Goal: Appreciation and awareness of eastern art motifs and styles

= Trip Component: Traditional art seen in the temples, architecture, watercolour,
sculpture, fashion, etc... witl be appreciated in contrast with contemporary, art
expression such as anime, sakura viewing, digital media and “futuristic” urban planning.



Page 43 of 160

Physical Education:

s Learning Goal: Eficourage active and healthy lifestyles;

= Trip Component: Incorporation of physical activities such as walking tours, traditional
martial arts experiences, and outdoor exploration, aligning with the Physical Education
curriculum.

b. Follow-up activities for students.

e Students will write a guided reflection and host a debrief open to the school to share curated
photos, artifacts, and tell their community what they learned while immersing themselves in
another culture.

5. Supervision:

a. Proposed adult/gender/student ratio: (minimum 1:10)
e 8:1,1Male and 1 Female supervisbr

b. Evidence of experience for supervising staff:

s Jouelle Brick: : EF Employee, Tour supervisor for St. Margret’s international Students Summer
Program, 8 years intemational teaching experience inclading supervising local, national, and
international student trips.

c. Arrangements or coverage of supervising staff’s assignment (if necessary):
8 p

o TTOC costs are included in the final calculation. Trip is over Spring so TTOCs should not be
required.

d. First Aid Arrangements:

e EF guides are First Aid Trained, at least one teacher will have current first aid certification.
6. Accommodation Arrangements: Billet Hotel/Motel Camping Other:

¢ Organized by EF Tours (Hotels and motels.)
7. Student Participation Selection process for participating students:

Students will submit an application that will include:

- Aletter of recommendation from a teacher

- Asummary of current academic standing,

- A bnief essay explaining why they wouid be a good candidate for the trip, how this
experience would support their personal and academic growth.

Applications will be reviewed by the supervising teachers and submitted to the principal for final
approval,



Page 44 of 160

(Parents/guardians have been notified that if a student compromises safety of self or others and does
not adhere to previously established expectations; thatsaid student-and (if required)a supervisor may
be returned home at the expense of the parent/guardian.)

FINANCES

8. Total p'er student cost for the International Education trip:
e 16x55259 = 5841449,

Total per student cost to be paid by each student:
e 55259

10. Source of funds {include amounts when there is a difference between total cost and amount paid per
student):

& -Fundraising and family funds
11. TTOC time required?
* No
12. Total per staff cost for International Field Trip:
. $5719
13. Total per staff cost to be paid by each staff member:
o S0 (EF covers the cost of two supervisoss)

14. Total overall cost of the International Educational trip:

e——16x 55259 = $84144
15. Commerscial tour company assisting with arrangements (if applicable}:
a. Company name: EF Tours
b. Contact person: Audra Cowe

Phone: 778-372-2073

E-mail: Audra.Cowe@ef.com

LIABILITY COVERAGE

16. Describe the arrangements that have been made to ensure that all applications have adequate
health and cancellation insurance for travelling out of the country:



Page 45 of 160

e EF has health, travel, and cancellation insurance included in their cost, families will be given
documentation as to what this does and does not cover.

17. What provisions have been made regarding proof of citizenship or immigration status and/or
required vaccinations?

e All documents will be collected and scanned ahead of time to ensure we are in compliance with
international laws.

18. Unique Risk/Safety Considerations:

e Laws and customs that differ from those in Canada, students will attend an information session
so they can be properly informed how to behave themselves in a way that positively represents
their school and their country.

e Students will be expected to learn a list of key phrases in Japanese for cultural immersion,
respect, and to keep themselves safe.

¢ Meeting points in every city will be established ahead of time, students will have the names of
these places written in both English and Japanese before leaving for the day.

e Specific boundaries are established for every outing that includes exploration time.

e Students will be required to carry sufficient emergency funds to cover any transportation to
reunite in case of unexpected separation from the main group.

e Families will be informed ahead of time of the protocols in place regarding tardy returns to
meeting points to ensure expectations and consequences are clearly understood.

(Parents/guardians have been notified in writing that should the tour/program be cancelled for any
reason; the district is not respansible for any costs involved.)

20. Information to Parents/Guardians:
Please see sample of proposed letter to parents/guardians.

Please see sample of proposed parental/guardian consent forms.

Supervisor’s Signature U’f /é-“ /// Date . &ﬂutfuj lo* dod L'I
Principal’s Signature 4 fééf:)// - / // Date Felo Zj'z /202'7

>

- Rl g2/
Associate Superintendent’s Signature / / i Date _ | Lfl 99—{ %c}l{(’

7/




Page 46 of 160

[Schoo! Letterhead)

[Date)

Re: Exciting School Trip Qeportunity to Japan in 2025

Dear Parents and Guardians,

We hope this letter finds you well and full of anticipation for the exciting news we have to share. We are
delighted to inform you about a unique educational cpportunity for your child — a school trip to Japan in
2025! Japan is an ever evolving juxtaposition of nature and technology, the ancient and the
contemporary existing alongside each-other in a unigue cultural mosaic. We look forward to exploring
this exceptional place with RBSS students.

Teacher Supervisors:
Mr. Mcintosh and Mme Brick, experienced educators committed to the well-being and safety of our
students, will be sypervising the trip.

Organizer:

The trip.is organized through the reputable company EF Tours, known for their expertise in educational
travel. EF Tours has a longstapding history of providing students with enriching and memorable
experiences,

Hinessary:
The 9-day journey will take place during the spring break, departing from Victoria and landing in Tokyo.

The tinerary includes visits to Kamakura, Hakone, Odawara, Kyoto, and returning to Tokyo before
heading back to Victoria. This comprehensive itinerary is crafted to provide students with a diverse and

) _lm:gemcmnral expérience.

-

‘a_._Pay 1: Fly overnight to Japan

o Students will meet at the airport where teachers will confirm all documents are in
order.
Day 2: Tokyo
o Meet your Tour Director at your destination
Day 3: Tokyo
Tour Tokyo with an expert local guide
Walking Tour in Harajuku Shopping District
Visit the Meiji Shinto Shrine
o Take a walking tour of Shibuya
o.—.Visit the Asakusa Kannon.Temple
o Take a tour of Akihabara Electric Town
o Sumo-style Hot Pot Dinner
Day 4: Tokyo
o Disneyland Tokyo
Day S5: Tokyo » Kamakura » Hakone
o Travel to Hakone via Kamakura
o Visit the Hachimangu shrine
o Visitthe Great Buddha of Kamakura

o o0




Page 47 of 160

o Explore Kamakura on your own

= Day 6: Hakone * Odawara » Kyoto
Travel to Odawara via Owakudani and Fuji-Hakone-lzu National Park
Visit Fuji-Hakone-1zu National Park
Visit the Hakone Open Air Museum
Ride the Mount Komagatake cable car
Enjoy free time in Owakudani
See Odawara Castle
Travel by bullet train to Kyoto
« Day 7: Kyoto

Tour Kyoto with an expert local guide

Visit the Gold Pavillion
- Visit the Nishijin Textile Centre

Visit Nijo Castle

Tour the Arashiyama Bamboo Forest

Walking tour of Arashiyama Forest
= Day 8: Kyoto - Osaka
Visit the Fushimi Inari-taisha shrine
Take a guided tour of Nara
Visit Todaiji Temple
Visit Kasuga-taisha, Nara's most celebrated shring ...
Travel to Osaka
Take atour of Osaka's Dotonbori canal street
Enjoy dinner at the Datonbori Canat Street Market
+ Day 9: Depart for home

o Parents will collect students from Victoria International Airport

00000 000000

000 O0QC0

Cost:

The total cost for this trip is $5259 per student. This covers all major costs such as flights, transportation,
tours, meals, accommodation, guides and group attivities. While the cost is primarily the responsibility
of families, we are pleased to announce that there will be fundraising opportunities for interested
students. These opportunities will allow families to offset some of the trip costs through various events
and activities.

Student Selection:

To ensure a meaningful and responsible participation, interested students are required to submit
applications expressing their interest and demonstrating their sense of responsibility. The selection
process will take into consideration these applications, making the trip accessible to students who are
genuinely interested in embracing this unique educational adventure.

Important Details:

« Upon selection a non-refundable deposit of $ is due by to secure your
child's spot on the trip.

e Further information about fundraising opportunities and application submissions will be shared
in upcoming parent meetings and through our school communications.



Page 48 of 160

. Information Session:

We invite you to attend an informational meeting on [Date] at [Time} in [Location]. This meeting will
provide detailed insights into the trip, fundraising oppartunities, and the application process. it will also
be an opportunity for you to ask any questions you may have,

We believe that this trip will be a transformative and educational experience for-your child, fostering
personal growth and global awareness. If you have any immediate questions or concerns, please do not
hesitate to contact us

Thank you for considering this incredible opportunity for your child.

Sincerely,

Mwme Jouetle Brick

I ackyowledge that I five, work,, play and learn on the ancestral, unceded, and occupied territories of the Coast
Salish peoples, the Lof¥a1pn peoples of the Songhees and Esquimalt first nations.



Page 49 of 160

SCHOOL CONSENT FORM FOR CHILD PARTICIPATING IN MODERATE RISK . .. .

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIP
Date:

Re: (Student Name})

Ihereby give my consent and acknowledge by my signature that:

Students witt be travelling to Japan landing in Tokyo and continuing on to Kamakura
Hakone, Odawara, Kyoto, and back to Tokyo. We will be travelling on an educational
trip from March , 2025 (final dates and times to be determined). They will be
travelling by plane, coach bus, boat, and train on a program organized through EF
Educational Tours.

On this field trip, 16 students will be: walking, hiking

The students will he,supervised by 2 teacher chaperones (1:8 ratio). Students will not

necessarily be_ supervised by an adult at all times {ie hotel rooms or free time at the

~ hotel). In some emergencies and unforeseen circumstances, the satio of-supervision
may be redacsd

My child has no illnesses, allergies or disabilities that may require special attention,
except as described here & on the personal information sheet provided to the geoup
leader:

L

| am aware of the usual risks and dangers inherent in participation in all of the activities
associated with this trip and of the possibility of personal injury, death, property damage
of logs restilting from the activities. The dangers and risks may include, but are not
limited to:

» Unorthodox or high-risk travel arrangements (boat, water taxi, trains, and small
ferries).

« Remote locations.

* Rugged terrain. _

« Moderate risk activities provided by a 3rd Party operator - all with aduit supervision.
* Rock fall and avalanches.

» Weather.

* Equipment breakage, failures.

* Delayed rescue, accessibility.

« Insect bites or injury from other animals

* Sunburn

» Conduct of the guide, chaperone or other group members.

» The possibility that your child may not heed safety instructions or restrictions given to the

group.

Initial

Initial

Initial

Initial

Initial



Page 50 of 160

| acknowledge that if the.Sggeribtendent of Schools deems the trip unsafe, they can
recall studente-back at any time, change the trip program or itinerary, postpone or Initial
cancel thee trip. The cost for such a decision will not be covered by the school district
and will be the sesponsibility of the participant and parents/guardians.

| will suppty-suftable equipment and clothing for my child’s participation in all —
_ activities associated with the field trip, including: suitable walking shoes, swim Initial
clothing, sun protection, insect repellient.

| am-aware that | should coglact the school for further information if | am unaware
what clothing and equipment is required for the-activities or possible weather
conditions of this field trip. Initial

My child and | understand that it is our responsibility to ensure my child has all
necessary equipment and clothing.

My child and | understand that the school's Code of Conduct applies during this field
trip. | will be responsible for any costs caused by my child's failure to abide by the —
Code of Conduct, including any costs to send my child home. Initial
Accidents can be the result of the nature of the activity and can occur with or without

any faul ory eith&r part of tha student, or the School Board or its employees or

agents, or the facility where the activity is taking place. By allowing your -
son/daughter to participate in this activity, you are acceptlng the risk of an accident Initial
occurring, and agree that this aclivity, es edjsiiBEpabese; is suitable for your child.

In signing this Consent, 1 am net relying on any oral or written representation or
statementamade by the Sthoot Board-and-its servants, agents, employees, or
authorized volunteers, or the Ministry of Education, to induce me to permit my child Initial
to take the trip, other than those set cut in this Consent.

I am 19 years of age or more and have read and understand the terms of this

Consent and understand that it is binding upon me, my heirs, executors and Initial
administrators, executors and administrators.

Date:

Signature of Witness Signature of Parent/Guardians
Printed Name of Witness Printed Names of Parent/Guardians
Address Address

NOTE: This Consent must be signed by ALL custodial parents or guardians of a child
who is under the age of 19 years.



Page 51 of 160

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
APPLICATION INFORMATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as part of a detailed approval process. It must be
reviewed and supported by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (for trips

outside of Canada and continental USA) and submitted to the Board of Education
for approval at least six months prior to date of departure. Once the field trip has
been approved, trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and
parents/guardians can commence.

Part A:
School: _%qgg.maf Date Submitted: A?n}« 3, A0 2
Principali___ Ve S

Supervisor (Educator in charge): Noowe  C locde

Destination of Trip: P P P U

Departure Date: _ TN\, ;:;:h 17225  Return Date: __ W eedn 30, 20025

Grade level(s): - No. of students involved: _ \8 - 2o

Part B:
SUPERVISION:
1 a) Name of Lead Supervisor: Moo ewe.  Clhore ()
b) Names of Supervisors (indicate male/female/other, teacher, parent/guardian, volunteer, etc.):
_ Teonica \—3\\.‘55_ EN. (&)
T TeAA Qo\f)s’_r\-&x\ Counmselo—  ( M’\ .

(Note: Volunteers have oblained Criminal Record Checks (as per Policy £-118). Copies filed with
school princlpal prior to trip departure.)

c) Names of Supervisor or tour company representative with firsthand knowledge of customs and
culture of country being visited:

2 ¥ mers . Boordo Voo S . - s Lo (_L\.

TRAVEL:
2. Method of travel/transportation:

Plowve, T S0s . —Teonin,




Page 52 of 160

7. Student Participation
Selection process for participating students:

~TAAR. o ShuMeNe  wls ek wds e e \-ﬁ«f)b D

) )
e, E_D_-—a—-t" . Pan. hﬂd\w* e I 2 VO
o-'!cs‘\'t\:\J Yo \ovrdNe Mo doue :Q\ncﬂ P L W

vwaode . o .
(Parents/guardians :I:‘ave been notified that if a student compromises safety of self or others and does
not adhere to previously established expectations, that student and possibly a supervisor may be
returned home at the expense of the parent/guardian.)

FINANCES

8. Total per student cost for the International Education trip: __ 35 R 4.

9. Total per student cost to be paid by each student: _ €5, 4% |

10. Source of funds (indude amounts when there is a difference between total cost and amount
paid per student): _ [P o yents , F i draisee,

11. TTOC time required? [] Yes Q/No -~

12. Total per staff cost far International Field Trip: None. .

13. Total per staff cost to be paid by each staff member: F/9TF Insovonce,

14. Total overall cost of the International Educational trip: £ 5268 + tios (IR D)_

15. Commercial tour company assisting with arrangements (if applicable): '

a. Company name: EF Touwuxs,
b. Contact person: _Anmanda  Vodds, LindSa.. Loirehn.
- Phone: 604 3L 2935 - \
- E-mail: _ﬁﬂé&gﬁ__p‘\hc% 5’-\@‘& Lo mnnosdo -Jodds 6'39-(' Ly
LIABILITY COVERAGE

16. Describe the arrangements that have been made to ensure that all applications have adequate
health and cancellation insurance for travelling out of the country:

P\\\ CyonoseNsin  ore- \-e';fu'\re& o T‘L.x_tc}\m AN o)

Cdeddar, Plan aMacves

17. What provisions have been made regarding proof of citizenship or immigration status and/or
required vaccinations?

B\ Mroccders a.ue_f_&_@ o suomil ’?&SS:\)Q.:'\*,, '\'r‘o_..vej

Qoevmenks Yo EF dours. T oo VYo Weesed e ¥ preoQlev
Ao Qoreds  colede g \"'e.a:mfl-Jm‘k"*é.
18. Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: M_M@k%@um

_\QLM o e . BN e ackie e Wooe ‘oeeil
\,.e_o\ﬁeébt) = 5&@;—-@#\:\ ADD OO LD oo 30_%2




Page 53 of 160

April 2024
Dear Parent/Guardian

We have just returned from an Educational Ecosystems Tour of Ecuador and the Galapagos Islands
where 19 students and 4 chaperones had an incredible experlence exploring this ecclogically diverse
and culturally unique country. We will have a display of our adventures in one of the glass cases in the
front entrance of Spencer very soon so that students, parents and guardians can get a feel for what an
amazing opportunity it is to travel to International destinations.

In the coming weeks, please watch out for information about our next international tour during Spring
Break 2025. We will be exploring the Treasures of Thalland tour with EF Tours, We will invite students,
parents/guardians to an information meeting in the school library. it is mandatory for all interested
travelers and their parents/guardians to attend this meeting in order to register. Once registered,
students will need approval by the school principal to take part in the tour. In the meantime, you can
check out the EF Tours website to explore the itinerary of the Treasures of Thailand Tour.

Yvonne Clarke
Tour Leader

yclarke@sd62.bc.ca



Page 54 of 160

Curricular Relevance
Curricular Competencies
Positive Persanal and Culftural Identity

* lunderstand my values are influenced by my life experiences and my choices.
* lunderstand my identity is shaped by my relationships and cultures

Personal Awareness and Responsibility

* | canadvocate for myself and my ideas

¢ I can make decisions and take steps to support my well-being, including a heaithy and balanced
lifestyle

Critical and Reflective Thinking
® | can consider perspectives and implications
Creative Thinking '

¢ lcan generate new ideas through explorations and interactions
* | can evaluate my ideas and determine which ones will have the greatest impact

Social Awareness and Responsibiiity

¢ lcan value diversity and advocate for human rights
¢ [ candevelop diverse and intergenerational relationships

Communicating
¢ lcan actively listen, make connections and ask questions
First Peoples Principles of Learning

* Learning Is holistic, reflexive, reflective, experiential and relational
* Learning recognized the role of indigenous knowledge
¢ Learning is embedded in memory, history and story

| believe the tour will also address Goal 1 of SD62's Strategic Plan:

* Develop and support adaptive learners who are creative, critical and social thinkers with the
capacity to be educated citizens.



Page 55 of 160

Curricular Relevance
Curricular Competencies
Positive Personal and Cultural Identity

e | understand my values are influenced by my life experlences and my choices.
¢ lunderstand my identity is shaped by my relationships and cultures

Personal Awareness and Responsibility

¢ | can advocate for myself and my ideas

» | can make decisions and take steps to support my well-being, including a healthy and balanced
lifestyle

Critical and Reflective Thinking
¢ | can consider perspectives and implications
Creative Thinking

¢ | cangenerate new ideas through explorations and interactions
+ | can evaluate my ideas and determine which ones will have the greatest impact

Sociol Awareness and Responsibility

¢ | canvalue diversity and advocate for human rights
» |candevelop diverse and intergenerational refationships

Communicating
e [ can actively listen, make connections and ask questions
fFirst Peoples Principles of Learning

e Learning is holistic, reflexive, reflective, experiential and relational
¢ Learning recognized the role of indigenous knowledge
¢ Learning is embedded in memory, history and story

| believe the tour will also address Goal 1 of SD62's Strategic Plan:

» Develop and support adaptive learners who are creative, critical and social thinkers with the
caparcity to be educated citizens.



Page 56 of 160

EF offers a Global Travel Protection Plan which gives you all the benefits below, and the option to
add the Cancel For Any Reason Insurance Add-On for additional flexibility and peace of mind. With
this plan, you have access to representatives knowledgeable of these benefits 24 hours a day, so
you can relax and enjoy your trip of a lifetime!

The Global Travel Protection Plan includes:

liness and Accident Coverage

Baggage and Properly Coverage

Tour Cancellation and Interruption Coverage

School Board Tour Cancellation Coverage

24-hour Emergency Assistance by World Travel Protection Canada Inc.

Cancel For Any Reason (CFAR) Insurance Add-On:

The optional CFAR Insurance Add-On provides additional tour cancellation protection. 1t allows you
to cancel up to 24 hours or more before departure for any reason not coverad under the Global
Travel Protection Plan and you will be eligible to claim up to 80% of your non-refundable cancellation
fees.

Consuftez la page en Erangais ici.
The Global Travel Protection Plan and CFAR Insurance Add-On must be purchased or removed no

tater than 30 days after enrolment. The CFAR Insurance Add-On cannot be added to the Global
Travel Protection Plan if you enrol on your EF Tour within 109 days prior to your departure.



Tour Itinerary

Treasures of Thailand

11 or 14 days

X

Day 1: Fly overnight to Thailand
Day 2: Bangkok

Meet your Tour Director at your destination

Day 3: Bangkok

Visit the Grand Palace and see the Emerald Buddha

Take a boat tour of Chao Phraya River and Thonburi klongs
Visit the enormous Reclining Buddha at Wat Pho

Learn about Thai culture and history at the Museum of Siam
Day 4: Bangkok

Enjoy a tour of Ayutthaya's old town and visit the temples

Add this in-ep excursion:

Organic Farm
Experience

Day 5: Bangkok | Ratchaburi | Kanchanaburi
Transfer via Ratchaburi to Kanchanaburi
Explore Damnoen Saduak floating market
Visit the Death Railway Museum

Enjoy a Thai cooking class

Day 6: Kanchanaburi

Walk to the beautiful Saiyoke Yai Waterfall
Experience a train ride on the "Death Railway"
Day 7: Kanchanaburi | Phitsanulok

Travel to Phitsanoluk

Visit Bo Ya Cave

Add this in-depth excursion:
Night Market Rickshaw Tour

Day 8: Phitsanulok | Chiang Mai

Active guests can tour by bike with a local guide

Visit the Sukhothai Historical Park, a UNESCO World Heritage Site
Strike a bargain at the lively Chiang Mai Night Market

Day 9: Chiang Mai

Visit Mae Taeng Valley and Elephant Nature Park

Enjoy an authentic Thai dinner and classical dance show

Day 10: Chiang Mai | Bangkok

Page 57 of 160



Page 58 of 160

Visit a monastery for a local exchange with one of the head monks
Visit Wat Phra That Doi Suthep

Fly back to Bangkok

Day 11: Depart for home

Add 3 more days

Day 11: Bangkok | Hua Hin
Travel to Hua Hin
Visit Khao Luang cave
Day 12: Hua Hin
Enjoy free time at Hua Hin beach
Add this in-depth excursion:

Day Tour Kaeng Krachan

Nature Reserve

Day 13: Hua Hin | Bangkok
Enjoy free time at Hua Hin beach
Return to Bangkok

Day 14: Depart for home



Page 59 of 160

April 2024
Dear Parent/Guardian

You have expressed interest in having your child attend Spencer Middle School’s Treasures of Thailand
Tour during Spring Break 2025. Please read and initial each segment below and complete with your
witnessed signature.

I hereby give my consent and acknowledge by my signature that:

My child will be going on an international school trip to Thailand during Spring Break 2025. They will be
travelling by plane, bus and train.

Initial
On this International trip, up to 20 — 24 students will be: walking, cycling.
Initial
The students will be supervised by the tour leader, Yvonne Clarke and Chaperones to the ratio of 1:6.

Initial

My child has no ilinesses, allergies or disabilities that may require special attention, except as described
here:

Initial
I am aware of the usual risks and dangers inherent in participation in all of the activities associated with
this trip and of the possibility of personal injury, death, property damage or loss resulting from the
activities.
Initial

| acknowledge that if the Superintendent of Schools deems the trip unsafe, they can recall students back
at any time,
Initial

| witf supply suitable clothing for my child’s participation in all activities associated with the field trip.
Initial

My child and | understand that the school’s Code of Conduct applies during this field trip. | will be
responsible for any costs caused by my child’s failure to abide by the Code of Conduct, including any
costs to send my child home.

Initial

Accidents can be the result of the nature of the activity and can occur with or without any fault on either
part of the student, or the Schoal Board or its employees or agents, or the facility where the activity is
taking place. By allowing your son/daughter to participate in this activity, you are accepting the risk of
an accident occurring, and agree that this activity, as described above is suitable for you child.

Initial

tn signing this Consent, | am not relying on any oral or written representation or statements made by the
School Board and its servants, agents, employees, or authorized volunteers, of the Ministry of



Page 60 of 160

Education, to induce mt to permit my child to take the trip, other than those set out in this Consent.

Initial

tam 19 years of age or more and have read and understand the terms of this Consent.
Date:

Signature of Witness:

Printed Name of Witness:

Address:

Date:

Signature of Parent/Guardian:

Printed Name of Parent/Guardian:

Address:

NOTE: This Consent must be signed by ALL custodial parents or guardians of a chitd who is under the
age of 19 years,



Page 61 of 160
INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL TRIPS
APPLICATION INFORMATION
STEP ONE

This form must be completed as part of a detailed approval process. It must be
reviewed and supported by the Principal and Associate Superintendent (for trips
outside of Canada and continental USA) and submitted to the Board of Education
for approval at least six months prior to date of departure. Once the field trip has
been approved, trip details may be confirmed and communication to student and
parents/guardians can commence.

Part A:

School: _Belmont Secondary Date Submitted: _April 20, 2024
Principal: _Laura Fulton

Supervisor (Educator in charge): Tiffany Evans

Destination of Trip: SPain

Departure Date: TBD (Spring Break 2025) Return Date: 18D (9 days after departure)

Grade level(s): 9-12 No. of students involved: 1BD once approved approx. 30

Part B:
SUPERVISION:
1 a) Name of Lead Supervisor:_Tiffany Evans

b) Names of Supervisors (indicate male/female/other, teacher, parent/guardian, volunteer, etc.):
Supervisors will formally sign on once frip is approved. Regina Elizondo (female; teacher),

Paul Bendall {male; teacher), Blake Brown (male; teacher), are currently interested supervisors.

(Note: Volunteers have obtained Criminal Record Checks (as per Poffcy E-118). Copies filed with
school principal prior to trip departure.)

c) Names of Supervisor or tour company representative with firsthand knowledge of customs and
culture of country being visited:

Qur tour director will be assigned by EF tours closer to departure.

TRAVEL.

2. Method of travel/transportation:
Airplane and private bus. EF tours provides a 50 person private bus with driver.

ITINERARY:
3. Brief Itinerary and Details (attach a detailed itinerary):



Page 62 of 160

. -Destinafion - - Accommodation | - Contact Person : | Phone Number Date

Madrid and will deplart from Costa del Sol nine days |ater At this moment
there are no specific gccomodations, Pefson or contact, or dates. See attached dptailed itinerary.

PLANNING DETAILS:
4 Educational Objectives:
a. Describe the curricular and/or extra-curricular relevance students will receive from the

International Education trip.

The trip to Spain will provide language students and those interested in intercultural proficiency
with the chance fo immerse themseves in a new cultural and linguistic environment, thereby
ennchmg thE'.'II' Ianguage SklllS and global awareness By engaglng with local communities and

b. Follow-up activities for students.

Students will be encouraged to keep a reftective journal, in any format they prefer, both during and
after the trip. They'l reflect on their expectations vs. reality, personal growth, and how the trip
changed their worldview. They'll also be encouraged to share what they've learned withtheir peers,
helping to build a community of global learners.

5. Supervision:
a. Proposed adult/gender/student ratio:
b. Evidence of experience for supervising staff:

1:8 (minimum 1:10)

Tiffany Evans and Blake Brown have previously successfully travelled internationally

with students.

¢. Arrangements or coverage of supervising staff’s assignment (if necessary):

Not necessary. The trip will take place during Spring Break 2025.

d. First Aid Arrangements:

irst Aid trainin i i rovides support durin
emergencies. See Risk Managment and Safety Plan attached.

6. Accommodation Arrangements:
[] Billet [/ Hotel/Mote! [] Camping [] Other:

7. Student Participation
Selection process for participating students:

references and signatures, go through an interview with supervisors, sign a code of conduct and
behaviour agreement, and get a parental consent form signed. To promote diversity and inclusion,

e trip Wil'oe aovergysed 1o all Belmont stlde 1ere Will De TP 10 U SP0 Available Tor students.
A student will be considered a participant once they make their first payment to EF tours,




Page 63 of 160

(Parents/guardians have been notified that if a student compromises safety of self or others and does
not adhere to previously established expectations, that student and possibly a supervisor may be
returned home at the expense of the parent/guardian.)

FINANCES

8. Total per student cost for the International Education trip: 8pProx. $5,334

9. Total per student cost to be paid by each student; 2Pprox. $5,334

10. Source of funds (include amounts when there is a difference between total cost and amount
paid per student): _student payments, student's family payments, student lead fundraisers

11. TTOC time required? [ ] Yes No

12. Total per staff cost for International Field Trip: 2Pprox. $113

13. Total per staff cost to be paid by each staff member: @PPTox $113

14. Total overall cost of the International Educational trip: _I BD once students have been selected

15. Commercial tour company assisting with arrangements (if applicable):
a. Company name: EF Educational Tours

b. Contact person: Lindsay Winch

- E-mail: lindsay.winch@ef.com

LIABILITY COVERAGE
16. Describe the arrangements that have been made to ensure that all applications have adequate
health and cancellation insurance for travelling out of the country:

All participants will be required to purchase EF tours Insurance Plan. See attached.

17. What provisions have been made regarding proof of citizenship or immigration status and/or
required vaccinations?

Students will provide a copy at the time of participant selection.

18. Unique Risk/Safety Considerations: See attached Risk Managment and Safety Plan

(Parents/guardians have been notified in writing that should the tour/program be cancelled for
any reason; the district is not responsible for any costs involved.)

INSURANCE AND ALTERNATE DESTINATION PLANS

Cancellation Insurance Options Communicated to Parents and Students B Yes
Medical and Trip Insurance Options Communicated to Parents and Students M Yes

Details (attach documentation):
All participants will be required to purchase EF tours Insurance Plan. See attached.




Page 64 of 160

Information to Parents/Guardians:
Please include a sample of proposed letter or notices to parents/guardians.

Parental Consent Forms:
Please include a sample of proposed parental/guardian consent forms.

%///M,J C//ﬁ/vua/ April 20, 2024

V¥ d S@{or's Signature Date
el Arzlc g 3 394

L//P/uadﬁl s Signature Date

Associate Superintendent’s Signature Date



/'\\\
fffi Jl! EDICATIONAL

TO JRS

Adventure in Spain
9p:rI"ID'DAYS

o=z

Included in the program fee:

+  Round trip airfare

» Transfers to and fram the airport and hotel
and between destination cities (as per
program itinerary)

«  QOvernight in hotels with private bathrcoms

+ Continantal breakfast daily

«  Dinner daily

«  Full-tme services of an EF Tour Diractor

Not included in the program fee:

« " Customary gratuities for your tour
director, lccal guide and driver
Porterage

Persenal Insurance

Beverages and lunches

Public transportation to frae time
activities

rste thert the fodowing i o sampis Kimed ftinerary far the BF jaur with spprowmmeto addrosses, aolrly duralions, and irms
ety vury Berisel o padatie fights, hot loeation, sehaculid eetivty baokigs, truffic, elo. Your EF Tour Dwector o ovalubie o 8

Overnight stays: Madrid (3); Granada (T
Sevilla (1); Costa del Sot (2 or 31,

Sightseeing tours led by an expert:
Madrid; Granads; Seville.

Entrances included: Royal Palace; Prado
Museum; Don Quikote Windmills; Alhambra;
Granada City Challenge; Seville Cathedral;
Spirit of Andalusia.

Optional Excursions: Telede with Ziplining
Experience; Granada Flamenco Evaning,
Gibraltar,

2 37 wiile o towe. EF works wath Group Leadurs to ensure thal irevelfons have o sofe ond memonalie exponsnee wike on tour,

Day % Fly overnight to Spainl
Day 2: Madrid

Morning: Arriva in Madrid and meet your Tour
Directer at the airport

Welcome to Madrid! At 2,100 feet, this is Europe’s
highest eapital, a hub for art-lovers, and home to
one of #he world's most famous soccer teams.

1:00pm: Time for lunch in small, supervised
group#

With the support of the Tour Director, the Group
Leader will detarmine boundaries of where groups
can go during this time.

3:00pm: Walking tour of Madrid

Your Tour Director will introduce you to Madrid
during a walking tour, Together, you might see the
impressive Puerta del Sol, stand in Madrid's
historic Plaza Mayor or stroll down the chic and
trandy Gran Via.

5:00pm: Group dinner at & restaurant in central
Madrid

7:00pm: Travel by private motercoach to the
hotelin Madrid

9:00pm: Group Leaders and Chaperone team
will facilitate room checks and lights out

Day 3: Madrid

6:00am: Wake-up call

7:00am: Breakfastat the hotel

8:00am: Travel by private motorcoach to
central Madrid

10:00am: Guided Sightseeinglof Madrid

Your expert local guide will introduce you to
Madrid, the capital and largest city in Spain. During
your panoramic bus tour, see the Plaza Mayor and
the Puerta del Sol. Get a taste of royal Madrid as
you visit the extravagant Palacio Real.

12:00pm: Group lunch at a restaurantin central
Madrid

Savour some authentic Spanish food for lunch
today. Traditional meals often consist of small
tapas plates or delicious paella.

4:00pm: Visit the Prado Museum
Explore the Museo del Prado which houses an
astonishing 3,000 paintings collected by Spanish
royalty. This massive building s constantly
expanding in order 1o accommodate its impressive
catalogue of Velazquez and Goya.

5:00pm: Time for dinnerin small, supervised
groups

With the support of the Tour Director, the Group
Leader will determine boundaries of where groups
can go during this time.

Page 65 of 160

7:00pm: Travel by private motorcoach to the
hotel in Madrid

9:00pm: Group Leaders end Chaperone team
will facilitate room checks and lights out

Day 4: Madrid | Toledo

6:00am: Wake-up call

T:00am: Breakfastat the hotel

8:00am: Travel by private metorcoach to
central Madrid or Toledo for those participating
in the optional activity

10:008m: Optional Activity - Toledo with
Ziplining Experience

This guided optional excursion takes you to
Toledo, the ‘city of three cultures." Explore its
diverse artistic and cultural legacy on a panoramic
drive around the city, stopping at the iconic
cathedral and the famed Church of Santo Tomé.
After seaing Toledo, ride Europe’s longest urban
zip-line over the Tagus River. Enjoy supervised
exploration time before returning to Madrid. Noha
Comfortable lking shoes are r

Duration is approx. 6 hours. Trovellers must weigh
below 2001bs to zip line.

5:00pm: Group dinner at a restaurant in central
Madrid

7:00pm: Travel by private motorcoach to the
hotel in Madrid

9:00pm: Group Leaders and Chapercne team
will facilitate room checks and lights out

Day 5: Madrid | Consuegra| Granads

6:00am: Wake-up call

7:00am: Breakfastat the hotel

8:00am: Travel by private motorcoach to
Granada via Consuegra

10:00am: Visit the Don Quixote Windmills

See the Don Guyjote Windmills Before continuing
to Granada, stop in the small town of Consuegra,
where you will view the Windmills of La Mancha.

12:00pm: Time for lunch in small, supervised
groups
With the support of the Tour Director, the Group


kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle


& 7:300m: Optional Activity ~ % £
 Evening

‘G Encounter the drama, rhythm, and heartbeat of
O Zpsin 8t en optionsl Flamence performence. Born
O Incfian, Moorish, Arabian and gypsy influsnces,
S Flamenco danca is a passionata blend of intricate
Chealwork and clapping, accompanied by songs
O and guitar,

9:00pm: Travel by private motorcoach 1o the
hotel

10:00pm: Group Leaders and Chaperons team
will facilitate reom ¢hecks and hights sut

Day &: Granads | Seville

&:00am: Wake-Up call

7:00am: Breakfastst Hotel

§:008m: Travel by private motorcoach to
centrel Granada

10:00am: Guided visit of the Alhambra

Wigit this magnificent complex that was originally
built ag a fortrass in 889 and [ater converted into a
royal palace in 1333 by Yusuf 1, Sultan of Granads.
Though it experienced long pariods of disrepair, it
was rediscovered and restored in the 19th century
by European scholars, The theme of Alhambra is
“paradise on earth,” and the gaometrical patterns
typical of Muskitn art are found in the arabasques
and tiles throughout the palace. (Flecse note e
visit includes the Gordens of Genenlfe, the
Summer Foloce, Alcorabo Fortress, the Meding
Amb baths, the Polace of Charles |V ontf the Partal
Paloce.)

12:00pm: Granada city challanga

After visiting the Alhambra, your kocal guide will
lead you on a scavenger hunt throughout the city.
Using rmaps, photogrephs and a list of challenges,
you will scour the city for some of Granada’s
hidden treasures.

1:00pm: Tims fer funch in small, supervised
groups

With the suppart of the Tour Director, the Group
Leader will determine boundaries of where groups
can go during this time.

Z:00pm: Travel hy private motercoach to Seville
Welcome to Seville, ¢ity of flamengo dancing,
Velazquez, Dorn Jusn and Carman, and the
heartbeat of Andatusian culture.

5:00prm: Group dinnerat the hatef in Seville

10:00pm: Group Leeders and Chaperona team
will facilitate room checks and lights out

Day 7: Sevifla| Costa del Sol

£:00am: Wake-Up call

T:00am: Brankfast ot Motel

6:008m: Travel by private motorcomch to
central Seville

10:00am: Guided sightsaeing of Savills

Hispalis, as Seville was called in Romman times,
rests on the banks of the Rio Guadalquivir and iz
Spain's only rver port, See the Old Tobacco
Fectory, setting of Bizet's opera, Cornen, and pass
the Plaza de Torps, one of Spain's praeminent
bullrings. Then, wisit Maria Luisa Park to view the
beautiful mosaics of Plaza de Espaiia, built for the
1B2Y |bero-Amarican Fair. Mext, walk through the
geranium-strawn aleys of the Bamio de Santa
Cruz, an aesthetic treat you'll always remember.
Ag you wind your way threugh this historic Jewish
Guarter, notice the whitewashed houses with
sand-colorad tim-this is typical of Sevilian-style
architacture. Top off your tour with & guided visit
to the Sevitle Cathedral, the world's third largest
churgh.

1:00pm: Time for lunch in small, suparvised
groups

With the support of the Tewr Director, the Graup
Leader will determing boundanes of where graups
can go during this time,

2:00pm: Walking tour of Seville

Join your Tour Dirgcter on 8 walking tour that wil
introduce you to Sevile, Together, you might see
the impasing Giralda Tower, the popular Flaza del
Sabvedor or Seville's historic defansive tower,
Torre det Oro, ovedaoking the Guadalguivir river.

3:00pm: Travel by private motorcoach 1o Costa
del Sal

Walcome to the cosmopolitan Costa def Sol. This
blue~skied coast is a treasure wove of smell coved
fishing villages and family holiday rezerts popular
with seafood lovers, water sports erthusiests and
beach-goars alike.

6:00pm: Group dinner at the hotel In Costa del
Sol

16:00pm: Gtoup Leaders and Chapsrona team
will facilitate rontm checks and fights aut

Day &: Costadsl Sol

€6:00am: Wake-Up call
7:00am;: Breskfast at Hotel
2:00am: Transfer from the hotel to Gibraltar

10:00am: Optionaf Activity - Fulf-day Excursion
to Gibraftar

Experience Gibraltar, 2 British territory siuated on
a 2.6-mile streteh of limestone that rises from the
entrance of the Mediterranean Sea. Youll visit the
Punta Europa to leam about natural ges
praduction, discover the paninsula's fascinating
network of caves and grotips, and ses the remaing
of the once deminating Moarish Castle, Get a
firsthand loak at the playful Barbary macagque-
Europe’s onby wilti mankey poputation- whie
taking in the spectacular views from the “Top of
the Rock™. From hare, glimpse the influsnce of
Britizh tradiars and merchants as you pecuse the
geods of Gibrahar's bustling shopping district.

5:00pm: Traval by private motorcoach to she
hotel

7:00pm: Greup dinnerat the hotel in Costadal
Sol

10:00pm: Group Leaders and Chapsrone team
will facilitete room checks and lights out

Tay 9: Depart for Home

d:30am: Wake-Up Call

5:50am: Breakfastat Hotel

6:30am: Transfer to the eirport for your ratam
flight

Your towr director assists with your transfer 1o the
airpurt, where you will check in for your reteen
flight home.

The itinerary i subpct o change,

For heim fnencinl and registrofion defols, pleass
refer o the Bopking Conditiong af oy b &

Page 66 of 160



ax, For on additional costadd the following
1-day extension:

Day 9: Costadal Sol

6:00an: Wake-Up call

T:00am: Breakfastat Hotel

8:00mm: Travel by private motoreoach to a locsl
village for a full-day excursion

10:00am; Spiritaf Andalusia

Frorn ralling hills to postcand-perfect pueblos, the
allure of Andalucla is hard to ignore. Your full-day
excursion beging o3 you explore whitewashed
villapes and centeries-old farmland spoited with
almond and oak trees. Hasd to a local factory to
taste the history, practicas, and flavors of regionat
olive ol predustion before continuing on 1o the
home of a local family to savor all kinds of
telicicus Andaluzian treats. Cap off your day at the
charming Hstoriz House Museurn, where you'lt
hava the chance 1o shop far kacal crafts.

5:00pm: Travel by private motorcoach to the
hote!

T:00pm: Group dinnar ot the hote! in Costadel
Sol

10:00pm: Group Lesders and Chapsrone team
will facilitate ropm checks and lights out

Day 10: Depart for Home

4:30am: Wake-Up Call

S¢Z0am: Broakfast at Hotel

6:3C0am: Tronsfer to the sirport for your retumn
flight

“Your tour directar assisis with your transfer to the
airport, whare you will chack in for your ratum
flight home.

The itinerary i3 subject (o change.

Far fate Frgnciol ongd registrolion detans, plies
refar o the Bovking Canditicas of sy,

s AN
,@Q’” EDUCATIGNAL
) TOURS ¥

The world leader in
international education

For aver 55 years, EF has been working toward
ons global mission: Cpening the World Through
Egucation. Your teacher has partnerad with EF
because of sur unmatched worldwide presence,
our focus on affordability, and our commitrment 1
providing experignces that teach critical thinking,
probiem-solving. collaboration, and global
competence.

THE EASIEST WAYE TO
ENROL TODAY

Enrel by phone
1-800-387-1460

Enrol by wabsite
eftours.casenrall

Enrol by mai}

EF Educational Tours

B0 Bloor Street West

Toranta, DN M55 2v1

© 2023 Bignum Intereational 4G
TICC-2305858 [ CPAC-7I907 | OPC: FO2732

Page 67 of 160




/ /,; \‘“ P. 68 of 160
((l{{@m EDUCATIONAL o
N\

Z TOURS %

Janurary 1%, 2023

Risk Management and Safety Plan

EF’s Risk Management and Safety Plan covers procedures, protocols, and roles and responsibilities for
known potential events that could occur while travelling both nationally and internationally. Due to the
extensive detail included in our plan, we have provided a summary of some of the key areas of our risk
management and safety plan below:

EF’s Risk Management, Safety Plan and Crisis Response Plan work together to
making safety the number one priority on all educational tours. EF’s network
countries with a staff of 52,000, enables us to respond to any concern, quickly
EF Emergency Service is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days of t
their parents/guardians, and Tour Directors.

Every EF Emergency Service staff member receives intensive training in comn
external), crisis management, and customer and supplier relations. Staff also
experience and receive continued training throughout the year. EF has a deta
information for all emergencies and on tour issues. Therefore, we have devell
protocol to ensure all situations are triaged to the right teams with the right s
and the level of support needed.

Action plan for missing students: Prior to the group departing for eat
activities, the Tour Director will provide them with his/her contact information, an itinerary,
and the contact information for each hotel the group stays at for the day. Detailed instructions
related to separation and/or missing students are provided at this time. If unscheduled time is
planned for the day, the Tour Director will work with the group to designate a meeting place.

Safety guidelines for using public transit: Prior to boarding public transit, the Tour Director will
review with travelers EF’s procedures for using public transit as a group. They will clarify where
the group is on a transit map, where they are going and which stop is the end destination.
Additional instructions are also provided to ensure that everyone understands what to do in
case of missed stops or group separation.

Alternate arrangement plan for flight delay / cancellation and/or arrival emergencies: EF has a
range of processes and procedures in place in the event that there are any issues that arise for
groups upon arrival in the country/city. Flight delays/cancellations are managed, and
communication protocol is followed, to minimize disruption.

Alternate arrangement plan for road travel: EF has a range aof processes and procedures in
place to minimize disruptions and maximize communication in the event that alternate
arrangements for road travel are needed.


kross
Rectangle

kross
Rectangle


Page 69 of 160

« Transport safety: Prior to a group embarking on a bus transfer, Tour Directors will provide
participants EF’s information on transportation safety. Additionally, Tour Directors complete
safety checks including, but not limited to, asking travelers to wear seat belts, reviewing
emergency exits, explaining proper luggage storage and reviewing COVID-19 health and safety
protocols {e.g. mask-wearing as per local regulations).

» Hotel and accommodation safety for students: Upon arrival at a hotel, Tour Directors will
provide participants EF’s development information and protocols on fire safety and egress in
the event of an emergency (i.e., highlight closest exits, establish a meeting place outside of
hotel]. They will alsa address security and personal safety. Any concerns related to hotel safety
will be escalated to the regional office and operations teams to address the issues as required.

o Detainment or immigration issues: In the event a traveler is detained for immigration issues,
they will be supervised by the Group Leader {Lead Educator) who will stay behind with the
traveler. A clear communication protocol will be followed to ensure that parents/guardians are
notified. EF will also help facilitate discussions with local embassies if necessary. EF will support
any additional logistics that may arise, such as securing new flights, flights for family, and
hotels.

« Individual and/or group behavior issues: Before departure and on tour, the Group Leader
(Lead Educatar) will set clear expectations for behavior on tour, including curfew, rules about
alcohol consumption, etc. The Group Leader (Lead Educator)} will be the one to take
disciplinary action should there be any infractions of the rules. The Tour Director is trained to
act as support in such situations. Should an individual and/or group be sent home, EF will
support any logistics required to return to the home destination.

» Crisis management related to minor and major inciklents: EF has a range of processes and
procedures in place to support students in the event of an incident, help secure any necessary
medical care, and notify and communicate with the student’s emergency contact. The

communication protocol is followed as well as steps related to follow-up care.

« Handling and reporting in case of weather and/or natural disaster: If a Tour Director hears of a
world issue (such as natural disaster, terrorism, bus/train accident, strike etc.} in an area where
they are on tour with a group, they are required to contact their Regional Office even if no
participants are involved and there is no direct effect on the tour at that time. EF’s global
support system (Regional Office, Operations Department and Montréal/Toranto offices) will
work together to deal with each world issue on a case-by-case basis taking inte consideration
the degree of the issue, the group’s location in reference to the event and its effect on global
travel.

e Maedical care and first aid: Al Tour Directors are familiar with the locations of the nearest
hospitals in each city visited. A list of sample hospitals for your specific destinations is available
upon request. If a school board requires an individual with first aid to be on tour, EF
recommends that the Growp teader [Lead Educator) or a chaperone be trained in First Aid.



Page 70 of 160

COVID Care: Prior to travelling, EF will ensure Group Leaders (Lead Educators) will be given up-
to-date information on all vaccination, masking, and testing requirements of the countries they
are visiting.

While on tour, EF requires all travelers to adhere to local health regulations. All our local staff
and your expert Tour Director will be ready to explain the guidelines of the destinations you are
travelling to. :

Prior to returning home from tour, if testing is required by federal or provincial policies, EF will
provide information about facilitating the testing process.

If a traveler is diagnosed with or requires quarantine because of CQVID-19 while on tour, EF will
provide or arrange for the following, consistent with local requirements, at no_additional
expense to the traveler throughout the duration of any on-tour quarantine period:

o o

o o o o Q

Ladging and meals

EF representatives are available to support the traveller and to coordinate with local
authorities on their behalf where necessary

Assistance connecting with local health care providers

Translation services

Communication between the traveller and the traveller’s family back home

EF arranged flights home, based on existing itinerary, for the traveller once cleared to return

If the diagnosed traveller is a minor, flights for their parent or guardian to join them at the
tour location

If a traveller or group is not diagnosed with, yet is required to quarantine because of COVID-19
while on tour, EF will provide or arrange for the following, consistent with local requirerments, at
no additional expense to the travellers throughout the duration of any on-tour quarantine

period:

o Lodging and meals

o EF representatives available to support the traveller and to coordinate with local authorities
on their behalf where necessary

o.- Asslstance connecting with lacal health care providers

o Translation services

o Communication between the traveller and the traveller’s family back home

o EF arranged flights home for the traveller or group once cleared to return



EF Educational Tours —
Global Travel Protection Plan
Certificate of Insurance

ZURICH'

Zurich Insurance Company Ltd (Canadian Branch) provides the insurange for this Certificate of Insurance under

Group Policy #8451414 issued to EF Travel Canada Ltd.

This certificate contains clauses which may limit the ampunts Payal.:le.

READ this Certificate CAREFULLY

Policy No. 8451414

Who to Contact

Zurich Insurance Company Ltd {Canadian Branch)
100 King Street West, Suite 5500, P.O. Box 290
Toronto, ON M5X 1C8

For information regarding the EF Educational Tours Insurance Program, please eontact:

EF Institute for Cultural Exchange Ltd. (also operating as EF Educational Toprs)
1 (B00) 263-2806
80 Bloor Street West, 16th Fioor Toronto, Ontario M5S 2V1

Emergency assistance while on Tour

World Travel Protection Canada Inc.
1-888-253-1627 toll-free within USA & Canada
1-416-250-2301 worldwide; collect calls accepted

Claims Handling:

Crawford & Company (Canada) Inc.
100 Milverton Drive, Suite 300
Mississauga, Ontario L5R 4H1
Attention: Zurich A&H Claim

Website: htlps:/ica-fnol.claims.alobalieftours
Email: newhumanriskelaims@craweo.ca

ZC-EFT-15055 U {0923)n

—
ige10f22

Table of Contents

Page 71 of 160

Who to Contact 1
Table of Contents 5
Global Travel Protection Plan — Schedule of Coverage 4
Maximum Compensation Payable” 4
General Information 5
Introduction 5
Protecting Your Personal Information 5
Eligibility for Coverage &
Application for Coverage ]
Cant ion of Coverage 6
Period of Coverage 8
Terms You Should Know 7
What to do if a Loss Occurs/How to File a Claim. g
Payment of Your Claim 10
If You do not Agree with the Outcome of Your Claim 11
lilness & Accident 11
Terms of Coverage 11
A, Medical Expense: 11
B. Emergency Home Evacuation 12
C. Family Member Reimbursement 12
D. Home Repatriation 12
E. Accidental Death 12
F. Accidental Disability 12
Exclusions 13
Baggage & Property 14
Terms of Coverage 14
G. Baggage & Property 14
aluable Property 15
H. Cash 15
|. Valuable Documents 15
Exclusions 15
Baggage Delay 16
Terms of Coverage 16
J.Baggage Delay 16
Exclusion 16
Tour Cancellation & Interruption 16
Terms of Coverage 16
K. Tour Cancellation 16
L. Tour Interruption £hd
M.School Board Tour C llation 18
N. Additional Costs for Return Home due to Violent Outbreak 18
0. Accommodation Extra Cost 18
P. Delay due to Theft of Valuable Documents 18
Exclusions 18
ZC-EFT-15055 U (09/23)a Page 2 0f 22


kross
Rectangle


General Provigion: 19
General Exclusions Relating to All Types of Coverage 19
Nuclear, Chamical, Biological Terrorism Exclusion Clause 20
Territory 20
Libetalization "
Limitalion of Actions 20
Applicable Law 20
Sanctions 20
Other Insurance and Subrogation 21
Complaint Procedures 21

Cancel For Any Reason {CFAR) Insurance Add-On 22
Eliyibility for Coverage 22
Application for Coverage 22
Cancellation of Coverage 2

ZC-EFT-15058 U (09/230 Poge3 of 22

Page 72 of 160

Global Travel Protection Plan — Schedule of Coverage

Maximum Compensation Payable®

ILLNESS & ACCIDENT
A, Medical Expenses Up to 51,000,000°
B.  Emergency Home Evaclation Up to $50,000""
C.  Famly Member Reimbursement Up to $50,000°
D.  Home Repatriation Up to $50,000™
+ Local Burial Up to §10,000
E.  Accidental Death Up ta §25,000
F  Accidental Disability Up to 535,000

BAGGAGE AND PROPERTY

G. Bapggage and Property Up 1o $2,800
+  Wajuable Property Up lo $1,400
H. Cash Up to 3400
R Valuable Documents Up lo $700
BAGGAGE DELAY
J. Baggage Delay Up to $75 every 24 hours ar part thereof, up o a maximom of

$225 (24 hour waiting period for Bagaage Delay)

TOUR CANCELLATION AND INTERRUPTICN

K. Tour Cancellation EF Tour price

L. TourInterruption Unusad part of EF Tour price™**
» Transportation extra cost Up to §1,400

M.  School Board Taur Cancellation EF Taur price

N. Additional Cosls far Return Home Up ta $2,500
dug to Viclent Qutbreak

0.  Accommodation Extre Cost Up ba $140 per day, up to a maximum of $800

P.  Delay due to Theft of Valuable Up o a maximum of $100 every 24 hours or part thereof,
Documenls up to a maximum of $500

* i You ars not coversd under 2 Canadian governmeni heath insurance plan on the date the claim is incurred,
reimbursement for eligible Medical Expenses incurred will be limited to @ maximum compensation of $50,000.

~ $50,000 is the combined maximum compensation for Bl Emergency Home Evacuation, G} Femily Member
Reimbursement and 0) Home Repatriation.

* Payments available under E} Accidental Death and F) Accidental Disabiiity are nof subject to a combined fimit
of coverage per Accident or injury and each provide separale fimits of coverage.

nenr S innged” means the Particioant’s financial foss of any whole, partial or procated prepaid *Hon-Refundable
Tour Payments.”

{f more than one claimant suffers a coverad Accidental Death in the same event on the same EF Tour, then ihe
insurance Company will Aot pay more than $10,000,000. If an event results in banefit amounts becoming
payable, which whan in folal, excead 510,000,000, then that amount wif be divided proporfionally among the
claimants,

All amounls shown are in Canadian dollars,

ZC-EFT-15055 U (05231 Pagednf 2



General Information
Introduction

This Cetlificate of Insurance is issued under Group Pollcy #8451414 undenwritten by Zurich tnsurance Company
Ltd (CanadianEmnch) issued to EF Travel Canada Ltd. {lhe "Group Pelicy Halder"), All Participants traveling
with an EF laur operalor who have entolied under the Group Policy and have received a Certificate of Insurance
are covarad for the insurance benefis described in this Cedificate of Insurance. You and any ciaimant under this
Certificate have the right, a3 determinéd by law applicable In Your province or teritory of residence, to obtain a
copy of the Group Palicy, upon request, subject ta cerlain access limitationw. The insurance benefit amounts are
set out on the Schedule of Coverage pege {paae 4). This Cerfificate of Insurance contains clauses

which may limit the amounts payable.

In the Group Policy and in the Certificate of Insurance {"Certificate™), certain words have specific and defined
meanings. For example, “Participant”, *You" and *Your" means the Partieipant travelling with an EF tour
operator, ths “Insurance Company” means Zurich Insurance Company LId (Canadian Branch), "EF” means EF
Educatianal Tours, and "EF Tour* means the trip Yeu have purchased through EF. Please refer to the Terms
You Should Know section below for other definitions.

You are expected to act responsibly and take all reasenable measures o prevent a loss of to fimit 2 loss already
incurred. This Certificate is designed to cover losses arising from sudden, unexpacled and unforeseeable
circumstances. 1t is important thal You read and understand Your Cerliicate before You travel, There are certain
steps You must follow to be sura that You receive the full benefits available to You. These steps are explained in
detail in the section below entitled What to do if a Loss OccursfHow ta File a Claim.

If You have any questions, You should contact EF or the Insurance Company. To file a claim, please cail 3
Claims Agent at one of the numbers provided on page 1.

Protecting ¥our Persanal Infarmation

By submitting the requested information, which may include, but is net limited o, name, address, date of birth and
medical information You are providing consent to Zunich Insurance Company Lid and its subsidiaries and
affiliales located in Your country of residency or abroad {collectively, "Zurich”), for the collaction, storage, use,
disclasure, and processing of Your personal information 5 may be necessary for the purposes of securing and
administering the requested insurance coverageds), Including bul not limited to, fsk evaluation, policy execution,
premium setting, premium collection, claims administration, Invesligalion and settlement, fraud detection, andtor
stalistical evaluation. You are also providing consent ta Zurich for the disclosure of Your personal information to
third parties, a3 required for and in relation to the above-stated purposes, including reinsurers, third party
administrators, brokers, agents, ctaims adjusters, regulators or other governmental or public bodies, taxing
authorilies, ather Insurers, and other third parties involved in providing insurance services ("Third Parties']. If
Your policy is being arranged by a broker or an agent, You authorize Zurich to collect, store, use, disclose, and
process personal information received fram such broker or agent In relation to the above-stated purposes.
Additionalty, by previding information atout a third party, inciuding but not limited to, a family mesmber, dirsctor,
officer, or employee, You hereby covenant and warrant that You have obtained the appropriate consent frorn
such third party to disclose their parsonal informetion to Zurich and for Zurich to use and disclose such
information for any of the above-stated purposes.

Zurich is commilted lo protecling the privacy and confidentizlity of information provided. Your personal
information may be processed by and is securely stored within the affices of Zurich and awthorized Third Parlies,
both in damestic and foreign jurisdlctians outside Canada and is subject to applicable laws.

Zurich may retain Your perseonal information ag needed for any of the above-stated purposes or as necessary to
comply wilh 2urleh’s legal and regulatary obligations, resalve disputes, and enforce Zurich’s agreements. You
may request ko review the personal information Zurich maintaing about You and make corrections by writing to:
Privacy Officer, Zurich Insurance Company Lid (Canadian Branch), 100 King Sireet West, Suite 5500, P.O, Box
280, Toronto, ON M5X 1C9 or by emailing privacy.zurich canada@zutich. com,

ZC-EFT-1 5055 T ((213)a FPage 5 of 12

Page 73 of 160

You may refuse lp consent or withdraw Your consent to the collection, storage, use, disclosure or processing of
Your personal information; however, Your refusal to provide consent may result in Zurich being unable to offer
and adrminisler insurance coverage or prevent Zurich from being able to pay claim benefits.

Flease conlact the Zurich Privacy Orficer if You require further information regarding the collection, usa,
dizclosure, processing and slorage of Your personal information or if You have any complainta via eémail at

tivacy.zurich, canada@zurich.com, Yau can also review our Privacy Policy at hitps:fhwww, zurichean ada comien-
calaboul-zurich/privacy-staternent. Far the purpose of Lhe fnsurance Companies Act (Canada), this document was
fssued in the course of the Company's insurance business in Canada.

Sfon B

Head af Undanriting, Canada
Authorized raprasentalive

Eligibility for Coverage

To be ellglble for coverage under the Global Trave! Protection Plan, You must meet the following conditions:
A} You are enrolled on an EF Teur,
B} You are aresident of Canada; and

C) You are travelling to any country worldwide excluding Iran, Syria, Sudan and North Korea,

Applicatlen for Coverage

When You enrgll on Your EF Tour, You will be enrolled under the Group Policy for coverage under the Global
Travel Frotection Plan. You may call EF ko opt out of coverage within 30 days after You enrolled on Your EF
Tour,

Yau can apply for the Global Travel Prokection Plan up to 30 days after You enrcll on Your EF Tour, except for
certain separate coverages as describad below,

You can apply for the coverages under the Group Policy separately: Tour Cancellation and |nterTuption coverage
can only be purchased up lo 30 days after You enrall Your EF Tour; and Accident & liness, Bagpage and
Property, and Baggage Delay coverage can be purchased up unlil 1 day prior to departure of Your EF Tour.

Cangellation of Coverage

You cen cancel the insurance from Your EF Tours account up bo 30 days after Yeu are enrolled under the Group
Folicy or provide payment of the pramium, whichever day is the latest, unless You have submitted a ciaim for the
EF Tour. After this time Ihe premium paid by You for the insurance is not refundadle. The cost of the insurance is
get out in Your EF Tours invoice,

Period of Coverage

Coverage provided by the Accident & finess, Baggage & Froperly, Bagoage Defay and Tour Inierruption
sectlans of this Cerifizate is as follows:

Coverage begins from e moment You leave Your home to travel via direct roule to the start of Your EF Tour,
Coverage ends at the earllest of the following dates:

» when Your EF Tour has ended {including the time it takes You to lrave! via direct route o Your city of
residence immadiately after Your EF Tour ends);

ZC-EFT-130%55 U{(¥23)a Pagedof22



+ when You leave the EF Tour early if it is prior to lhe& end of Your EF Tour; and
« when You return to Your city of rasidencs.

If You have grganized an optional EF stay ahead or stay behind coverage starts and ends based on Your
requesled travel dates organized by EF.

If the return from Your EF Tour |s delayed or Interrupted for reasons covered by this Certificate, coverage 1s
extended unlil You return to Your city of residence, If You are unable to lravel due to a medical condition at the
time when Your EF Tour ends, coverage is extended for up to 30 days or until Your Doctar conflrms that You
are ahle 1o fravel, whichever comes first, subject to the terms and ponditions of this Certificate.

Coverage provided under the Tour Canceliatfon section of this Certificate begins on the day EF recsives

payrnent of the premium and ends at the time of departure of Yaur EF Tour of when You cancel Your EF Tour,
whichever date is earllest,

Tarms You Should Know
Accident

Accident means a sudden, unexpected and unforeseeable cause of injury from an external source that cocurs
while You are covered under this Certificale.

Act of Terrorism

Act of Terrorlstm means an act or acts including, but not limited o, the use of force or viclence andfor the threat
Ihereof, including Infimidating or temrorizing any govemment, group, assoclation or the general public, for religious,
political or ldeokgical reasons or ends, or any attempt thereat, and does nol include any Act of War,

Act of War

Act of War means war, whether declared or not, or any warlike actlvily, including using military force to achieve
economie, geographic, nationalistic, pulitical, racial, religious or other goals,

Assault
Unprovoked intentional physical violence.
Claims Agent

The agent shown in the Claims Handling section of Who to Cortact who will handle the claim process for this
Certificate.

Common Carrier

Comman Carrier means any land, water or alr conveyance that Is licensed to carry passengers without
discrimination and for bire, excluding courtesy transportation provided without a specific charge.

Covered Trip means a brip You undertake during the Period of Coverage

Covid-13

The coronavirus disease (COWVID-18) caused by the severe acube respiralory syndrome coronavirus 2 {SARS-
Cov-2). .

Docter { Physician

A qualified persen who [5 a doctor of medicine, surgenn, osteapalhy, psychology or other legally gualified
practitionar of a hegelng art that are recognized by law, who is

1. licensed to practice in the jurisdiclion where care is being given;

ZC-EFT-13055 U {0820 Poge Tol12

Page 74 of 160

2. practicing within the scope of that license; and

3. not Your Immediate Family Member,

Dizabillty

Pemnanent l0ss or reducllon of bodily funclion as the result of an Accident.
Famity Member

Your spouss, legal guardian or ward, son or daughter (includes adopted, foster, step or In-law), brother or sister
{includes step o In-law), parent {includes step or in-law), grandparent (includes In-law}, grandchild, aunt, uncle,
niece or nephew, domestic partner, caregiver, or child caregiver.

Haspital

An institution that: 1) oparales as a hospital pursuant to taw for the care, treatment, and providing of inpatient
sarvices for slek or injured persons; 2) provides 24-hour nursing service by registered nurses on duty or call; 3)
has a staff of one or more licensed Doctors available at all imes: 4) provides organized facilities for diagnosis,
treatmant, and surgery, either: (i on its premises; or (i) in facilites available to it, on a prearranged basis; 5 is
not primarily @ nursing care facility, rest home, convalescent home, or similar establishment, or any separate
ward, wing, or section of @ hospital used as such; and B) is not a place dedicated to the care and treatment of
drug addicts, aleoholics, or the aged.

Haspitalizatlon or Hospitalized means to be an inpatient in a8 Hospital.
liness

Bodily slckness ar diseass that begins while You are a covered under this Certificate and which causes a luss
covered by this Cerllficate.

Injury

Injury means skdden bodily harm directly caused by exlernal and Accidental means and that Is Independent of
all other cauzes, including [iness or disease.

Medically Necessary

A treatment, service, or supply that is: 1} required to treat an injury or sickness; 2) prescribed or ordered by 2
Doctor or futnished by a Haspital; 3) performed in the least costly setting required by Your condition; and 4)
cansistent with the medical and surglcal practices prevailing in the area for treatment of the condition at the time
rendered, Purchasing or renting 1) air condltioners; 2) alr purifiers; 3) motorized transportation equlpment; 4)
escalators or elevators In private homes; 5) eyeglass frames or lenses; 6) hearing aids; 7) swimming pools or
supplles for them; and B) general exercise squipment are not Medically Necessary. A service or supply may not
be Medically Necessary if a less intensive ar more appropriate diagnostic of trsatment alternative could have
been used, We may consider tha cost of the aiternative to be the covered expense.

Medical Condition

Medizal Condilon means any liiness, Injury, o disease, or symplom or complications of pregnancy within
the first 31 weeks of pregnancy.

Non-Refundable Tour Pay

Al prepaid amounts You paid directly for the EF Tour at the time of cancellation, elther n whole or on a partial or
prorated basis, for which ne refund is payable ta You excluding nen-refundable service fees and any non-
refundable insurance premium. Non-Refundable Tour Payments do net include any value applied to Your
accaunt through redemption of & future travel veucher.

ZC-EFT-T5055 U {09220 Popefof 22



Pre-axisting Condlticn

Any Nlness or other condition during the 180-day period immediately prior to the coverage effective dale for which
You either &) received, or received a recommendation for, & fest, examination or medical treatment for a
condltion which first manifested itself, worsenad or became scute or had symploms which would have prompted a
reasonable person to seek diagnosis, care or treatment; or b} took or received a prescription for drugs or
medicine. |tem b) of this definitien does not apply 1o a conditipn which is treated or controlied solely through the
taking of prescription drugs or madicing and remalns freated or controlled wilhout any adjustrent or change in the
required prescription throughout the 180-day period before coverage is effective.

R bie and Cust y Gharges

The usual fees for services charged by professionals in the geographical area in which they practise.

School Beard & Associations

School Boards, Privale School Trustee, or Associations with a regulatory administrative body that is separate to
Lhe trip organizers and that is authorlzed by the travelers to make tour cancellation and other decisions related to
Ihe EF Tour on the insured traveler's behalf,

Treatment

Treatment means Hospitalization, medical, therapeutic, diagnostic of surgical services or procedures prescribed,
performed or recommended by a Physician or other licensed medical practilionar including, bul not limited to,
prescribed medication, investigative testing and surgery refated to any Medical Condition, Injury, or lliness.

Unforesean Reasons

A covered reason which is sudden, not anticipated or expected and first ocourring after the effective date of
coverage.

Valuable Documents
Inludes passports and visas.
Vehicle

Vehicle means any private or rental passenger automobile, moboreycle, mobile home, camper truck or trailer that
You Uses during a Covered Trip exclusively for the transportalion of passengers other than for hire.

War

Hostile or warlike action, whether declared or nol, In a time of peace or war, whether inftiated by a local
government, farsign government or forelgn group, civil unrest, insurrection, rebeilion or clhvil war.

We, Us, and Qur refers te Zurich Insurance Company Ltd (Canadian Branch).
What fo do if a Loss OceursfHow to File a Claim

If 2 loss weeurs, You should file a claim promptly, You should respond to all inguiries and follow any instructions
provided by the Insurance Company or Claims Agent. [n addition:

1. Take the necassary steps to prevent ot minimize a further loss.

2. Document the ciaim details by outlining the time, place and circumnstances, the extent of the loss and the
names and addresses of avalable wilnesses.

ZC-EFT-15055 V{0923 )0 Foge ¥ of22

Page 75 of 160

3. For property ioss, obtain a police report, receipls, warranly documenls or any notes from authorities. If Your
property was lost or damaged while registered with an aiding or other carrier, hoted, ravel agency, spa or
sports establishment, You must immediately notify that entity and obtaln a report.

4, Do whatever is necessary to secure or enforce any right of recovery of any expenses or the property from
Ihose involved in causing or creating a loss of or damage to the property.

5. For medical expense or a claim arising from an accident, oldain medical care receipts and reports showirg
diagnosis and treatment periods, and other relgvant information about the Niness or injury. You must notify
the Claims Agent Jn the event of an Accident, injury or llliness as soon as possible and no later than
30 days after Your initial treatment, or, if You are a Quebec resident, within the year of the Accident,
injury ar lliness If You prove Your Impossibility to act within 30 days after Your initial treatment.

6. Inthe event that You need to cancel or interrupt Your EF Tour, tentact EF and the Claims Agent as
soon as reasonably possible after the event which the Tour C. llation or Tour interruption.
You will need to provide the following information:

a. Your name, address and telephone number;

b. proof of methad of payment;

€. our numbes and account number;

d.  documenbation detaling the reason for Lhe cancellation or interruplion of Your EF Tour;

e. original itemized bilis, receipts, and proof of cther insurance paymenls;

f.  copies of invoices, procf of payments, and other documents (hal substantiate the cost of the trip;

g. copies of invoices, account stalement, and other documentation of refunds received andfor the non-
refundable amounts of the trip costs from the Group Policy Holder,

h. copy of Ihe booking conditions;
| any other document requested by the Claims Agent.

7. Complelz a Claim Form and attach all the documentation {including but not limited to bills, medical repeors,
death certificate, polive or Insurance reporls, receipts, etc.). Send the Claim Form 1o the Claims Agent as
soon as possitle and latest within one year of the time of the loss. |f You wait longer than one year, Your
claim may not be paid.

If You fail o comply with the above provisions without a reasonabie explanalion satisfactory 1o the Insurance
Company, the Ins Company shall nol be liable under this Certificate in case of non-compliance for such
portions of the ios5 as the Insurance Company deems You would have recovered by enforcement of Your right
of recovery, The Insurance Company will pay: () such portion of the expense incurred for taking steps 1o
pravent or minimize further extension of loss, as desmed by the Insurance Company to have been necessary ar
effective; and (b} expense necessarily incurved for securlng or enforcing Your right of recovery.

The Insurance Company will not be liable under this Certificate in the event You fall to comply with the
requirements of providing proof of Your claim in the time period set oul in this Certificate or You make 2 false
staterment in the doguments provided to the Claims Agent, or Yeu commil or You have anolher person or
persons commit forgery or alteration of such documents.

For further assistance or Claim Forms, conlact the Claims Agent,

Payment of Your Claim

Payment of Your claim, if applicable, will be made to You; if You are deceased at lhe time the claim payment is
made, [he payment will be made {o Your estate. Any benefits thal are payable to a minor will be pafd 1o the
minor's legal parent or guardian,

ZC-EFT-15055 U {09205 Poge 100f22



This Certificate contains 2 provision removing or restricting the right of Participant to designate persons
to whom or for wh benefit i e money is 1o be payable.

If You do not Agree with the Quteome of Your Claim

If You file a claim and do not agree with the claim declslon, Yeu have six months to notify the Claims Agent in
writing that Yau wanl to appeal the claim decision, Send Your appeal to the Claims Agent on page 1 In this
Cerlificate.

liness& Accident

Terms of Coverage

The Insurance Company will pay Medieally N Rl ble and Customary Charges up to the
maxlmum arnount shown in the Schedule of Coverage for Medma[ Expenses and up to the combined maximum
amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage for Emergency Home Evacuation, Family Member Reimbursement
and Home Repatriation {and other care and supplies as described beiow) relating to an Mness or an Accident
which ocgurred during an EF Tour, subject to the terms and condltions of this Cerificate. The |liness or Accldent
must have occurred during the period of coverage. Faymenls will be made for expenses for treatment carried out
during the period of coverage. This Certificate does nat pay for any expenses efigible for reimbursement by other
means, including, but not limited to, reimbursemant svalable under other insurance pollcles or governmenl-
sponsored programs.

The lliness & Accident section of this policy also contains beneflts for Medical Expenses under subsection A and
Accidentat Death and Accidental Disability under subsecfions E and F, These benefits are not subject to &
combined limit of coverage any provide their own separate limits of coverage,

The Insurance Company reserves the right to decide whather dical treatment following an Hiness or
Accident should be provided In the host or home country,

A, Medical Expenses

The Insurance Company will reimburse You, or in the event of death, Your estate, for the following acute,
necessary Reasonable and Customary Charges up to the amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage for
treatment provided during the period of coverage, for Niness or Accidant

«  Outpatient Doctor's visits for non-routing care and inpatlent hospita)l treatment;

+  Preseription drugs and supplies — prescriptions written by a Doctor as treatment for 2 coversd liness or
Accident;

v Physical therapy expenses for a covered lliness or Accident are covered if You have been referred by 2
Dactor and it has been pre-approved by Lhe Claims Agent;

« Chiropractic care, acupuncture treatment or other slternative medicine practices up to a total maximum
of $1,400 [f You have been referred by a Dactor as treatment for a covered lliness or Accident;

+ Dental care — if Your sound and natural teeth are injured in an Accidgent during an EF Tour, You will
receive full reimbursement for temporary treatment by a dentist. For any other acute and necessary
dental treatment {not including orthodantic treatment), You are eligible for a total maximum benefit of
$300 during the period of coverage:

« Reasonable locsl travel expenses o a Doctor's office or hospital, but only when that ravel wag
necessary lo obialn medical or dental treatment relating lo a covered Niness or Accident which occurred
during an EF tour; and

+ Telephone costs in relation to a covered claim, up fo 375, other than for tetephone calls to EF, the Claims
Agent or the Insurance Company.

Page 76 of 160

B. Emergency Home Evacuation

If You have a life-threatening condition relating to an lliness or Accident fat is covered and not excluded by
Ihls Certificate, and if You are unable to return on the scheduled EF flight due to such life-threatening
condltion, You will be reimbursed, up to the amaount shown in the Schedule of Coverage, for the additional
costs incurred for Yoor own transporiation, f Your Doclor recommends that You return home earller or laler
due to such life- threatening condltion and not with Your EF Tour.

The Claims Agent must, wherever reascnably possible, pre-approve the necessity to return home and
the made of transportation. Without a pre-approval, costs will be compensated according to the necessity
and reasonableness of the measures taken and the costs incurred, 43 deemed by the Insurance Company.
The Insurance Company will not pay for the cost of a return to the place where the tour was interrupled.

C. Family Member Reimbursement

If You are confined In a hospltal autside Your country of residence relaling to an lness or Accident that is
covered and not excluded by this Certificate and Your Dector requires the personal attendance of a Family
Mamber, or if You decease outside Your country of residence due to an lliness or Accident that is covered
and rot excluded by this Certiicate and the presence of a Famlly Membar is required by the police ora
similar governmental autherity, You or Your estate can be reimbursed, up (o the amount shown in the
Schedule of Coverage, for two round-trip airplane tickets and aceommodations for two Family Members from
Your home country to join You, Costs for accommodation for Your Family Member(s) will be reimbursed for
up to 30 days from lhe time of Your first visit to the Doctar or hospltal, or until Your Doctor certifies that
Your conditian s stable and the danger of death or deterleration 1s not imminent, whichever comes first. The
costs incurred for accommodation will be reimbursed at the average holel rate for the city in which You are
located and a daily allowance of $50 per person will be paid,

The Clzlms Agent must, wheraver reasonably possible, pre-approve the necessity of Your Family
¥Member to visit You, the mode of transpartation and the costs involved. Withoul a pre-approval, costs
will be compensated accordlng to the necess[’ry and reascnableness of the measures taken and the cosls
incurmred, as d d by the | pany.

D. Home Repatriation

1f You die and Your death was cauzed by an liness or Aceident that |s covered and not excluded by Ihis
Certificate, Your eslate will be reimbursed, up to the amount shown in he Schedule of Coverage for the
expenses to retum Your body to Your city of residence, or if Your famlly so desires, the Insurance
Company will pay up 10 he amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage for local buriel in the country where
the death oceurred fexcluding burial in the home country).

The Claims Agent must, wherever reasonably possible, pre-approve and provide the transpartation.
Without & pre-approval, casts will be compensated according to the necessity and reasonablengss of the
measures taken and the costs incutred, as deemed by the Insurance Company.

eath

In Ihe event of Your death, as a resull of an Accident which occurs during the period of coverage while
participating in an EF Tour, the Insurance Company will pay Your eslale the lump sum benefit ameunt shown
in the Schedule of Coverage. Your death must occur within 365 days flom lhe Accident.

F. Actidental Disabilty

If You sustaln a Disabillty as a result of an Accldent which occurs duing the pericd of coverage while
participating in an EF Tour, the Insurance Company will pay up to lhé amount shown in the Schedule of
Coverags, regardiess of the number of injuries You incur from the same Accident, depending on the extent of
Your Disability, Your Disability must ocour within 365 days from the Accident.

The degres of Disabllity is determined by the impairment percentage assigned by 2 Doctor. The impairment
value is expressed as a percantage taking into account the body pari(s) permanently impaired as that part(s)
related to Your wholg person. The Doctor will determine the impairment value by use of the American Medical

ZC-EFT-15055 U (0w Poge 11 of22

ZC-EFT-13055 U (232 Page L2 ol 22



Association's "Gulde to Evaluation of Permanent Impairment” most currant at the time of clalm. ff You had a
Pre- existing Condltion priar to the Accident, the impaimnent value of the Pre-existing Condition will be
deducted from the impairment value calculated after the Accidant, The amount of Your benefit will be
determined solely by the extent of Your injury and not by Your ability or inabliity to work,

Ir orger for You to receive benefits due to & Disability, an Accldent must lead to a Disabllity within cre year
from Ihe date of the Accident, No payment for any Disability benellt shall be due or payable until at least 30
days have passed fram the date of the receipt of the required proof of loss. As soon as the definile degree of
Disability is determined, payment pursuant to this Cerlificate will be paid with a lump surn representing such
portion of the sum covered as corresponds lo the degree of Disability.

If the same Accident has resulted in injuries on several parls of Ihe body, benefits will be paid with a
calculated degree of Disability of a maximum of one hundred percent {(100%).

Exclusions

The following medical, dental, travel and olher expenses are not covared by this Certificate:

»  Medical costs lo the extent they can be indemnified by other means, including buf not limited to ancther
:Insurance policy, government-sponsared program, by reason of law or other decrees or conventions;

v All expenses resulling frorm or relating to treatment dus to mental or psychological health disorders, including
gating disorders of treatment of physical symptoms resulting fram or refated to mental or psychological
health disorders, inciuding eating disorders;

*  All expenses for treatment o prescription drugs relaled to a Pre-existing Conditlon;

s Al expenses for emergency home evacuation and family member reimbursement related to a Pre-existing
Conditien or a mentalf psychologica! health disorder;

s Al expenses dirsctly resulting from or relating Lo the abuse of alcohsl, sleeping piils, narcotics or other
Intoxicants or retaling to treatment for the abuse of altohe!, sleeping pills, narcotics or other intoxicants,
exeept when used as prescribed by a Doctor;

+ Al expenses resulting from or relating to treatment of acne;

+ Al expenses resulting from of relating o taktoas, plercing and any other unnatural bodily change such as
implants, Botox injections etc.;

+ Al expanses resulting from o relating o treatment due to a suicide, suicide atternpt, criminal act or vilent
behaviour on Your part;

s« Maternity sxpenses or any Hiness or treatment connected with pregnancy, Including complications of
pregnancy;

s All expenses resulting from or relating to treatment that was required bafore the effective date of this
Cerlificate and would have made a prudent person saek care prior to such effective date;

+  All expenses resuliing from or refating to treat t for HIV di or AIDS or any condillan refated thereto;
« Al expenses resulling from or relating to endemic diseases, epidemics or pandemics of infectious diseases of
whatsoever nature when ihe Government of Canada has Issued a Level 3 or Level 4 health-related travel
advisory dug lo that specific Infectious disease prior to departure for the counlry or a raglon of the country that

is a desfination on Your EF Tour. This exclusion does not apply to claims for an emergenay or 2 medical
condition unrelated to the fravel advisory or to clalms Incurred for COVID-19;

«  All expenses resulting from or relating io orthodontic treatment;

+ Al expenses resulting from or refating bo routing health and dentai care, such as physical exams,
vaceinationsfinoculations, dental and orthodantic check-ups of rouling eye exams;

« Al expensas for elective treatment meaning medical treatment which is not necessitated by a pathalogical
change in the function or structure in any part of the body, Elective treatment includes but is nol limfted lo
tubal ligation, vasectorny, breast reguction, sexual reassignment surgery, submucous resection oifand any
other surgionl corraction for deviated nasal septum, other than necessary treatment of covered acute
purulent sinmgiliz, treatment for welght reduction, leaming disabilities, kmporemandibular joint (TMJ}
dysfunclion, #nmunizatlon vaceines and routing physical examinations;

ZC-EFT-15055 U (@32 Poge 130122

Page 77 of 160

+  Af| expenses resulting from or relating to Accidents resulting from or refaled 1o extreme sports, including but
not limited 10: scuba diving to depths of more than 130 feet; skydiving: hang-gliding o para-gliding;
parascending ather than over waler; bungee jumping; mountaineering or rack climbing normally requiring the
use of guides or ropes; or caving, unless these activitles are a part of Your EF tour and have been pre-
organized by the EF Tour operator;

»  All expenses resulting from or refating 1o Injuries caused by the use of firearms discharged by You;

s  All expenses resulling from injuries due be an exposure o imminent risks of bodily injury, or injuries dug o a
criminal act committed by ¥ou or act of aggressive viclance initiated by You;

s Al expanses resulting from or relating bo injuries caused by professional manual labour andfor while carrying
out any activity for which You receive or intend to receive a fee, payment, wage or any other source of
revenue;

« Al refated trave] costs if a ship or airplane is forced to change its route because of Your lliness or injury due
io Accident;

* Al expenses for eyeglasses or conlact lenses;

»  Private nursing home expenses;

« Spa or health resort expenses; and

s Expenses beyond those that are Reascnable and Customary Charges.

Baggage & Property
Tem: arage

The Insurance Company will reimburse You in the manner and amounts describad below in the event Your
baggage andfor other property is stolen or damaged. This coverage is subject to the limitations described herein
and in the sections Period of Coverage and Exciusions.

In order to be fully reimbursed, You must be careful with Your property and take all reasonable measures not to
expose Your property to the risk of being stolen or damaged.

G. Baqnage & Property

‘The Insurance Compary will pay up to the amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage per incident, including
Valuable Property up to the amourt shown in the Schedule of Coverage, if Your personal belongings are slolen
or damaged due to Accident, breaking and entering, Assault, fire, storm, catastrophe, or traffic accident. This
coverage also applies to itemns that You have rented or borrowed for Your personal use while participating on an
EF Tour.

You must report the loss or theft to the local police department and file a police report or the transport carrier
within 24 hours of discovery. The amount of less the Insurance Company is liable to pay shall be determined in
accordance with the Insurance Company's determination of the value of the property, evaluated at the place and
lime of such loss {taking inte consideration depreciation due to wear and tear).

If the: damaged property is restorable or repairable, the amount of loss shall be the cost to repair the proparty 10
the condition at the time immediately before the damage, but in no case shall this cost exceed the value of the
property as determined by the Insurance Company.

If an item that is part of a set is stolen or damaged. You will be covered for that item only and not for the entire
set

Ir addition to the coverage for loss or damage set out above, the Insurance Company will pay for loss of or
damage to Your parsonal belongings when an airline, hotel, trave] agency, spa or spors establishmeant has faken
responsbllity 1o keep or transport [abelied items for You and when Yaur property has been lost or demaged and
Your claim has been denied by the airdine, holel, lravel agency, spa or sports establishment.

ZC-EFT- 15055 U (D130 Page M 0§22



Valuable Property

Waluable property is defined as items with an individual value sxceeding $150 per iter and Include the following:
iterns made of precious metals, genuine pearls or precious stones, anliques, works of ar, precious carpets,
pocket and wrist watches, fur coats and other fur products, cameras, profectors, telephones, binoculars, wine,
liquor, music players and other musgical equipment, radios, lelevislons, computer equipment, collections of CDs
and record albums. Valuable property (5 reimbursable up to the maximum amourrt shown in the Schedule of
Coverage per incldent of loss or theft. Mobile phones {including smart phones) and mpd players are raimbursable
up to 2 maximum of $300, and cameras are reimbursable up o a maximum of $700.

H. Cash

The Insurance Company will reimburse You up to the maximum amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage for
less of cash due to theft, Accldent, damage due to breaking and entering, Assault, fire, storm, catastrophe, or
traffic accident,

. Valuable ni

The Insurance Company wilf reimburse You for out of porket expenses up to the maximum amount shown [n
the Schedule of Coverage, related 1o thefl or damage of a Valuable Document, due to Accident, breaking and
ehtaring, Assault, fire, storm, catastrophe, or traffic accldent.

Excluslons

This Pelicy does not insure or cover any damage 1o or 10ss or theft of;

s Any property l2i behind, lost or mislaid, even if the praperty bas been stolzn afler You have left it
somewhers;

s Any property leflinan unlocked hotel room, domnilery room, boarding house room, passenger cabin, sleeping
car, bus or car;

»  Any property left behind overnight in any means of transport, If property is termporarlly left in means of
transport during daytime, the property must be locked In a frunk which is inaccessible from the interior or
locked in a glove compartment;

s Any cash, valuable propetdy (jewslry, cameras, laptopsiPads and similar however not including mabile
phones) of Valuable Documents not caried an You of not kept [0 a locked device when You are absent:

s Any cash, valuable property or Valuable Documents laft in tents, cars, buses, boats, caravans, trailers or
any other means of ransport;

s Any cash, valuable property or Valuable Documents checked in with an airline;
* Any weapons;

+ Any damage due ko scraping or wear and tear;

« Superficial damage to suittases that does not affect their use;

+ Damage to property thal cccurs from nermal wear and tear, rusting, moulding or discoiouration, or any
damage that might affect the appearance but does not affect the function of the propery;

+  Marring, scratching, peellng of paint or any other damage to the appearance of the property nat resulting in
loss of its function;

s Any damage due to Improper packing;

s Any damage from [iquid that flowed out from a packed container;
» Animals;

» Molor-driven vehicles, caravans or trailers;

+ ‘Water-going vessels {except windsurfing boards);

+  Howvercrafts, hydroplanes or any other aircraft;

ZC-EFT.15055 U (0232 Page 150722

Page 78 of 160

+  Parts or equipment to such vehleles and crafts that are excluded as aforementioned, f the parts or the
eguipment can be coversd by & motor vehicle, boat or aircraft insurance policy:

»  Any damage that will be pzid for through another insurance pelicy or reimbursed from anather source.
» Perishable Rems, bikes thak are nol checked as baggage with the Common Carrier;

»  Household ltems, furnilurey artificlal teath or Limbs, hearing alds, eyeglasses of any type, contact lenses,
securities, documents: andl

s Mems relaled to Your ocoupation, antiques or collector tems, tems that are fragile, items that are obtained
illegally, or articles that ane insured on a valued basis by another [nsurar.

In addition, all indirect costs fallowing a loss or theft are nol coverad,

Baggage Delay
Terms of Coverane

The Insurance Company will feimburse You in the manner and with the amounts described below, in he event
of a baggage delay. This coveige is subjact to the limitations described herein and in the sections Perlod of
Coverage and Exclusions,

J. Baggage Delay

The Insurance Company will pay, against receipls, up to the maximum amount shown in the Schedule of
Coverage for necessary and reksonable replacement costs of clothing and personal hygiens items relating lo and
asscciated wilh baggage delay in excess of 24 hours at the airport for all EF flights except lhe return flighl to Your
departure point. Your baggage must be registered on departure in order for benefits to be paid by the Insurance
Company.

Exclusion

+ This Policy does not cover any claim that will be paid for through angther insurance policy or by any other
responsible party, alrline of bus carrier.

Tour Cancellation & Interruption

Terms of Coverage

The Insurance Company will freimburse You in the manner and with the ameunts described below (excluding
any nen-refundable insurance premiurms) in the event Your EF Tour is cancelled or Interrupled due to any of the
belaw mantioned Unforeseen Reasons. The event or Accident causing You, Your School Board, or Association
1o cance! or interrupt Your EF Tour must have occurred during Your period of coverage. The Tour Interruption
benefits will anly be granted once for the nass or Accldent of any one Famity Member.

In prder for You to obtain Tour Cancellation benefits the Claims Agent and EF must be notified in wriling or by
lelephone of the need o cancel Your tour, If the event which causes the cancellation occurs 120 days or more
before Your departurg en Your EF Tour, You must netify the Claims Agent and EF no [ater than 110 days
before Your departure on Yous EF Tour, If the event which causes the cancellation oceurs less than 120 days
before Your departure on Your EF Taur, You must notify the Claims Agent and EF as soon as reasonably
possible after said event and in all cases before Your departure In grder for Yeu to obiain Tour Interruption
benefits, the Claims Agent must pre-approve the nacessity to return ko Your city of residence prior to the Tour
Interruption. Without a pra-approval, costs will be compensated according to the r ity and raasonabl of
the measuras taken and e costs incurred, as desmed by the Insurance Company.

K. Tour Cancellation

Under the terms of this insurance, a refund of the amounts descrlbed below will be issued, should You or Your
parent or legal guardlan cancel Your EF Tour due {o the following Unforeseen Reasons:

ZC-EFT-15055 U {97235 Page 160128



A, Your death, if Your death accurs before Your deparlure on Your EF Tour;

b. Your liness or Accident fexcluding mental or psychological health disorders or eating disarders) which
oecurs before Your departure on Your EF Tour and requires medical treatment at Llhe time of
cancellation and is so disabling as to prevent Your participation in Your EF Tour and for which Your
Doctor has advised against travel:

¢. You being hospitalized as an in-patient for mental or psychological health disorders, including eating
disarders which occurs before Your departure on Your EF Tour and requires medical treatment at the
time of cancellalion and is o disabling &3 to prevent Your participallan in Yeur EF Tour and for which
Your Doctar has advised against ravel;

d. An llness or Accident [eading to hospitalization or death of a Family Member which occurs before
Your departure orr Yeur EF Tour,

e. You being required to serve on a jury, subpoenaed {except if You are the defendant), aclivated into
miflitary service, or having Your home made uninhabitable by fire or floed or olher natural disaster;

f.  You being direclly imeolved in a traffic accident en route to the departure of an EF Tour, 25 substantiated
by a police report; or

g. Your parenl or legal guardian experiencing involuntary termination or layoff of permanent employment,
not including contract or self-employment, when actively employed with the same employer for at least §
months pricr to the effective date of Your coverage under this Certificate.

h, Your parent or [egal guardian are transferred by their employer which requires You to move from Your
principal residence, causing Your new pringipal residence fo be outside of Your current Schoot Board

region,

i. Confirmed PCR positive COVID-19 within 5 days of departure, and regulations in Canada or Deslination
Countles will not allow You {o travel.

| You have to cancel Your EF Tour dug 1o any of Lhe above covered reasons, the Insurance Company will
reimburse You for the Non-Refundable Teur Payments up to the maximurn compensation amount shawn on lhe
Scheduls of Coverage (page 4), {excluding the nen-refundable insurance premium).

.. Tour Interruption

Under the terms of this insurance, a refund of the amounts described below will be issuad, should You die or be
forced I interrupt the EF Tour due to:

a, Your lliness or Accident fexcluding mental or psychologlcal health disorders or eating disorders) which
securs while on Your EF Tour and requires medical treatment st the time of interruption and is 50
disabling as to prevent Your continued parficipation in Yaur EF Tour and for which a Doctor has advised
against continuing on Your EF Tour;

b, Anness or Accident leading to haspitalization or death of a Family Member while on Your EF Tour;
or

c. Robbery or theft of Your Valuahle Documents (must be supported by a police report).

if Your BF Tour i interrupted due bo any of the above covered reasong, You will be reimbursed, up to the
rexirum amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage, for the cost of economy coech, train or aldfare by the most
direet route, less any refunds paid o You or the Group Policy Holder, in order to reach the return destination or o
travel from the place where Your EF Tour was interrepted to where Your EF Tour can be rejoined. You will also
be reimbursed the Non-Refundable Tour Paymeants up to the maximum compensation amaunt shown on the
Bohedule of Coverage (page 4).

ZC-EFT-15055 U {08/23 Prge 17 0 22

Page 79 of 160

M. School Board Tour Cancellation

The Insurance Company will reimburse You in the marner and with the amounts described below (exciuding
any non-refundable insurance premiums) in the event Your EF Tour is cancelled due Lo any of the below
mentioned Unforesean Reasons. The School Board Cancellation decision and the Unforeseen Reason causing
Your EF Tour cancellation must have oceurred during Your period of coverage.

In erdar for You ko obtain Tour Cancellation benefits the Claims Agent and EF must be notified in writing by Your
School Board or Association on official |stterhead and include both lhe School Board or Asscciations canceliation
decision and spacify which covered reason caused them be cancel the tour,

Under the terms of this insurance, a refund of the amounts described below will be issued, should the School
Board or Association cancel our EF Taur dug to the following Unforeseen Reasons:

a. An act of terrotism as certified by the Government of Canada occurs in Your departure city for Your EF
Tour or in & city which is a deslinalion on Your EF lour itinerary. The event must occur 45 days ar fewer

prior to the tour date.

b. A teacher Labour Sirike in the approving schaol ar schosl board that has authorized Your EF Tour that
results in complete work stoppage, and the Strike is in effect 45 days or fewer prior to the departure of the
towr,

c. The Govemment of Canada Issulng 2 “Avoid Non-Essential Travel™ or “Avoid All Travel” Travel Advisory
after You have purchased Your insurance for 2 location that is a listed destination on Your EF Tour
itinarary and the travel warning is in effect 45 days or fewer prior to the {our dale;

If Your School Board or Association cancels Your EF Tour due to any of the above cavered reasons, the
tnsurance Company will reimburse You for the Non-Refundable Tour Payments bp 1o the maximum
compensation amount shown on the Schedule of Coverage (page 4).

M. Additional Costs for Retum Ho Viglenl Qutbreak

The Insurance Company will pay up ta the maximum ameunt shown in the Schedule of Coverage for the
addltional costs inourred if You must return home immediately after the outbreak of violence in the area where
You arg n acpordance with recommendations by official authorities in Yeur home country (Globa)l Affairs Canada
or Ministry for Forelgn Affairs), Also, the Claims Agent must have pre-approved (he necessity to return home.

0. Accommodation Exira Cost

The Insurance Company will slsc reimburse You for reasonable costs resulting from a change in the per person
occupancy rate for prepaid arangements if a travelling Famity Member's EF Tour is delayad or interrupted for
one of the aforementioned covered reasons and Your EF Teur is nol. The Insurance Company will also
reimburse You for reasonable additional accommodation and transportation expenses up to the maximum
amount shown in the Schedule of Coverage if a travelling Family Member must remain hospitalized.

P. Delay due to Theft of Valuable Documents

The Insurance Company will pay, againsl receipts, up to the maximum amount shown in the Schedule of
Coverage for reasonable accommodations, meal and local transportation expenses incurred by You if You are
delayed for 8 hiours or more while in route to or from, or during an EF Tour, due to the hef of Valuable
Documents.

Exclusions

The Insuranee Company will not pay Tour Cancellation or Tour Interruplion benefits for changes in travel plans
due to:

a. Carrer-caused delays (including bad weather);

ZC-EFT-15055 U (BR23)a Pape 160l 22



Page 80 of 160

b, Fersonal change of pians by You ar a2 Family Member; d. Muclear radiation or radicactive cortamination of injurles frem any explosive or hazardous materials,
radloactive, explosive or other material of a hazardous nature, or any accident arising therefrom, of
€. Anxlety or fear; nuclear fuel materials finduding spent fuel) or properties (including products yielded in the process of

nuclear fission) contaminated by nuclear fuel materials;
d, Busingss or contractual obligations; ) -
h. Seizure, requisition, confiscation or destruction by any government or public authorities; or

€. Prohiblion or regulation by any government, including if You are deemed by such gove tto by . ) . . s
!nadrlnissib!a ta ge C;l.lntr:: Yozganre I;;Telﬁngl tmu ol Y government fo be i, Losses that can be paid by any other insurance policy, govemmant sponsored program, etc, )

f.  Defaull of tour or program operator (including EF and ils affillated parlies), airline, cruise line or any other Nudle mical, Biologieal Terrorism Exclusion Claus

organisation which results in a loss of service, Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary within this Certificate or any endorsement thareto, 1t Is agreed that

this Certificate excludes any losses directly or indirectly arising out of, contributed to or caused by, or resulting
frem or in connection with any act of nuclear, chemical, biological terorism {as defined below) regardiess of any
olher cause or event contributing cancurrently or in any other sequence to the loss.

9. Your inability to obtain the necessary travel decuments (passports, visas, ele.); or

h. Detention or confiscation by customs,
“Muclear, chemleal, bislogleal terrorism” shall mean the Use of any nuclear weapon or device or the emizsian,

i. You committing or atternpting to commit a crlminal acl. diseharge, dispersal, release, or escape of any solid, liquid or gaseous chemical agent and/or biolagical agent
i i during the perlad of this Insurance by any person or groups(s) of persans, whether acting alone or on behalf of or
). You not following a prescribed therapy or Treatment in connection with any organisation(s) ar government{s), cemmitted for political, religious or ideological purposes |

of reasons including the intention to nfluence any government andfor to put the public, or any section of the

k. Any loss, Injury or death related to Intoxication, the misuse, abuse, overduse of, or chemlcal dependence y
public, in fear,

on medication, drugs, alcoho! or other intoxicant, other than as prescribed by a Physlelan.

“Chemlical agent’ shall mean any compound which, when suitably disserminated, produces incapacitating,

. ergency, investigati tment cosmetic surgery, i . N
1. Any non-gmergency, i igative of sleclive Treatment such as rgery. chronic cars damaging or letha! eifects on people, animals, plants or malerial property.

rehabilitation, or any directly or indireclly related complicalions,

in addition, the Insurance Company will not pay Tour Cancellation o Tour Interfuption benefits for You or any "Bilogical agent” shall mean any pathogenic (diseass praducing) micro-organism(s) and/or biologically produced
Family Member's loss, liness or Accident resulting from of relating 1o excluded conditions as per the toxin(s), Inchusiing genstically modified organisms and chemically synthesized toxin(s), which cause lHiness and/or

Exclusions of the Ilness & Accident section and as per this Certificate. death in humans, animals or plants.
Temitory

This coverage applies worldwide excluding Iran, Syria, Sudan, Cuba and North Korea.

General Provisions

Seneral Exclusions Relating bo All Types of Coverage

Liberafization
Mo ingurance coverage is provided and the Insurance Company will not pay for any losses resulting directly or
indirectly fram: If the insurance Company adopts any policy coverage changes during the Period of Coverage without an .
. ] additional premium charge, then You will automatically receive the benefit of the broadened insurance. This shail -
a. Failure to provide reasonable proof of a Isss; not apply o caims that have already besn submitied
b. Circumstances that were known, foreseen ar expected prior to applying for coverage; Limitation af Actions

¢. Fandemlc diseases as declared by the World Health Organization, the Governmert of Canada or any action of procaeding agai insurer for the recovery of insurance money payable under the contract is
focal authority, provided this exclusion shall not apply to expenses otherwise covered under the lliness & E;:gulel)lrcgarrre% unless cgamgm!l:é:; vlu?tshin the Hime sat out?:'n the Insurance acty(rfgr :cﬁons or proceedings
Accident coverage where such declaration is made for the country of a region of the country that is a governsd by the laws of Alberta and Erftish Columbie), The Insurance Act {for actions or proceedings govemed
destination on Yaur EF tour after lravel has commenced: by the laws of Manitoba), the Limitations Acl, 2002 (for actions or procesadings governed by the laws of Ontario).
or in olher applicable legislation. For those actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Quebec, the

d. Suicide, suicide attemnpt or violent behavlour on Your part; prescriplive period s st out in the Quebes Civil Code,

&, A willful acl, criming] act or gross negligence on Your part or on the part of anyone antited 1o receive a

benefit; Applicable Law

f. War, hostile acts of a foreign power, revolution, usurped power, civil war, act of war {declared or This Certificate is govemed by the law of the province or territory where You resided at the tims of purchase of
undeclared), riots or rebellion {"riot’” meaning tumultuous disturbance of the peace by a group of persens this coverage, and the laws of Canada applicable therein, Any terms of tths Certificate which are in conflict with
whether natlonal or local, gravely threatening the social peace and order of the area) or other the applicable statutes, laws or regulations of the furisdiction in which this policy s delivered are amended to
disturbances of a simllar nalure, however, not including direct acts of terrorism (“direct’, meaning an conform 1o such stalutes, laws or regulations.
immediste and gengraphicaly proximale threat to personal safety) excluding "nuclear, chamical and )
biclogical terrorism® a3 et cut below, provided this exclusion shall nol apply to expenses otherwise Senctions

covered under the Additional Cosls for Return Home due to Violent Oulbreak coverage; - i ) »
This insurance does not apply to the extent thal rade or econamic sanctions or other laws or regulalions prohibit

the Insurance Company from providing insurance, including, but not limited to, the payment of claims,

ZC-EFT-15055 U (023)m N Page 19 6f 12 ZC-EFT-13055 U (092330 Page 20 0f22



Other Insurance and Subragation

iF a claim is covered by this Certificate and by another insurance policy issued by another insurance cartier, this
Certificate shall always be secondary fo alt other insuranca policies and the Insurance Company shall not be
abligaled to pay until the fimits of all other applicable insurance policies have been exhausled,

Following the exhaustion of all other insurance policies, the Insurance Company will pay up to the limlts shown
on the Maximum Compensation scheduls (page 3) for any claims nol already covered and pald by other sources.

In the event of any payment under his Certificate, this Insurance Company shall be subrogated lo the rights as
stated in 1, and 2. below to the extent of such payment and without prejudice to Yous:

1. right of recovery. if You are to be indemnified for damages by any person or organisation; and

2. right of subrogation, if You are to be subrogated lo the right of others on account of 2 payment of claim o an
injured party. If You collect damages from such other party, whether by sult, setilement or in any other
manner, then Yeu shall be liable fo the Insurance Company for the lesser of either:

a. The amount collected by You; or

b, The amount of all paymenis made by this Insurance Company for the expenses incurred by You le
which such damages are related.

The Insurance Company may require You to execule a statement acknowledging the Insurance Company's
right of recovery from other parties, including but not limited to ancther Insurance Company before the
Insurante Company makes payment of any expenses reasanably believed by the Insurance Company to be
sublect to Lhis section of the Pelicy.

You shall conperate with the Insurance Company in securing and enforcing the Insurance Company's right
under the preceding paragraphs and in obtaining such evidence, instruments, and papers as required by Lhe
Insurance Company for such purpose.

Complaint Proceduras

If there is any pocasion when this Policy [or refaled servics) toes nol meet expectations, please contact Us so
that We can address concerns quickly, 2urich Canada hag a complainl handling program that refiects ils
commitment to providing a simpte, professional and timely complalnt handling procedure. You may obtain a copy
of Zurich's complaint handling program by calling: 416-586-6773 or toll free at: 800-387-3454 axt.6773, or from
Cur webslte: hitpsdiwww.zurichcanada, com/en-ca/atroutzurichicarmplaint

If You are st not satisfied with the resolution lo Your complaint or inquiry, You may communicale Your
complaint or Inquiry in writing te:

General Insurance Ombudsenvice

2727 Courtice Road, P.C. Box 98009

Courtice, ON L1E 3AD

This Certificate is valid and applicable from the purchage date as shown in the confirmation of coverage received
frem EF and until the return date of the EF Tour.

Please keep this Certificate wih Your other important documents.

ZC-EFT-15055 U {0823 )a Foge2l ol 22

Page 81 of 160

CANCEL FOR ANY REASON (CFAR) INSURANCE ADD-ON

Eligibil; VErage

To be eligible for the Cancel For Any Reasan (CFAR] Insurance Add-On, You must purchase this coverage foran
additional cost with Your enroliment under the Group Policy.

Application for Coverage

Whean You enroll on Your EF Tour 110 days or more prior to departure, You will be enrclled in the Global Travel
Protection Plan and CFAR Insurance Add-On and Premiums must be paid within 30 days after You enroll under
the Group Policy.

The CFAR Insurance Add-On cannot be purchased within 109 days prior 1o the date of Your depariure on Your
EF Tour,

Cancellstion of Coverage

You can cance| the additional GFAR Insurance from Add-Cn from Your EF Tours account up to 30 days after
You enroll under the Group Pollcy or provide payment of the premium, whichever day is the jatest, unlass You
nave submitted a claim, Alter this time the premium pald by You for the insurance is not refundable. The cost of
the Any Reason Cancellation Add-On coverage Insurance is set out in Your EF Tours invoice.

Terms of Coverags

If You need to cancet Your irip for any other reason not covered under the Global Travel Protsction Plan:

+ ‘You may cancel Your EF Tour up to 24 hours or more before the dale (and time) of Your departure on Your
£F Tour, and You will be reimbursed for the Non-Refundable Towr Payments up to 80% of the maximum
compensalion amount shown on the Schedule of Coverage (page 43,

Exclugiong

Ths Insurance Company will not pay the CFAR Insurance Add-On benefit for cancelialions if lhe EF tour
operator Is or becomes bankrupt, insclvent, in receivership or has sought protection from creditors under any
bankruptey, insclvency ar simflar legislation, or completely or substantially fails or defaults to supply its services or
carry on business.

ZC-EFT-15065 1 {(0%23)n Page 12 of 22



Page 82 of 160
VAN
eﬂ@m EDUCATIONAL
Ny Z TOURS %

Congratulations!

Your student had been invited to join Belmont Secondary School, in partnership with EF

Educational Tours on an unforgettable international travel experience to Spain in March,
2025!

The once-in-a-lifetime trip will offer experiential learning opportunities, broaden
perspectives, and foster personal growth. We’re excited to extend this invitation to you
now, allowing you to secure the best price and take advantage of affordable monthly
payments while proving your child with a truly transformative experience.

Join us for an informative enrollment meeting on June 5th , where we’ll cover:

Detailed trip itinerary and on-tour experiences
How this experience will impact your child

Why planning now is a great idea

EF investment protection

EF’s unwavering support and commitment to safety

Can’t wait to see you there!

Regina de la Fuente

Space is limited!
RSVP to the meeting to Unlock EF's 14-day'Risk-Free

Guarantee allowing cancellation for a fuilirefund ra
within 14 days of enrolment.

OF & =0

s, :-;':.1‘= '.." o

3 ‘ 2‘: Ill . .
n[o/-uﬁ;hin 24 hours of the meeting toreceive a free .s' -s. f!, J!,. .;"f ;, :

Airalo mobile data plan to Use while on tour as a o't
thank you gift! )
[
;-.



kross
Rectangle


Page 83 of 160

Kristina Ross

From: Amanda Dowhy (Trustee) <adowhy@sd62.bc.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 1:40 PM

To: Paul Block; Harold Cull

Cc: Kristina Ross

Subject: Fwd: Build seamless before- and after-school childcare

Just checking to see if you received this one as well, and including Kris for correspondence.

A

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: “Justine C."” QRIS
Date: April 1, 2024 at 2:00:16 PM PDT

To: "Amanda Dowhy (Trustee)” <adowhy@sd62.bc.ca>
Subject: Build seamless before- and after-school childcare
Reply-To: justineldchase@gmail.com

Dear School Trustees

Despite recent investments, parents continue to struggle without the affordable, guality childcare they
need to support their family. Every day this childcare is not available, families in our community fall
further behind.

The public delivery of before- and after-school care in schools—known as “the seamless day”—is the
most effective solution to the shortage of school-age childcare spaces.

Pilot programs across the province have shown that school districts can use their existing classrooms
and staff to offer much-needed childcare for kids who are already part of their school community.

This model of in-house, classroom-based care means improved accessibility and fewer transitions for
kids, enhanced and education-focused care, more secure and reliable childcare for parents, new
opportunities to recruit and retain education assistants, and increased investment in our public schools.

1 am asking that our trustees take immediate action to implement this model of classroom-based, in-
house seamless childcare in schools across our school district.

Thank you,
Justine C.
V9Z 2H6



- Page 84 of 160
SOOKE ) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1

_ ShCHOOLS - sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800
JJJ Shaping Tomorrow Today

Committee Report of
Resources Committee Meeting of April 16, 2024

Present: Christine Lervold, Trustee (Committee Chair)
Ebony Logins, Trustee
Trudy Spiller, Trustee
Cendra Beaton, Trustee
Paul Block, Superintendent
Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer
Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent
Ceilidh Deichmann, PVP
Ed Berlando, STA
Trudy Court, CUPE
Tom Davis, SPEAC
Mhairi Bennett, Director, Facilities
David Lee-Bonar, Assistant Secretary Treasurer
Nicole Gestwa, IT

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 pm by the Committee Chair, who acknowledged that we are
honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt
Nation, Songhees Nation and acknowledge the three nation SD 62 works with directly in our schools;
Scia’new Nation, Coast Salish, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast Pacheedaht Nation
Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three Nations SD62 works with)

2. COMMITTEE REPORT
The Board of Education of Sooke School District 62 (Sooke) received the Resources Committee Report

dated March 6, 2024, at its Public Board Meeting dated March 12, 2024.

3. PRESENTATIONS

4. BUSINESS
4.1 24/25Budget Development Process — Harold Cull

The Chair acknowledged our partner groups and the Leadership Budget Working Group (LBWG) for
their participation and feedback on the 24/25 budget process. Staff provided an update to the
Committee on the process and indicated that the budget is expected to grow by $8.473M. albeit, there
remain unfunded pressures of approximately $2.8M due to inflation and growth.




5.

r

4.2

4.3

P Page 85 of 160
SOOKEZA 7) 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC VOB 5R1
SCHOOLS \J « sd62.bc.ca | 250.474.9800

) g , Shaping Tomorrow Today

The Committee discussed several aspects including:
e “Ghost” riders and the potential impacts if transportation fees are charged;
e Challenges with surveying the public on a complex issue such as the budget;
e Working with municipalities on carbon offset credits;
e Transportation fees and service level changes if the fee option is adopted by the Board;
e Reserve Policy @ 2%

24/25 Annual Facilities Grant Project Details —- Mhairi Bennett

Staff provided an overview of the 24/25 Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) and Minor Capital Program
plans. The amount of funding was discussed and the challenges with the funding not increasing
based on the amount of schools/buildings in the District.

The Committee discussed the proposed plan and how abatement work is addressed on a
project by project basis. The Committee also discussed the importance of accessibility and
inclusivity and how these projects are identified and reviewed by the Minor Capital Committee.

24/25 Capital Plan Bylaw - Harold Cull

Staff presented the approved 24/25 minor capital projects that were included on the Capital
Plan submission approved by the Board and the need to pass the Capital Plan bylaw in order to
start these projects.

As a result, the Committee supports the following motions going forward to the Board for
consideration:

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all three
readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01 at its meeting of April 30, 2024.

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, second
and third readings of the Capital Plan Bylaw 2024/25-CPSD62-01.

ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: May 14, 2024




Pasrd| 80P 4 60
Capital Plan Bylaw

CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2024/25 - CPSD62-01
CAPITAL PLAN 2024/25

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District
No. 62 (Sooke) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education
(hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a
capital plan with modifications,

NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following:

(@) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications;

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister;

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to
the Board or the capital project(s); and,

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister.

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows:

1.  The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2024/2025 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated March 15, 2024, is hereby adopted.

2.  This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2024/25 —
CPSD62-01.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF April 2024;
READ A SECOND TIME THE 30th DAY OF April 2024,
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 30th DAY OF April 2024.

Board Chair
APPLY CORPORATE SEAL

Secretary-Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District 62 (Sooke) Capital Bylaw No. 2024/25 —
CPSD62-01 adopted by the Board the 30th day of April 2024.

Secretary-Treasurer



Page 87 of 160

SOOKE
SCHOOLS
AP Shaping Tomorrow Today

COMMITTEE REPORT
EDUCATION COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
PUBLIC MEETING
April 23,2024 - 6:00 p.m.

TRUSTEES: Amanda Dowhy, Board Chair Cendra Beaton, Vice Chair
Russ Chipps (virtual) Christine Lervold
Ebony Logins Trudy Spiller

Allison Watson

STAFF: Paul Block, Superintendent
Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer
Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent
D’Arcy Deacon, Associate Superintendent
Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR
Steve Tonnesen, Manager, IT Operations
David Lee Bonar, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer

1. CALLTOORDER
The meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. by the Board Chair. Amanda Dowhy acknowledged the traditional
territories of the First Nations. The Board Chair acknowledged stakeholders and members of the public
participating in the meeting and reminded media to direct their questions to the Manager of Communications.

The Board Chair provided an overview of a Conflict-of-Interest Declaration and asked the Committee members if
they had any concerns. Trustee Chipps declared a Conflict-of-Interest.

The Board of Education received numerous pieces of correspondence concerning the recommended budget
plan. Each of these pieces of correspondence have been responded to by the Board Chair and have been
retained for record keeping purposes.

2. COMMITTEE REPORT
No Committee Report.

3. PRESENTATIONS
Standing Delegations (SPEAC, SPVP, CUPE 459, STA)
Member groups were given an opportunity to speak to the presentation.

SPEAC-Tom Davis
SPEAC spoke of its concern to the potential reduction to over ratio counselling by 1.37 FTEs, and the potential
elimination of the full ECE pilot project which employs 11 FTEs.

Sooke Principals and Vice Principals (SPVP)-Mark Johnson /Ruchi McArthur

1



Representations from SPVP spoke of the strength of our organization and the clear mandateTatiit ¥fe@ived
from the Executive Team with regards to potential reduction mitigation strategies. A robust conversation at
the leadership level occurred, the membership supports the recommended budget put forth by staff.

CUPE 459 -Amber Leonard

The CUPE 459 President thanked staff for the 2024/25 Budget Development Process presentation. She
requested a change to process following the reduction in allocation announcement from the District. She
would like in future for stakeholders to reconvene if the District receives less than the anticipated allotment
from the Ministry of Education and Child Care. She asked that the Board of Education consider using their
budget reserve, consider increasing rental rates for community use, and spoke of her concern to the potential
reduction to custodial coverage ($150K), the possible elimination of the ECE Pilot Project (11 FTEs), and asked
the District to stop contracting services to external agencies as Digital Solutions and Facilities currently uses
this practice.

STA-Rita Zeni

Acting President Rita Zeni raised her concern over the potential reduction of Department Teacher
Coordinators (3FTE), the possible reduction in over ratio counselling (1.37 FTE) and the reduction in district
wide support teachers ($298K). She asked the Board of Education to review senior management level
expenses, and dip into its budget reserve to balance the upcoming budget.

Further the STA has specific questions that it asked the Executive Team. The Acting President will provide
these questions to the Board Chair for a response.

Delegations (Members of the Public)
Members of the Public were given an opportunity to speak, and the Board of Education received multiple

questions via MS Teams. The comments have been summarized in the following groups:

Eliminate Itinerant Staff Supports for Large Elementary Schools

3 e a ation of itinerant staff that support large
elementary schools She |nd|cated that clerlcal members are unable to complete their daily tasks within
school hours, and that some are working outside of school hours to keep up. Further they rely on the itinerant
staff being on hand when they need to meet accounting deadlines etc. Presently the job load at the large
elementary level is unsustainable.

Reduction to Custodial

A staff member spoke regarding the potential reduction of approximately 2 FTE thereby increasing M?
coverage. The cleaning protocols introduced during the pandemic have caused issues and custodians find
meeting their current workload almost impossible. In addition, when space is rented, it increases the demand
on custodians. The Public believes that rental costs should be increased to cover the potential deficit and that
no cuts to the custodian budget should occur.

Reduction to Library Assistant Budget

3-members of staff spoke about the need for Library’s in our schools, and the need for funded Library
Assistants. A potential 15% reduction of the current $348K budget is being considered (which equals a
potential reduction of $52, 253). The public reminded the Board of Education that a library is a safe space for
all students, an essential hub, meeting place and classroom. Further early literacy should be encouraged and
the library fully stocked.

Eliminate Early Childhood Educators (ECE) Pilot Project

2



45 members of the public raised their concerns over the possible elimination of the ECE PiloCProféct (£2 FTEs)
at the Sooke School District. ECEs work with young children from birth to age five; they create and run
educational programs that fuel children’s intellectual, physical, social and emotional growth. The public felt
this critical program should be fully funded and expanded to all classrooms. The loss of this program would be
feltimmensely by the school, students, and community.

Of note, the District indicated that the 11 FTE currently in the ECE Pilot Project would have the opportunity to
remain within our District in EA positions (within Collective Agreement guidelines); as both are CUPE
positions, they would keep their seniority, hours would be based on the position accepted, and both roles
have similar wage grids.

! sing $300/stu , and the financial burden it will
create for families. Of note, the District does have a fee waiver process in place. In addition, catchment areas
may need review if walk limits are imposed. Lastly the public had an issue with the way the Ministry of
Education and Child Care defines geographical locations and did not approve of the reduction in routes.

Reduction in Over Ratio Counselling

2members of the public asked the Board of Education to reconsider the possible reduction in over ratio

counselling (1.37 FTE). The public believes that an increase in elementary hours should be considered.

BUSINESS

24/25 Budget Plan - Harold Cull

Overthe last severalyearsthe School District has seen record growth and manageable inflation, this has allowed
the District the opportunity for innovation and to add staff and supports to classrooms. Further, much needed
requests for infrastructure have been granted by the Ministry of Education and Child Care. However, we are in
the midst of an economic shift and current projections show enrolment may be beginning to level after years of
record growth. If the inflation and enrolment trends we are seeing follow this path, the District will continue to
face fiscal challenges in future years and the Board of Education will need to reassess its financial position
alongside revenues and pressures.

Through an extensive consultation process with its leadership team and stakeholders, staff have devised a
recommended budget plan for the Board of Education to consider. As per Section 113 of the School Act (a) a
board, by bylaw must adopt an annual budget on or before June 30 of each year for the next fiscal year.

The School District has a budget pressure of $2.8M. Itis comprised of:
e Employee Benefits - $1.8M pressure
e Utilities - $.600M pressure
e Geographic Location - $.400M pressure

Staff took a balanced approach when reviewing mitigation options. All employee groups were
treated fairly and equally. The following were assessed:

e Busing fee models

e Reallocate/reduce staffing levels

e Reduce transportation routes/walk limits

e Reduce department budgets (no school budgets)

The Superintendent took the Board of Education through its recommended budget plan and spoke to the
specific potential reductions. Further there were some questions regarding the District’s reserve, and the

3



Page 90 of 160
recommended notion from the Ministry of Education and Child Care that School District have 2% of its funding
kept in a reserve for emergency occurrences and one-time funding requests. If the Board approves all
recommended measures, staff are projecting an estimated 2024/25 year end reserve of 1.53%.

Staff will provide clarification on the number of classrooms that are currently served by ECEs, if there is an
anticipated surplus in school year 2023/24 once Q3 is completed, and if an increase to rental fees is agreed to,

a motion to proceed.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 9:37 p.m.




Additional informationSD62 Kindergarten — ECE Partnerships

Goal: To develop Kindergarten teacher — ECE Partnerships to support young learners with a successful transition
to school and to enhance the professional experience of both educators.

Background: In 2011, the concept of a Kindergarten teacher — Early Childhood Educator (ECE) partnership
evolved in SD62 during the development phase of the Nature Kindergarten program. For over a decade, SD62
has grown these partnerships.

The Kindergarten teacher — ECE partnership is intended for a Kindergarten teacher(s) who wishes to work and
professionally learn in collaboration with an ECE. It begins with an expression of interest on the part of the
Kindergarten teacher(s). In Spring 2023, all SD62 elementary schools were given an opportunity to apply for a K-
ECE Partnership at their school through an expression of interest process. However, not all schools had

Kindergarten teachers who were interested in pursuing this model.

Impact of K-ECE Partnerships:

Elementary Number of Number of Number of Kindergarten | Total Number of

School Kindergarten Kindergarten/Grade 1 | or Kindergarten/Grade 1 | Kindergarten and
classes ECE classes ECE partners | classes ECE partners Grade 1 students
partners with 50% | with 50% of the time with less than 50% of impacted
of the time or more | or more the time

Colwood 1 2 51

Crystal View 1 1 20

David Cameron 1 1 40

Hans Helgesen 1 18

John Muir 1 1 38

John Stubbs 1 20

Poirier 2 1 35

Ruth King 1 2 60

Sooke 1 1 36

Savory 1 1 40

Willway 1 2 55

Totals: 12 4 8 413

e There are 52 Kindergarten classes in SD62. This number includes both Kindergarten and K/1 classes.

e Regular Kindergarten teacher — ECE partnerships take place for 50% or more of the school day in 16 K
and K/1 classes. This represents 31% of all SD62 K classes. When considering classes impacted on
a full- and part-time weekly basis, the percentage of impact increases to 46% of all SD62 K classes.




Page 91 of 160

SOOKEA

SCHOOLS\

Shaping Tomorrow Today

S A

Board Info Note
Public Board Meeting
April 30, 2024
Agenda Item: 7.3 — 24/25 Annual Budget Bylaw

Background

e The District has been working through the 24/25 budget development process since the
middle of February and staff have now drafted a recommended plan for the Board to
consider tonight and on May 28t

e The attached Annual Budget Bylaw and Ministry template were part of the package and
discussion held on April 23™ at the Board’s Education Committee of the Whole (ECoW)

e Once the Board considers and debates the attached proposed bylaw, staff will confirm if
any of the Board’s decision has an impact on the amount of the bylaw prior to the question
being called

e Also based on the Board’s decisions, staff will be able to update the Ministry template and
financial plan for review at the May 28" Board meeting

Prepared by: Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer




Page 92 of 160

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW
A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)
(called the "Board") to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024/2025 pursuant
to section 113 of the School Act, R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of
Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2024/2025.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the
2024/2025 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $221,123,327 for the 2024/2025 fiscal
year was prepared in accordance with the Act.
4, Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board
for the fiscal year 2024/2025.
READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2024;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024,

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024,

Chairperson of the Board

( Corporate Seal )

Secretary Treasurer
| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw 2024/2025, adopted by the Board the DAY OF , 2024,
Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49



Page 93 of 160

Annual Budget

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

June 30, 2025

DRAFT - Not Finalized
April 18, 2024 8:49



Page 94 of 160

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
June 30, 2025

Table of Contents
2 U OO OOV SOURTTRPRS 1
Annual Budget - Revenue and EXPENnse - STAEMENT 2 .....oviiiiiiiieie ettt bbbttt e 2
Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - StateMent 4 ...t 4
Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and EXPense - SChEAUIE 2 .........cooiiiiiiiise e e 5
Schedule 2A - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by SOUICE .......ccceveiiiiiiiiiiieese e 6
Schedule 2B - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by ODJECt ........ccovciiiiiiciinineeee e 7
Schedule 2C - Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object ............cccocveviiiivcieieciennn, 8
Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense - SChedule 3 ..o 10
Schedule 3A - Annual Budget - Changes in Special PUrPOSE FUNAS .......cccooviiiiiiiiiiiienes e 11
Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and EXPense - SCheTUIE 4 ..ot st 14

*NOTE - Statement 1, Statement 3, Statement 5, Schedule 1 and Schedules 4A - 4D are used for Financial Statement reporting only.

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49



Page 95 of 160

ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW
A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE)
(called the "Board") to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024/2025 pursuant
to section 113 of the School Act, R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of
Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2024/2025.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the
2024/2025 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $221,123,327 for the 2024/2025 fiscal
year was prepared in accordance with the Act.
4, Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board
for the fiscal year 2024/2025.
READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2024;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024,

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 28th DAY OF MAY, 2024,

Chairperson of the Board

( Corporate Seal )

Secretary Treasurer
| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget Bylaw 2024/2025, adopted by the Board the DAY OF , 2024,
Secretary Treasurer

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2025

State

2025
Annual Budget

e 100

2024 Amended
Annual Budget

Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's
School-Age
Adult
Total Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's

Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other

Tuition

Other Revenue

Rentals and Leases

Investment Income

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease

Total Revenue

Expenses
Instruction
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation and Housing
Total Expense

Net Revenue (Expense)
Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year comprised of:
Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit)
Special Purpose Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Capital Fund Surplus (Deficit)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49

13,620.500 13,233.625
19.500 24.375
13,640.000 13,258.000
$ $

193,275,752 184,604,978
141,000 265,490
8,092,788 6,914,749
6,026,722 6,424,267
512,500 502,500
878,875 885,942
11,197,272 10,992,151
61,477 61,477
220,186,386 210,651,554
181,963,544 173,447,555
7,343,442 7,413,399
27,695,086 26,493,296
3,771,255 4,539,638
220,773,327 211,893,888
(586,941) (1,242,334)
3,376,088

(586,941) 2,133,754
(586,941) 2,133,754
(586,941) 2,133,754

Page 2



School District No. 62 (Sooke) statdfneht? '

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
Budget Bylaw Amount

Operating - Total Expense 172,882,328 162,856,604
Operating - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2,704,100
Special Purpose Funds - Total Expense 34,166,984 35,534,985
Capital Fund - Total Expense 13,724,015 13,502,299
Capital Fund - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 350,000 350,000
Total Budget Bylaw Amount 221,123,327 214,947,988

Approved by the Board

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 3



School District No. 62 (Sooke) statdfnenc '

Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (586,941) (1,242,334)
Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets
From Operating and Special Purpose Funds (2,704,100)
From Local Capital (350,000) (350,000)
Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (350,000) (3,054,100)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 12,134,213 11,912,497
Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 11,784,213 8,858,397
(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 11,197,272 7,616,063

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 4



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2025

S 160

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,793,043 153,091,639
Other 141,000 141,000

Tuition 8,092,788 6,914,749

Other Revenue 1,839,122 1,048,757

Rentals and Leases 512,500 502,500

Investment Income 853,875 835,971

Total Revenue 173,232,328 162,534,616
Expenses

Instruction 148,133,437 138,249,447

District Administration 7,343,442 7,413,399

Operations and Maintenance 14,229,059 13,379,682

Transportation and Housing 3,176,390 3,814,076

Total Expense 172,882,328 162,856,604
Net Revenue (Expense) 350,000 (321,988)
Budgeted Prior Year Surplus Appropriation 3,376,088
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (2,704,100)

Local Capital (350,000) (350,000)

Total Net Transfers (350,000) (3,054,100)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year - -
DRAFT - Not Finalized
April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 5



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2025

SeRedli 2A160

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,382,708 149,697,605
ISC/LEA Recovery (572,717) (572,717)
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants
Pay Equity 931,052 931,052
Funding for Graduated Adults 40,000 40,000
Student Transportation Fund - 358,365
FSA Scorer Grant 12,000 12,000
Labour Settlement Funding - 2,625,334
Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 161,793,043 153,091,639
Provincial Grants - Other 141,000 141,000
Tuition
Continuing Education 90,000 90,000
International and Out of Province Students 8,002,788 6,824,749
Total Tuition 8,092,788 6,914,749
Other Revenues
Funding from First Nations 572,717 572,717
Miscellaneous
Grants for Crossing Guards 70,000 70,000
Rebates 51,000 51,000
SGF Discretionary 200,000 200,000
Transportation Safety Fees 80,000 80,000
Miscellaneous 75,040 75,040
Bus Fees 790,365
Total Other Revenue 1,839,122 1,048,757
Rentals and Leases 512,500 502,500
Investment Income 853,875 835,971
Total Operating Revenue 173,232,328 162,534,616
DRAFT - Not Finalized
April 18, 2024 8:49

Page 6



. R 160
School District No. 62 (Sooke) Seeddle 26
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Salaries
Teachers 64,294,218 60,976,908
Principals and Vice Principals 10,498,675 10,460,864
Educational Assistants 19,269,966 16,458,734
Support Staff 15,279,517 15,509,574
Other Professionals 5,808,016 5,996,389
Substitutes 6,241,498 6,178,277
Total Salaries 121,391,890 115,580,746
Employee Benefits 32,487,986 29,783,165
Total Salaries and Benefits 153,879,876 145,363,911
Services and Supplies
Services 7,835,669 7,326,240
Professional Development and Travel 1,140,112 1,066,164
Rentals and Leases 308,858 308,858
Dues and Fees 167,956 166,956
Insurance 577,651 487,651
Supplies 6,555,562 6,295,180
Utilities 2,390,844 1,815,844
Bad Debt 25,800 25,800
Total Services and Supplies 19,002,452 17,492,693
Total Operating Expense 172,882,328 162,856,604
DRAFT - Not Finalized
April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 7




School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Year Ended June 30, 2025

S

Principals and Educational Support Other
Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total
Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 53,960,447 279,173 163,368 1,999,433 471,946 4,585,190 61,459,557

1.03 Career Programs 191,744 169,508 34,680 395,932

1.07 Library Services 611,618 280,087 6,634 898,339

1.08 Counselling 1,995,664 1,157 1,996,821

1.10 Inclusive Education 4,748,353 302,763 18,688,406 178,275 1,376,481 678,683 25,972,961

1.30 English Language Learning 941,636 244,688 32,640 1,218,964

1.31 Indigenous Education 642,729 298,661 418,192 107,098 32,679 1,499,359

1.41 School Administration 9,135,012 2,849,821 250,487 12,235,320

1.61 Continuing Education 31,325 31,325

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 1,190,590 321,200 411,340 1,923,130

Total Function 1 64,282,781 10,336,809 19,269,966 6,271,575 1,848,427 5,622,150 107,631,708
4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 161,866 961,418 1,123,284

4.40 School District Governance 147,500 147,500

4.41 Business Administration 11,437 605,035 2,339,306 96,602 3,052,380

Total Function 4 11,437 161,866 - 605,035 3,448,224 96,602 4,323,164
5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 134,974 165,443 300,417

5.50 Maintenance Operations 5,829,025 237,118 395,815 6,461,958

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 830,597 830,597

5.56 Utilities -

Total Function 5 - - - 6,794,596 402,561 395,815 7,592,972
7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 131,619 108,804 240,423

7.70 Student Transportation 1,476,692 126,931 1,603,623

Total Function 7 - - - 1,608,311 108,804 126,931 1,844,046
9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 - - - - - - -
Total Functions 1 - 9 64,294,218 10,498,675 19,269,966 15,279,517 5,808,016 6,241,498 121,391,890

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49

Page 8



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Year Ended June 30, 2025

Rerealite! 160

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and 2025 2024 Amended
Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $ $ $ $ $
1 Instruction
1.02 Regular Instruction 61,459,557 17,037,303 78,496,860 4,779,413 83,276,273 78,998,074
1.03 Career Programs 395,932 117,489 513,421 496,663 1,010,084 1,071,677
1.07 Library Services 898,339 232,215 1,130,554 23,500 1,154,054 1,173,888
1.08 Counselling 1,996,821 535,699 2,532,520 6,237 2,538,757 2,595,058
1.10 Inclusive Education 25,972,961 6,944,020 32,916,981 754,180 33,671,161 29,715,179
1.30 English Language Learning 1,218,964 303,721 1,522,685 68,236 1,590,921 1,372,284
1.31 Indigenous Education 1,499,359 356,637 1,855,996 400,754 2,256,750 2,125,530
1.41 School Administration 12,235,320 3,036,634 15,271,954 547,900 15,819,854 15,560,213
1.61 Continuing Education 31,325 6,080 37,405 19,500 56,905 56,905
1.62 International and Out of Province Students 1,923,130 468,548 2,391,678 4,367,000 6,758,678 5,580,639
Total Function 1 107,631,708 29,038,346 136,670,054 11,463,383 148,133,437 138,249,447
4 District Administration
4.11 Educational Administration 1,123,284 245,806 1,369,090 717,702 2,086,792 1,958,727
4.40 School District Governance 147,500 9,500 157,000 132,088 289,088 289,088
4.41 Business Administration 3,052,380 717,931 3,770,311 1,197,251 4,967,562 5,165,584
Total Function 4 4,323,164 973,237 5,296,401 2,047,041 7,343,442 7,413,399
5 Operations and Maintenance
5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 300,417 72,824 373,241 401,115 774,356 949,193
5.50 Maintenance Operations 6,461,958 1,735,331 8,197,289 1,457,359 9,654,648 9,218,391
5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 830,597 217,261 1,047,858 361,353 1,409,211 1,396,254
5.56 Utilities - - 2,390,844 2,390,844 1,815,844
Total Function 5 7,592,972 2,025,416 9,618,388 4,610,671 14,229,059 13,379,682
7 Transportation and Housing
7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 240,423 61,298 301,721 54,991 356,712 437,949
7.70 Student Transportation 1,603,623 389,689 1,993,312 826,366 2,819,678 3,376,127
Total Function 7 1,844,046 450,987 2,295,033 881,357 3,176,390 3,814,076
9 Debt Services
Total Function 9 - - - - - -
Total Functions 1 - 9 121,391,890 32,487,986 153,879,876 19,002,452 172,882,328 162,856,604

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49

Page 9



School District No. 62 (Sooke) "Setedlie '

Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 29,954,384 29,985,014
Other 124,490
Other Revenue 4,187,600 5,375,510
Investment Income 25,000 49,971
Total Revenue 34,166,984 35,534,985
Expenses
Instruction 33,830,107 35,198,108
Operations and Maintenance 336,877 336,877
Total Expense 34,166,984 35,534,985

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year - R

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 10



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18,2024 8:49

PagRedde 9a160

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom
Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement
Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
336,877 571,426 192,000 41,650 433,781 797,821 1,596,233
3,000,000 35,000
25,000
336,877 571,426 25,000 3,000,000 192,000 41,650 433,781 832,821 1,596,233
336,877 571,426 25,000 3,000,000 192,000 41,650 433,781 832,821 1,596,233
336,877 571,426 192,000 41,650 433,781 797,821 1,596,233
3,000,000 35,000
25,000
336,877 571,426 25,000 3,000,000 192,000 41,650 433,781 832,821 1,596,233
70,000 71,000 30,000
50,000
446,426 170,000
5,000 145,000 10,000 55,000 120,000
197,000
20,000 15,000 100,000 25,000 953,000
- 446,426 - 25,000 145,000 25,000 170,000 398,000 1,273,000
125,000 5,000 40,000 6,000 42,000 77,000 298,233
336,877 25,000 2,970,000 7,000 10,650 221,781 357,821 25,000
336,877 571,426 25,000 3,000,000 192,000 41,650 433,781 832,821 1,596,233

Page 11



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18,2024 8:49

Paghed 36 8A160

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing Seamless SEY2KT ECL Feeding
Enhancement Student Health Results for Day (Early Yearsto  Early Care Futures
Fund - Staffing  Transportation in Schools Young Children Kindergarten Kindergarten) & Learning Fund Academies
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710
1,100,000
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710 1,100,000
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710 1,100,000
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710
1,100,000
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710 1,100,000
19,262,830 70,000
161,000 10,000
43,000 72,000 65,000
25,000 5,000 8,000 10,000
19,262,830 - 25,000 5,000 43,000 8,000 161,000 72,000 155,000
4,815,709 5,000 1,000 10,000 2,000 14,000 18,000 50,000
33,947 21,000 2,400 9,000 1,475,710 895,000
24,078,539 33,947 51,000 6,000 55,400 19,000 175,000 1,565,710 1,100,000
Page 12



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2025

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense)

DRAFT - Not Finalized

April 18,2024 8:49

Art
Starts

Donations

Theatres

TOTAL

$

7,600

$

40,000

$

5,000

29,954,384
4,187,600
25,000

7,600

7,600

40,000

40,000

5,000

5,000

34,166,984

34,166,984

7,600

40,000

5,000

29,954,384
4,187,600
25,000

7,600

40,000

5,000

34,166,984

19,503,830
221,000
616,426
515,000
197,000

1,161,000

7,600

40,000

5,000

22,214,256

5,508,942
6,443,786

7,600

40,000

5,000

34,166,984

PagR.d i 9a160

Page 13



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 Annual Budget

Fodfedtied °°

Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2024 Amended
Capital Assets Capital Balance Annual Budget
$ $ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 1,528,325 1,528,325 1,528,325
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 11,197,272 11,197,272 10,992,151
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - For Lease 61,477 61,477 61,477
Total Revenue 12,787,074 - 12,787,074 12,581,953
Expenses
Operations and Maintenance 1,589,802 1,589,802 1,589,802
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets
Operations and Maintenance 11,539,348 11,539,348 11,186,935
Transportation and Housing 594,865 594,865 725,562
Total Expense 13,724,015 - 13,724,015 13,502,299
Net Revenue (Expense) (936,941) - (936,941) (920,346)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress - 2,704,100
Local Capital 350,000 350,000 350,000
Total Net Transfers - 350,000 350,000 3,054,100
Other Adjustments to Fund Balances
Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 350,000 (350,000) -
Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 350,000 (350,000) -
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year (586,941) - (586,941) 2,133,754
DRAFT - Not Finalized
April 18, 2024 8:49 Page 14



Page 109 of 160

(g SOOKEQ
/X SEHOOLS

Shaping Temotrow ?oday

COMMITTEE REPORT OF THE

EDUCATION-POLICY COMMITTEE

School Board Office
Apr. 9, 2024 -6:30 p.m.

Present: Cendra Beaton, Trustee (Cormmittee Chair)
Allison Watson, Trustee {Committee member}
Trudy Spiller, Trustee {Committee member)
Christina Kempenaar, STA
Tim Hamblin, CUPE
Preston Lowther, SPVPA
Nevada Kaludjar, SPEAC
Paul Block, Superintendent/CEQ
Dave Strange, Associate Superintendent
D'Arcy Deacon, Associate Superintendent

Guests: Laura Schwertfeger, Farzaan Nusserwanji, Wayne Kelly, Dayna Christ-Rowling,
Beimont Student Representatives

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Couast Salish, specifically Esquimalt Nation, Songhees
Nation, and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with directly in our schools: Sc’ianew Nation, and T'Sou-ke Nation;
including the West Coast Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nuith. fwords gifted by the three nations SD62 works with)

2. Opening Remarks from Chair, Cendra Beaton
The Chair opened with the Territorial Acknowledgement and followed with a recognition of several great things
taking place in the district. This included recent events recognizing students receiving awards for their werk and
learning in the area of trades through the Canada Skills Program, and also recognizing April as the month
celebrating children of military families. Others celebrated additional events and work being done in support of
students and staff including efforts around youth engagement.

3. COMMITTEE REPORT of March 5, 2024 Education-Policy Committee meeting
The committee report for the March 5, 2024 Education-Policy Committee meeting was received by the
committee. No errors or omissions were noted.

4. BAA COURSE PROPOSALS
There are no BAA course proposals for this meeting.

S. REVIEW OF POLICIES/REGULATIONS
a. Draft Policy and Regulations €-114 “Sanctuary Schoals” — 0’ Arcy Deacon and Laura Schwertfeger




Page 110 of 160

Associate Superintendent D’Arcy Deacon spoke to the recent Board motion to draft a Sanctuary Schools
policy. In response to the motion he and District Principal Laura Schwertfeger created and presented to
the committee the draft new policy as well as the rationale. After the presentation, the committee
members engaged in conversation and asked guestions and provided comment. Feedback was very
positive from all partners and trustees.

Recommended Motion
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke} give Notice of Motion to draft new Policy
and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools”.

b. Draft New Policy and Regulations F-329 “Records Management” — Farzaan Nusserwanji
Mr. Nusserwanji, ClO and Executive Director — Digital Solutions, presented the draft new policy and
regulations and the rationale to rescind existing related polices that will no longer be needed should F-
329 be adopted by the Board of Education. After the presentation, the committee members engaged in
conversation and asked questions and provided comment.

Recommended Motions
That the Board of Education for School District #62 (Sooke) RESCIND Policy and Regulations C-220
“Student Records”.

That the Board of Education for School District #62 (Sooke) RESCIND Regulations F-330 “Document
Retention”,

That the Board of Education for School District #62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft new Policy
and Regulations F-329 “Records Management”.

6. NEW BUSINESS

a. Academies Update - Wayne Kelly
Wayne Kelly, District Principat — Sports Academy Programs, provided an update on academy programs in
the district. This included a look into the number of programs, types of programs, participation rates,
and impacts on student outcomes. Of note was the work done consulting community as to the interest
in developing a music academy program in the Milnes Landing zone. After the presentation, the
committee members engaged in conversation and asked questions and provided comment. Gratitude
was expressed for the efforts of Mr. Kelly and all staff supporting the many academies across the district.

b. Beimont Secondary School — Student Trip to Japan Presentation — Dayna Christ-Rowling
Dayna Christ Rowling, teacher at Belmont Secondary, led a presentation with students that recently
visited Japan. The presentation spoke to the highlights of the trip and gave the committee insight into
the value of international travel experiences for students and staff. After the presentation, the
committee members engaged in conversation and asked questions and provided comment. The
committee was truly appreciative of the students and their presentation.

7. FOR INFORMATION
8. FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

9. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: May 7, 2024




Page 111 of 160

POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION
School District #62 (Sooke)

April 30, 2024

Draft new Policy and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools” are now ready for Notice of
Motion.

NOTICE OF MOTION:

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft
new Policy and Regulations C-114 “Sanctuary Schools”.



Page 112 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No.: C-114

SANCTUARY SCHOOLS Effective:
Revised:
Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr. 30/24

SCHOOL BOARD POLICY

The Board of Education takes pride in its commitment to providing a safe and welcoming environment
for all children and families who are ordinarily resident in the school district, including those with
precarious immigration status or no immigration status.

All school age children who are ordinarily residents in the school district, including those with
precarious immigration status or no immigration status in Canada, are entitled to admission in school.
The personal information of enrolled students or their families shall not be shared with federal
immigration authorities unless required by law. The Board shall not permit Canada Border Services
Agency (CBSA) officials or immigration authorities to enter schools or district facilities unless required
by law. All public-school employees and volunteers shall be informed of this policy, and it will be
communicated to requisite stakeholders including immigrant communities.



Page 113 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No.: C-114

SANCTUARY SCHOOLS Effective:
Revised:
Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr. 30/24

SCHOOL BOARD REGULATION

The Board will implement communication protocols and admission procedures in accordance with
these requirements:

1.

This policy and relevant provisions of the Schoo/ Act will be communicated annually to all school
administrators and school office staff. Such materials will also be prominently displayed in school
offices, and on the district’s website.

The Board will provide orientation and training for all staff regarding the policy to promote
expertise and sensitivity regarding the needs of students without immigration status in Canada.

A thorough communications plan will be developed to share this information in immigrant
communities.

The appropriate instructions for staff and public information materials concerning admission
procedures will be revised to reflect the policy. Such revisions will also be included in all training
and orientation programs for staff and community agencies who have responsibilities in this area.

All student registration forms, including electronic databases, which refer to immigration status in
Canada, will be deemed strictly confidential.

All student registration forms, including electronic databases, will provide clearly stated options for
any family which does not wish to share proof of immigration status as a means of establishing
that they are ordinarily resident in the area served by Sooke school district.

Where there is a need to verify a student’s name, home address, or date of arrival in Canada, and
where the usual supporting documentation is not available, the Board and schools will accept a
combination of other documents outlined in the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s Eligibility of
Students for Operating Grant Funding Policy.

Schools will continue to comply with current Ministry of Education requirements in the case of
students for whom ELL funding claims are made but will not disseminate students’ personal
information.

An independent or third-party based complaints mechanism will be set up to hear from families
who have been denied admission based on immigration status and appropriate accountability
measures developed to ensure that no child who is ordinarily resident is turned away.



Page 114 of 160

POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION
School District #62 (Sooke)

April 30, 2024

Draft new Policy and Regulations F-329 "Records Management” are now ready for Notice
of Motion.

NOTICE OF MOTION:

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft
new Policy and Regulations F-329 “Records Management”.



Page 115 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No.: F-329

Effective:

Revised:

Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr.
30/24

RECORDS MANAGEMENT

SCHOOL BOARD POLICY
Rationale

This policy establishes School District #62’s (Sooke) commitment to the effective management of
administrative and operational records, information, and data assets which are essential to
support the strategic goals of the School District.

Policy

The Board of Education believes that it is essential to ensure that critical records are preserved
and protected for as long as required. Therefore, it is the policy of School District 62 to establish
a framework and accountabilities for records management policies, schedules, systems, and
procedures to implement a records management program.

Principles that guide Records Management at SD62

Records and information management policy, regulations, procedures, and practices will be based
on and comply with all applicable regulatory and legislative requirements

All School District #62 (Sooke) employees and contracted service providers who create, receive,
and use records have records and information management responsibilities and are accountable
for the management of records and information generated in the course of their duties in their
physical and virtual environment.

Records and information management practices should be linked to organizational goals,
objectives, and administration, with a coordinated approach across School District #62 (Sooke).

This policy is accompanied by a records management regulation, retention schedule, and
associated procedures

Related Policies and Legislation:

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
Permanent Student Record Instructions
School Act



Page 116 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No.: F-329

RECORDS MANAGEMENT | Effective:

Revised:

Reviewed: Apr. 9/24; Apr.
30/24

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS
Purpose

This regulation establishes School District #62's (Sooke) regulations concerning records
management.

Regulation
Records management regulations include:

1.1 Definition of a Record

1.2 Records Management Governance

1.3 Records Retention Schedules

1.4 Transitory Records

1.5 Records Destruction

1.6 Records Access, Storage, and Security
1.7 Remote Access and Records Transfer
1.8 Version Control and Naming Conventions
1.9 Executive Records

1.10 Vital Records

1.11 Archival Records

1.12 Digitization of Records

1.13 Managing Email

1.14 Legal Requests for Records

1.15 Office of Primary Responsibility

1.16 Correction to Personal Information

1.1 Definition of a Record

Records include books, documents, maps, drawings, photographs, letters, vouchers, papers,
and any other thing on which information is recorded or stored by graphic, electronic,
mechanical, or other means, but does not include a computer program or any other mechanism
that produces records.

1.2 Records Management Governance

School District #62 (Sooke) is responsible for establishing the framework and accountabilities
for records management policies, schedules, systems, standards, and guidelines in alignment
with legislative and regulatory requirements, including the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act and the School Act, etc. This is to ensure the proper management of
records, preserving and protecting the integral properties of records. The School District #62

1



Page 117 of 160

(Sooke) Records Officer (if one has been formally appointed) is responsible for implementing a
records management program as a best practice to ensure records within their respective
portfolio are effectively managed.

All employees and third-party service providers are responsible for managing and securing the
records they create, collect, amend, and receive in the context of their functional responsibilities
in accordance with the requirements identified in this document.

1.3 Records Retention Schedules

Records will be retained, managed, and disposed of according to approved records retention
schedules. Records retention schedules will prescribe timetables that govern the records
lifecycle and will be required before records can be destroyed, transferred to the legal custody
of another organization, or retained in perpetuity. Key subject matter expert review will be
required to ensure retention periods are reflected accurately in the records retention schedules.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure/schedule, School District #62 (Sooke) Records
Classification and Retention Schedule.

1.4 Transitory Records

Transitory records may be immediately disposed of as soon as their business use ends.
Transitory records are records of temporary usefulness that are needed only to complete a
routine action or prepare a subsequent record (e.g., a hew version). Transitory records are not
needed to meet legal, policy, or financial obligations, not needed for operations, program
delivery or operations, and not needed to account for SD62 actions or decisions.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.5 Records Destruction

Records will be eligible for final disposition when their scheduled retention period has expired as
prescribed by School District #62 (Sooke) Records Classification and Retention Schedule.
Authorized disposal of records will be done in such a way that information cannot be retrieved
or reconstructed. Destruction of records will be done securely and confidentially and, if
required, with the issuance of an official “Certificate of Destruction” from third-party service
providers once destruction has been completed.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.6 Records Access, Storage, and Security

Records will be accessible to all authorized users to fulfill the duties of their role. Therefore,
School District #62 (Sooke) will provide access to, manage, preserve, and dispose of records in
compliance with records management legislative and regulatory requirements, including the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act and School Act, etc.

Records access will be assigned based on least privilege need-to-know principles meaning that
employees and service providers will be given access to the minimum amount of records/data
required to fulfill the duties of their position. User access will be reviewed every 6 months to
ensure access is current and accurate.



Page 118 of 160

Sensitive, personal, and confidential records will be stored in secure areas. All records will be
managed and preserved to remain authentic, trustworthy, complete, and accessible throughout
their lifecycle regardless of location, media, or format. Records will be protected from
unauthorized disclosure, modification, removal, or destruction at all times.

Records that are no longer required to be stored on-site at School District #62 (Sooke)
premises will be stored offsite at a secure and bonded storage facility where they will be
protected against theft, water damage, fire damage, and earthquake damage. Accurate records
listings will be maintained for all records stored offsite to assist with the identification and timely
retrieval of records should they be required by School District #62 (Sooke). The Records Officer
(if one has been formally appointed) or designate must approve all offsite records transfers and
records retrievals.

When employees access and remove physical records currently being stored in semi-active
storage areas at a designated workplace, they must follow a pre-defined logging system that is
administered by the office of the primary responsibility for the records as determined by School
District #62 (Sooke) Records Classification and Retention Schedule.

1.7 Remote Access and Records Transfer

When working remotely School District #62 (Sooke) employees and third-party service
providers will ensure the protection and security of all records. Whenever possible physical
records should not be removed from the worksite. Any exceptions to this must be pre-approved
by the employees’/service provider’s manager or administrator. A record documenting the
approval and the records involved must be kept.

School District #62 (Sooke) acknowledges the need to disclose or transfer student records to
schools both within and external to the district. At all times these transfers/disclosures must be
made with the strictest of security measures to ensure the records maintain their integrity and
our requirements to protect privacy are not impaired. Measures to safeguard records from risks
such as unauthorized collection, use, disclosure, access, and destruction are imperative in
maintaining the integrity of records when offsite or in transit.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.8 Version Control and Naming Conventions

To ensure the correct version of an electronic document is being used and managed
appropriately, version control and naming conventions are required and will be administered in
compliance with the Records Classification and Retention Schedule.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.9 Executive Records

Executive records are the administrative and operational records (in all formats) of the offices of
the Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent, Associate Superintendent, Secretary-Treasurer,
Executive Director of Human Resources, Executive Director of Digital Solutions, and the
Trustees of the Board of Education. These records often document the development,
implementation, operation, and evaluation of School District #62 (Sooke) policies, programs,
and services. Such records are unique primary source documents and will be retained.




Page 119 of 160

A specialized retention schedule is required that governs the lifecycle of Executive records from
inception to final disposition. This special Executive schedule takes precedence over all other
retention periods in the Records Classification and Retention Schedule for this class of records.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.10 Vital Records

Vital records will be securely protected so that re-establishing the legal, financial, and functional
responsibilities of School District #62 (Sooke) is achieved quickly after a catastrophic event. The
identification and management of vital records is included in the Business Continuity Plan. Due
to their significance, paper vital records should not be stored onsite but rather offsite storage
should be used using a provincially recognized records storage service provider. In addition, a
secure electronic offsite backup of these records must be kept.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.11 Archival Records

Records that meet the criteria of archival will be those that both document the activities,
decisions, and responsibilities of School District #62 (Sooke) and contribute to an
understanding of the history and culture of the organization. Records that meet archival
requirements will be appraised by their information content and the context of their creation
which should be reflected in the Records Classification and Retention Schedule. Archival records
will provide the best evidence of the activities and responsibilities of School District #62
(Sooke), and/or have significant intrinsic value.

1.12 Digitization of Records

School District #62 (Sooke) is committed to storing records in their digital format whenever
possible. Digitization replaces paper records with digital copies to provide online access or
provides a digitized copy destined for digital archives. The digitization of records will include
planning, assessing, preparing, digitizing, compiling metadata, conducting quality assurance
mechanisms, and storing and managing the digitized records.

1.13 Managing Email

Email is the most common form of written communication when conducting business and often
represents administrative, operational, legal, evidentiary, archival, or historical value. Email
meets the formal definition of a record and is equally subject to the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act (FIPPA). All records present significant business risk and expense
if stored beyond their retention period and must be managed in accordance with the Records
Classification and Retention Schedule.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.14 Legal Requests for Records

Records in the custody and/or control of School District #62 (Sooke) may be subject to legal
requests from time to time including document discoveries and requests made under the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Once a legal request has been received it
is essential that all responsive records eligible for final disposition and destruction that have
reached the final stage of their respective lifecycle (e.g., when the scheduled active and semi-




Page 120 of 160

active retention periods have expired) do not proceed. All records must be held by School
District #62 (Sooke) until all legal proceedings have been completed.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

1.15 Office of Primary Responsibility

The Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) is the office within School District #62 (Sooke) that
is responsible for the business function related to the records. The OPR retains the official
records to meet operational, financial, legal, audit, and other requirements.

School District #62 (Sooke) identifies the OPR for all records in our custody and control within
the Records Classification and Retention Schedule.

Non-OPR departments are not required to maintain the records of OPR departments which
supports the reduction and elimination of duplicate copies of records throughout School District
#62 (Sooke). If you are ever unsure which department is the OPR for a particular record,
please review the Records Classification and Retention Schedule or contact the Records Officer
(if one has been formally appointed).

1.16 Correction to Personal Information

Under Section 29 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, an individual
whose information is in a public body’s custody or control who believes there is an error or
omission in their personal information can request the Head (or designate) of the public
body to correct the information when the individual is unable to correct the information
themselves.

School District #62 (Sooke) is therefore required to correct or annotate personal information
in its custody or control when it receives notification of a correction or annotation of personal
information (once identity is verified and correction request is validated). School District #62
(Sooke) is also required to correct or annotate personal information in its custody or control
when it receives notification of a correction or annotation of personal information from
another public body.

This regulation is accompanied by a procedure.

Definitions
Active records: are records in constant use that need to be retained in the office close to
users.

Administrative records: are records which are common to all organizations. They support
functions such as the management of facilities, property, material, finance, personnel, and
information systems, as well as committee activities, agreement development, contract
management, information services, and legal matters.

Archival records: are records used to administer, support, or document the delivery of SD62
programs, carry out operations, make decisions or account for District activities, and require
indefinite preservation.



Page 121 of 160

Full Retention: refers to the requirement to retain records permanently once they have
reached their final disposition for historical or archival purpose.

Inactive Records: are records that are no longer required for ongoing District business. These
are records that are ready for final disposition; in other words, records for which the scheduled
active and semi-active retention periods have lapsed.

Office of Primary Responsibility: is the business area that creates or receives and files
original, official records relating to its particular function or activity within the District. The
department is responsible for defining and following the retention and disposal schedule
established for its records.

Official District Records: are all records created or received by District employees and third-
party service providers in the course of their duties on behalf of the District and retained to
meet business, legal, financial, legislative, and other needs. Official District records may be in
the form of paper, non-paper-based media such as microfilm, audio or video tapes and
electronic media such as email, Word documents, spreadsheets and presentations documents,
digital images of paper or microfilm, database, web sites, portals, and social media tools.

Operational records: are records which are unique to SD62. They support its operations and
services in carrying out the functions for which it is responsible according to statute, mandate,
or policy.

Personal Information: means recorded information about an identifiable individual.

Personal Information Bank: is a collection of personal information this is organized or
retrievable that may be retrieved using an individual identifier such as name, student or
employee number, symbol, or another identifier assigned to an individual.

Records schedule: is a prescribed timetable that governs the life cycle of a file from creation,
through active use within an office, retention in off-site storage during its semi-active period, to
final disposition when it becomes inactive.

Retention and disposal schedule: defines specific time period for keeping records in the
office (active phase), for maintaining records in storage (the semi-active phase), and
determining their final disposition) destruction or indefinite archival preservation.

Retention period: the length of time a file is retained, as governed by the records schedule.

Selective Retention: refers to the process of determining records that should or should not
be retained once they have reached their final disposition for historical or archival purpose.

Semi-Active records: are records no loner used constantly, but are required for reference,
legal, audit or other purposes. Semi-active records may be transferred to on or off-site secured
storage to free-up limited and expensive office space.

Superseded or Obsolete: identifies records for which retention is dependent upon the
occurrence of some event or action. Superseded or obsolete is used to allow records to be
retained for a flexible period, until they are no longer useful for reference or informational
purposes.

Transitory records: are records of temporary usefulness that are needed only to complete a
routine action or prepare a subsequent record (e.g., a new version). Transitory records are not



Page 122 of 160

needed to meet legal, policy, or financial obligations, not needed for operations, program
delivery or operations, and not needed to account for SD62 actions or decisions.

Vital records: are records considered essential to SD62’s continuing or resuming its operations
in the event of a disaster. A record is vital when it would be required to resume or continue
District business, support SD62’s legal or financial position or is made vital by regulation or
statute.



Page 123 of 160

POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION
School District #62 (Sooke})

April 30, 2024

Draft revised Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and Equivalency” are scheduled
for adoption.

RECOMMENDATION
Given that the required period for Notice of Motion has been served, that the Board of

Education of School District 62 (Sooke) ADOPT draft revised Policy and Regulations C-
211 “Challenge and Equivalency”.



Page 124 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No. C-211

CHALLENGE & EQUIVALENCY Effective: Mar. 11/97

Revised: Mar. 14/11

Reviewed: Mar. 5/24; Mar. 12/24;
Apr. 30/24

SCHOOL BOARD POLICY

The Sooke School District 62 recognizes that students may earn credits toward graduation in a:variety
of ways. Learning is a life-long activity and occurs in a variety of ways, some of which take place
outside of British Columbia or outside of the reqular secondary school program,

All Sooke School District 62 students enrolled are entitled to undertake a. free challenge and/or
equivalency process to assess their prior learning for Ministry-developed graduation program courses,
as well as the Board Authorized (BAA) course taught in the district that school year. . Schools will grant
credit towards graduation for learning that has been assessed and matches or. exceeds provincial
standards.

Crediting prior learning creates flexibility and greater opportunities for students to achieve their goals. The
process of assessing prior leaming for credit should be rigorous but not onerous, maintaining the integrity
of the learning standards in the curricufum, and the standards of a quality education.

Challenge is the process whereby students receive credit for a provincially or Board Approved Grade 10,
11 or 12 course, offered within a district, through an assessment process of the relevant knowledge and
skilis they have gained elsewhere, but which are formally undocumented.

Equivalency is the process of gaining credit for a Grade 10, 11 or 12 provincially or Board Approved
course, approvedHn-the scheool-distriet: if supporting documentation shows that a student has achieved the
course learning outcomes at another institution or in ancther education jurisdiction.

Extemnal Credit - All students enrolled are entitled to receive credit if they have earned a. Ministry-
approved credential. The Ministry of Education and Child Care has sole authority to review.and approve
external credentials and assessments. The list is published in the Mlnlstrys online. Course Registry.

Post-Secondary Credit - Students are entitied to earn "dual credit" if they earn credit that leads to a
post-secondary credential from a post-secondary institution which is a member of the British Columbia
Transfer System. Applicable post-secondary level courses count towards the required number of Grade
12 level credits needed to satisfy graduation requirements.



Page 125 of 160

Authority

» See Ministerial Order 302/04, the Graduation Program Order (PDF)

« BC Public Schooi Policy 2018, the Earning Credit through Equivalency, Challenge
External Credentials, Post Secondary Credit and Independent Studies Credit



Page 126 of 160

School District #62 (Sooke)

No.: C-211

CHALLENGE & EQUIVALENCY Effective: Mar. 11/97

Revised: Mar. 14/11

Reviewed: Mar. 5/24; Mar. 12/24;
Apr. 30/24

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

Student Eligibility

2:  Students in any grade are eligible to apply for challenge, e equivalency, external or post-secondary
credit in Grade 10, 11 or 12 courses witheut free of charge.

3:  Only students who have not completed a course through previous enrollment should be eligible for
challenge. Challenge is not intended as a way for students to improve their course marks. In most
cases, a student should be permitted only one opportunity to challenge a specific course.

Course Eligibility

+  Challenge or equivalency is available for Grade 10, 11 and 12 BC Ministry developed courses or BAA-

Authorltv Authonzed Courses Beard—Appreveel—Geuﬁes offered within the district. Equivaleney-is

A Provir deve ses: Students may challenge another

dlstncl:'s Board Approved Courses only if the Board has approved the course in this district. There is
no limit to the number of credits that may be awarded through challenge.

P res for Challenge (Un men Demonstra Prior Learnin

School Principals/Vice-Principals and counselfors should ensure equity of access and opportunities for all
students towards a challenge. Facilitation and adjudication of challenge will be school based. Schools must
document the challenge assessment delivered-to-each-student, including the *SD #62 Course Challenge

Form' a-pre-chalienge equivaleney-review-, and-the d Documentation must be made available to Ministry

auditors if requested.

Students should be able to demonstrate their readiness to challenge a course based on factors such
as a recommendation from a previous teacher, or from evidence that relevant learning has been
acquired outside the regular classroom setting. The demonstration should not be an onerous process.
School staff, in consultation with students and parents, should make the decision about readiness.



Page 127 of 160
2

A. All criteria below must be met before a student is eligible to challenge a course; Students-sheuld

= - x

1. The course is offered in the Scoke School District.
2. This is the first time the student has challenged this course.

3. A studentfcounsellor or student/PVP meeting at the school of record has taken place to
identify the potential benefits and liabilities of the challenge request.

4. The student has demonstrated sufficient evidence to suggest they could successfully challenge
the course.

5. The student recognizes that the full course is challenged for credit.

6. The student is prepared to demonstrate mastery of the required leaming standards for the
course,

7. The student is ready to challenge because of:
i} independent learning in a related area, or

fi) prior learming from another educational jurisdiction or prior experiential learning

8. Student has not completed the course to be challenged by previous enroiment.




Page 128 of 160

Challenge Process
1. Requests may be submitted throughout the school year.

2.  Adesignated counsellor/advisor or appropriate staff will present a student's case on appropriateness

of course challenge to the Scheel-Based Feam-er-approprate-staff Prindpal/Vice-Principal.
3. FheScheolBased-Team-er-appreprate-staff-Counselors and Principal/Vice-Principal will consider the

following points:

» student's background in the subject area.
» whether the student is likely to be able to demonstrate proficiency with the course learning

standards. learning-eutcomes:



Page 129 of 160
4

» readiness for subsequent courses in the subject area.
o factors surrounding the best educational interests of the student.

After completion and sign off on the ‘SD #62 Course Challenge Form’ appreval-from-the ScheelBased
, the student will he referred to an assessor with appropriate knowledge
and - understanding of Ihe tearning standards for the course being challenged. department

representative:

The challenge process must assess students on the Content and Curricular Competencies of
courses, Exampies of assessment strategies that could be used in a challenge process include such
things as hands-on demonstrations, oral performances, interviews, written examinations, or
presentations of a collection of work. Challenge processes should be substantive, but not onerous.

b ot of-criterion Fef  strategies,

6. The assessor departmentrepresentative will decide on the success of the challenge, award a grade
and percentage and forward the challenge results to the counsellor for posting and documenting in the
student file.

7.

The student will be notified of the decision as soon as possible.

Points to Remember

1.

2.

Students do not have to be enrolled in Grade 10, 11 or 12 to challenge a Grade 10, 11 or 12 course.

Only students who have not successfully completed the course through previous enrollment should
be eligible for challenge.

If a student successfully challenges a Grade 12 course, credit for a Grade 11 course in the same
subject can be granted only if the student demonstrates that he or she has achieved the learning
outcomes of the Grade 11 course.

Students may challenge only provincially approved courses or courses approved by the Board.

To succeed in a challenge, a student must obtain at least a-E~grade-er 50 percent.



Page 130 of 160

sy
DAY
SO0KER 2

SD 62 Course Challenge Form

Procedures:

v Pre-chalienge Prior Learning Review

v Assesses course learning standards (Big Ideas, Curricular Competencies and Content)

v Substantive, but not onerous

v Letter Grade and % must be reported

v Process must be docurnented and available for audit
Note - Internationai students may not challenge the 7 courses required to be taught by a BC teacher (see
internagtional Student Graduation Credit Poficy)

STUDENT NAME:
PEN:
COURSE NAME: CODE:

PRE-CHALLENGE PRIOR LEARNING REVIEW (one or more of below)

0 Teacher recommendation (Name: )
0 Evidence of prior learning
OO0 Parent/student discussion

PVP Signature

ASSESSMENT STRATEGIES {one or more of the below)

O Hands-on Demonstration

O Oral Performance

0 Interview

O Exam

O Portfolio of Work
TEACHER NAME:

DATE OF CHALLENGE:

COMMENTS:

CREDITS ASSIGNED:
% EARNED:
TEACHER SIGNATURE:




Page 131 of 160

Equivalency Guidelines

The Ministry of Education and Child Care may make determinations about equivalency that apply to all
students. Such determinations will be listed in the Handbook of Procedures for the Graduation

Program or online Course Reqistry.

Procedures for Equivalency

1,

For the purpose of determining equivalency, comparison of courses may be based on factors such
as the following:

Comparison of learning standards.

Comparison of general subject matter,

Comparison of depth or breadth of coverage of subject matter.
Comparison of assessment methods, instruments, and standards.

ap oo

To be deemed equivalent, sufficient content should have been covered to enable the student to be
successful in further learning in the content area.

In order to receive credits through equivalency, students must provide the appropriate
documentation as proof of successful completion of the course.

For reporting and transcript purposes, schools should assign a letter grade and percentage to all
credits awarded through equivalency. If the student's documents show only a letter grade or level,
schools may choose to assign a percentage, based on the mid-point of the matching British
Columbia letter grade range. Schools may use "Transfer Standing (PDF)" (TS) if it is not possible
to determine a letter grade and a percentage from the documentation.

Requests may be submitted throughout the school year.




Page 132 of 160

Fee-paying International students

Fee-paying Intemational students whose educational program was not instructed in either French or
English for at ieast two years prior to arriving in British Columbia must earn credits through instruction
from a British Columbia-certified teacher (not through Equivalency review or Challenge process) for
the following courses.

a) A Language Arts course at the Grade 11 level,

b) English First Peoples 12 or English Studies 12,

¢) A Science course at the Grade 11 or 12 level,

d) A Mathematics course at the Grade 11 or 12 level,

e) A Social Studies course at the Grade 11 or 12 level, and
f) Career-Life Education.

Fee-paying International students must earn graduation credit in Career-Life Connections under
supervision of a board of education or an independent school authority.

Authority

» See Ministerial Order 302/04, the Graduation Program Order (PDF)

« BC Public School Policy 2018, the Earning Credit through Equivalency, Challenge, External
Credentials, Post Secondary Credit and Independent Studies Credit

« International Student Graduation Credit hitps://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-
training/k-12/administration/legislation-policy/public-schools/international-student-graduation-

credit




Page 133 of 160
President: Jennifer Anderson ~ Ip62@bctf.ca
1*" Vice-President: Rita Zeni ~ Ix62vp@bcif.ca
2" Vice-President: Christina Kempenaar ~ 1x62vp2@bctf.ca
SOOke Office Manager: Taryn Treloar ~ sooketeachers@shaw.ca
Teachers' Address: 107-689 Hoffman Ave, Victoria, BC, V9B 4X1
Association | Phone: (250) 474-5555 ~ Website: www.Sooketeachers.org

ol

April 16, 2024

Paul Block, Superintendent
School District No. 62 (Sooke)
3143 Jacklin Road

Victoria, BC, V9B 5R1

Dear Mr. Block,

The STA Executive has reviewed the draft revised Policy and Regulations C-211 “Challenge and
Equivalency.” We have one suggestion for clarification in the Regulations:

There are two sections that are essentially descriptions of student eligibility in the document.
In the first section, it's made known that the student should not have been previously enrolled
in the course. In the second, which says: "A. All criteria below must be met before a student is
eligible to challenge a course:" there is no mention of disallowing by previous enrolment, at
least as far as the definition of Challenge is described. We are concerned that the document
lacks clarity in that section and someone could skip to the criteria section and allow a student
to challenge a course who ought not be permitted.

Thank you for your consideration of this feedback.

Sincerely,

Rita Zeni,

Acting President
Sooke Teachers’ Association



Page 134 of 160

SOOKE
SCHOOLS
P Shaping Temorrow Today

Board Info Note
Public Board Meeting
April 30, 2024
Agenda Item: 9.1 - 3 Year Rolling School Calendar

Background

The Sooke School District, along with neighbouring districts in Saanich and Victoria, currently plan school
calendars on a 3-year cycle, allowing for future planning and organization to occur. The upcoming school
year of 2024/25 marks the final year in this cycle. Staff propose that we plan now for the 2025/26 and
2026/27 school years, allowing for the projection of a rolling 3-year school calendar.

Next Steps

The 3 South Island districts have met to, where possible, align school calendars for the purpose of creating a

rolling 3-year school calendar. The board package includes a chart showing proposed dates for the 3 District’s

Non-Instructional Days. Also included are full school calendars for this year and next (already confirmed and
passed) as well as draft calendars for the 2025/26 and 2026/27 school years.

Next steps involve consultation with all partner groups and collecting feedback from the community during
the Notice of Motion 30-day period. Gathered information will be shared at the June Ed Policy meeting with
the intention of having the rolling 3-year school calendar passed at the June 30" Board Meeting.

Recommended Motion

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft a School Year Calendar

for 2025-26 and 2026-27.

Prepared by: Monica Braniff, Deputy Superintendent




Page 135 of 160

SD 62 (SOOKE)
2023/2024 CALENDAR

s om 1w [T s
1 2 | 3 4 | s

o 71 8 [ 9 [ 10 1| 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 | 20 21 | 22 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 25 | 26

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY

"0 Instructional @ Mon-Instructional Vacation Period 0 Statutory Holiday




SD62 (SOOKE)
2024/2025 CALENDAR

Page 136 of 160

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Instructional -Non—lnstructional
Mational Day for Truth and Reconciliation “ Stat Holiday

Vacation




Page 137 of 160

SD62 (SOOKE)
2025/2026 DRAFT CALENDAR

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30/31

SEPTEMBER

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY

. Instructional - Non-Instructional Wacation

National Day for Truth and Reconciliation “ Stat Holiday
AT,
i‘ Ministry of
BERITISH Educarion amd
COLUMBLA Child Care




Page 138 of 160

SD62 (SOOKE)
2026/2027 DRAFT CALENDAR

OCTOBER

JANUARY FEBRUARY

- Instructional - MNeon-Instructional Wacation

Mational Day for Truth and Reconciliation “ Stat Holiday
AT,

Mlinisory of
BETTISE “elucarion and
- Id Care

E
O LIAMBLA Chil



SD 62 Non Instructional Days

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027
SEPT SD62 Mon 18 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21
OCT SD62 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23
NOV SD62 Fri 24 Fri 22 Fri21 Fri 27
FEB SD62 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri12
APR SD62 Fri 19 Fri11 Mon 20 Mon 19
MAY SD62 Fril7 Mon 12 Fri 15 Fri21
Comparison of Non-Instructional Days
2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026 2026/2027
SEPT SD62 Mon 18 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21
SD61 Fri22 Mon 23 Mon 22 Mon 21
SD63 Fri 22 Mon 23 Mon 22 Fri 25
OCT SD62 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23
SD61 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23
SD63 Fri 20 Fri 25 Fri 24 Fri 23
NOV SD62 Fri 24 Fri 22 Fri 21 Fri 27
SD61 Mon 20 Fri22 Fri 21 Fri27
SD63 Mon 20 Mon 18 Fri 21 Fri27
FEB SD62 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri12
SD61 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12
SD63 Fri 16 Fri 14 Fri 13 Fri 12
APR SD62 Fri 19 Fri11 Mon 20 Mon 19
SD61 N/A N/A N/A N/A
SD63 Mon 22 Fri11 Mon 20 Mon 19
MAY SD62 Fri 17 Mon 12 Fri 15 Fri 21
SD61 Fril7 Fri 16 Fri 15 Fri21
SD63 Fri 17 Fri 16 Fri 15 Fri 21

Page 139 of 160



NATSA'MAHT

\/

sooxeé 9 INDIGENOUS

agﬂn?TookoSﬂow Today EDUCATION

Report to the Board of Education, Sooke School District
RE: NA’TSA’MAHT Education Council Meeting at Lekwungen Room,
SD62 School Board Office, April 24, 2024

Attendance:
LAND BASED NATIONS
Pacheedaht Nation Sc’ianew Nation T'Sou-Ke Nation
v Amanda Hamilton | v Elder Henry Chipps v Michelle Thut
Patrice Dubnick Stacey Charles ¥ Tara Jensen

¥" Miranda Metge
URBAN INDIGENOUS

Hulitan Family and Community Services M'akola Group of Societies
v Julia Clifton Joanne Kakewash
Kendra Gage Brandon Labbey-Krejci
Alita Tocher
METIS NATION
Island Métis Family and Community Services Society Métis Nation of Greater Victoria
¥ Elena Robinson ¥ Jo-Ina Young

Janelle McGinley
Virginia Treadwell
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP
Camosun College Royal Roads University University of Victoria YMCA-YWCA
Emory Wells Russell Johnston Diane Sam v" Derek Gent
sD62
NA'TSA'MAHT Indigenous Education Executive/BOE Employee Groups
¥ Jon Carr, Principal v Paul Block, Superintendent v Ceilidh Deichmann, PVP
Association
v Katie Gaetz, Curriculum v Russ Chipps, School Trustee Meagan, MacPherson, STA
Coordinator Teacher
Lorraine Velie, Administrative Assistant ~ Sue Grundy, Executive Operations Manager Mike Huck, PVP Association
¥v" Marlys Denny, Vice Principal Trish McNabb, CUPE 459
GUEST
Chelsea Richardson, Indigenous Education Local Specialist Association
Tabitha Reed, Island Métis Family and Community Services Society, Practicum student

Note: this meeting had 2 different parts

Part 1 - 1:00 to 2:00 All Council Members & Stakeholders

Territory Acknowledgement and Words of Wisdom -Elder Henry Chipps
Review Meeting Minutes - Feb 28, 2024

Review Agenda

Intreduction Circle & Community Sharing

W

School District 62 (Sooke)

3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria, BC V@B 5R1 | 250 474 9¢




Page 141 of 160

5. District Office Update

5.1. Introducing Bill 40 - Paul Block, Superintendent - Attachment #1
e Bill 40 Introduced into School Act

e Three Parts:
o First Nation School of Choice
o Local Education Agreements
o Indigenous Education Councils (IEC)

Ministerial ordors in relation to
Indigonous education councils

B7.004 (1) Subject 1o this section, the minister may specify, by order, any of the
following in relation to an Indigenous education council:
(a) establishment and composition of a council;
(b} the process to appoint council members;
(€} voung nights of council members;
(d) terms of reference in relation t a couneil:
(¢} rules governing the conduct of the business of o council.
(2) The following mdividuals may not be members with voling rights of an
Indigenous education council:
(i) atrustee;
(b) a board employee.
(3) The minister may iy in an onder under subsection (1) that dilferem
members of an Indigenous education council may have different voting rights
in respeet of different matters,

6. Guests:
6.1. Indigenous Education Local Specialist Association - Co-Chairs Chelsea Richardson & Katie Gaetz
e Chelsea Richardson (NET @ John Stubbs Memorial School, NET & ESD @ Dunsmuir Middle School)

crichardson@sd62.be.ca & Katie Gaetz (NIE Curriculum Coordinator, Teacher) kgaetz@sd62.be.ca
e  Whatis the NIE LSA?
o The NA'TSA’MAHT Indigenous Education Local Specialist Association is a group Sooke
teachers who are passionate about Indigenous Education through professional

development.
o Wedirectly work with the Sooke Teacher’s Association to facilitate and consult on
Indigenous workshops for the three locally developed pro-d days
e Co-Facilitate with partner groups that would provide the learning topic/subject and collaborate
with the LSA. This could also include hosting the learning space
o Suggesting workshops, speakers and/or materials that you find important for teachers to
learn from to bring to their students
o Providing a central space, indoors or outdoors, for teachers to experience Indigenous
focused workshops.
e  Examples of Previous Workshops
o Salmon Run at Goldstream Provincial Park
Cedar Harvesting on the Land
Cedar Prepping/Learning
Indigenous Foods with Qwustenuxun, Cowichan Tribes
SNIDZEL {Tod Inlet) Invasive Species Plant Removal
Principles of Learning on the Land., Goldstream Provincial Park & Camp Bernard
All Indigenous focused pro-d workshops are co-facilitated by local Elders and Knowledge
Keepers.
6.2. SD62 Academies - District Principal, Wayne Kelly - Tabled

O 0O 0O © ©



Page 142 of 160

7. Na'tsa’maht indigenous Education Department
7.1. Indigenous Valedictorian at Secondary School
o Selection has been completed
+  Schools picked Valedictorian using criteria and Elder cansultation

7.2. Special Events & Community Dinners
s  Staff & Student Events;

o Gr 12 SouthIsland Land Based Day
*  May 8th - Camp Thunderbird YMCA
o Indigenous Graduation
* May 27th - Royal Bay Secondary School - Doors open at 4:00
o tand-based Learning: Beecher Bay Ocean Resources:
»  April 11th Hans Helgesen Elementary
*  May 2™ Royal Bay Secondary
7.3. Equity in Action Survey Results
»  Equity in Action Survey occurred in March
s Summary of Results were shared

Part 2 - 2:00 - 3:00 Local First Nation Rightsholders - Bill 40 Discussion
»  First Nations Rightsholders invited SD62 staff into discussion
+  Discussion on the Bill 40:
o Composition of IEC
o Funding of IEC
o Structure of Meetings for IEC (Cycle, Location, Time, Topics - Agenda & Minutes, Election of
Chair, etc.)
o  First Nation Rightsholders will meet again in May to discuss further once more information
is provided by the Ministry of Education & Child Care and FNESC

Next Meeting: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 12:30 - 3:00
Location: $D62 School Board Office, Lelowungen Room
Lunch will be served at 12:30 - 1:00

Woe are honoured o be meeting on the traditionat territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation; and
acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with directly in our schools: Sc'ianew Nation, Coast Salish; T'Sou-ke Nation, Coast Salish;
the West Coast Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (Words gifted by the Mations SD62 works with.)



Page 143 of 160

Attachment #1
Government Bill

Fourth Session, Forty-second Parliament
2 Charles III, 2023
Legislative Assembly of British Columbia

BILL 40

SCHOOL AMENDMENT ACT, 2023

Honourable Rachna Singh
Minister of Education and Child Care




Page 144 of 160

Explanatory Notes

CLAUSE 1: [School Act, section 1] specifies that the shishalh Nation and the Westbank
First Nation are included in the definition of first nation.

CLAUSE 2: I8chool Act, section 74,2}

« allows a first nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation fo
designate a school for certain persons who hive on the first nation,
treaty first nation or Nisga’a Nation io attend;

» provides the process for a first nation, a treaty first nation or the
Nisga’a Nation to make a designation and sets out that a designation
continues unless it is revoked by the first aation, the treaty first nation
or the Nisga’a Nation;

* provides certainty that a person who is subject to a designation remains
entitled to enrol in an educational program at a school as otherwise set
out in the Act.



Page 145 of 160

MINISTER OF EDUCATION AND CHILD CARE

BILL 40 — 2023

SCHOOL AMENDMENT ACT, 2023

HIS MAJESTY, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative Assembly of the
Province of British Columbia, enacts as follows:

1 Section 1 (1) of the School Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, ¢. 412, is amended by repealing the
definition of “first nation” gnd substituting the following:

“first nation” means any of the following:

(a) a band as defined under the Indian Aci (Canada), including a
participating First Nation, located in British Columbia;

(b) the shishalh Nation as defined in the shishalh Nation Self-Government
Act (Canada);

(¢) the Westbank First Nation as defined in the agreement approved under
the Westbank First Nation Self-Government Act (Canada); .

2 The following section is added:

First nation schools of choice
74.2 (1) In this section:

“designated school” means a school designated by a first nation, a treaty first
nation or the Nisga’a Nation under subsection (2);
“eligible first nation person” means a person

(a) who may enrol, under this Act, in an educational program provided by a
board,

(b) who is a member of a first nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a
Nation,

(¢} who is ordinarily resident
(i) on areserve as defined in section 2 (1) of the Indian Act (Canada),
(ii) on treaty lands,
{iii) on Nisga’a Lands, or
(iv) on shishdlh lands as defined in section 2 (1) of the shishalh Nation
Self-Government Act {Canada), and



Page 146 of 160

BILL 40 —2023

CLAUSE 2: [School Act, section 74.2 — continued]



Page 147 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

(d) for whom the government of Canada pl'OVidﬂS funding in relation to the
g
person’s educational progranis and ser ViCCS;

“specialty academy” has the same meaning as in section 82.1.

(2) Despite sections 2, 74.1 (1), (2), {6) and (6.1) and 75 (4), if a first nation, a
treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation designates, in accordance with
subsection (3), a school in the school district of the board, the eligible first
nation persons who meet the following residency requirements are entitled to
attend the designated school in the next school year:

{a) the cligible first nation persons who are ordinarily resident of the first
nation and are ordinarily resident or boarded in the school district;

(b} the eligible first nation persons who are ordinarily resident on the treaty
lands of the treaty first nation and are ordinarily resident or boarded in
the school district;

(c) the eligible first nation persons who are ordinarily resident on Nisga’a
Lands and are ordinarily resident or boarded in the school district.

(3) A designation under subsection (2) must be made in writing to the board of
the school district of the school

(a) by the date established under section 74.1 (4) (a), or

{b) if the board establishes different dates for different grades, education
programs, schools or children under section 74.1 (4) (b), by the earliest
of those dates.

(4) A designation under subsection (2) continues for each subsequent school year
unless the first nation, the treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation revokes the
designation.

(5) Despite subsection (2), if a board offers a specialty academy at a designated
school, an eligible first nation person may only be curolled in the specialty
academy in the manner specified by the board for general enrolment in the
specialty academy.

(6) For certainty, an eligible first nation person who is entitled to atiend a
designated school remains entitled to emrol in an educational program in
accordance with sections 2, 74.1 (1), (2), (6) and (6.1) and 75 (4) provided by
the board of a school district.



Page 148 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

CLAUSE 3: [School Act, sections 86.1 to 86.6]

* allows the minister to specify a model local education agreement by
regulation;

+ allows a first nation, treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation to require
a maodel agreement to apply, in certain circumstances, to the first
nation, the treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation and a board,;

+ if a first nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation requires the
model agreement to apply, then the model agreement becomes a
contract between the first nation, the treaty first nation or the Nisga’a
Nation and the board.



Page 149 of 160

BILL 40 —2023

3 The following sections are added:

Model local education agreement
86.1 (1) In this section and sections 86.2 to 86.6;
“eligible first nation person” means a person

{a} who may enrol, under this Act, in an educational program provided by a
board,

() who is a member of a first nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a
Nation, and

(¢) for whom the government of Canada provides funding in relation to the
person’s educational programs and services;

“model agreement” means a model local education agreement specified by
regulation under subsection (2).

(2) The minister may specity, by regulation, any of the following;

{a) a model local education agreement as a model agreement that includes
terms and conditions related to

(i) the purchase of educational programs and services by a first
nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation from a board,

(ii) 1mproving first nation, treaty first nation and Nisga’a Nation
student achievement, and

(iii) developing refationships between a first nation, a treaty first nation
or the Nisga’a Nation and a board;

(b) requirements in relation to the form and manner for a first nation, a treaty
first nation or the Nisga’a Nation to require a model agreement to apply
to the first nation, the treaty first nation ot the Nisga’a Nation and a
board;

(¢) information that must be included by the first nation, the treaty first
nation or the Nisga’a Nation in the model agreement.

(3) The term of a model agreement starts on July I of the year specified in the
model agreement.

First nation and board model agreement as contract

86.2 (1) Subject to section 86.5, a first nation may, by delivering written notice to the

minister and a board, require a model agreement to apply to the first nation
and the board.

(2) If a first nation requires a model agreement to apply to the first nation and a
board in accordance with subsection (1) and any regulation under
section 86.1 (2) (b), the model agreement is deemed 1o be a contract between
the first nation and the board as parties and the terms and conditions of the
model agreement apply as if it was a contract entered into by the parties.



Page 150 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

CLAUSE 3:  [School Act, sections 86.1 to 86.6 — continued]



Page 151 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

Treaty first nation and board model agreement as contract

86.3 (1) Subject to section 86.5, a treaty first nation may, by delivering written notice
to the minister and a board, require a mode! agreement to apply to the treaty
first nation and the board.

(2) If a treaty first nation requires a model agreement to apply to the treaty first
nation and a board in accordance with subsection (1) and any regulation under
section 86.1 (2) (b), the model agreement is deemed to be a contract between
the treaty first nation and the board as parties and the terms and conditions of
the model agreement apply as if it was a contract entered into by the parties.

Nisga'a Nation and board model agreement as contract

86.4 (1) Subject to section 86.5, the Nisga’a Nation may, by delivering written notice
to the minister and a board, require a model agreement (o apply to the Nisga’a
Nation and the board.

(2) If the Nisga’a Nation requires a model agreement to apply to the Nisga’a
Nation and a board in accordance with subsection (1) and any regulation under
section 86.1 (2) (b), the model agreement is deemed to be a contract between
the Nisga'a Nation and the board as parties and the terms and conditions of
the model agreement apply as if it was a contract entered into by the parties,

Conditions required for model agreement

86.5 A first nation, a treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation may only require a model
agreement to apply to the first nation, the treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation
and a board if

(a) an eligible first nation person of the first nation, the treaty first nation or
the Nisga’a Nation is enrolfed in or will reasonably be expected to enrol
in an educational program provided by the board, and

(b) no other agreement relating to the purchase of educational programs and
services with government of Canada funding is in effect between, as
applicable,

(i) the first nation and the board,
(ii) the treaty first nation and the board, or

(iii) the Nisga’a Nation and the board.

Amendments to model agreement

86.6 (1) If a model agreement is amended by ministerial regulation, the amended
mode} agreement does not apply to a contract that is in effect under
section 86.2, 86.3 or 86.4 on the date the amended model agreement comes
into force.



Page 152 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

CLAUSE 3: [School Act, sections 86,1 to 86.6 — continned]

CLAUSE 4:  [School Act, Division 2.01 of Part 6]

» requires that boards establish Indigenous education councils and sets
out the purpases of those councils;

* establishes that the minister may make orders related to how the
Indigenous education councils are established and how a council will
operate;

* limits voting rights for certain members of the Indigenous education
council;

» establishes that the Indigenous education council may make rules
related to certain matters if those rules are not inconsistent with the
Act, regulations or ministerial orders.



Page 153 of 160

BILIL 40 - 2023

(2) If a model agreement is amended by ninisterial regulation, the first nation,
the treaty first nation or the Nisga’a Nation must give at least 60 days’ written
notice to the minister and the board that the amended model agreement
applies.

(3) If a model agreement is amended by ministerial regulation and notice is
. " g
provided in accordance with subsection (2),
(a) the amended model agreement takes effect on the next July 1, and

(b) the term of the model agreement is amended and starts on the date that
the amended model agreement takes effect.

4 The following Division is added to Part 6;

Division 2.01 — Indigenous Education Councils

Purposes of Indigenous education councils

87.001 (1) Each board must establish and maintain an Indigenous education council, for
the following purposes:

(a) advising the board respecting any matter relating to the following:

(i) providing comprehensive and equitable educational programs and
services to Indigenous students;

(i1) improving Indigenous student achievement,

(ii1) integrating into learning environmeunts Indigenous world views
and perspectives, in particular those of the first nations, the treaty
first nations or the Nisga’a Nation in whose traditional territory
the board operates;

{(b) advising on grants provided under this Act in relation to Indigenous
students;

(c) approving plans, spending and reporting related to grants as set out in
section 87.002;

(d) advising the board in relation to the distinct languages, cultures,
customs, traditions, practices or history of the first nations, the treaty
first nations or the Nisga’a Nation in whose traditional territory the board
operates, through advice from the Indigenous education council
members representing those first nations, treaty first nations or the
Nisga’a Nation,

(2) For certainty, an Indigenous education council is not a committee of a board
vnder section 65 (2) (a) of this Act.



Page 154 of 160

BILL 40 ~ 2023

CLAUSE 4. [School Act, Division 2.01 of Part 6 — confinned}



Page 155 of 160

BILL 40 -20623

Approval of targeted grants —
plans, spending and reporting

87.0021f the minister provides a direction for a targeted grant under section 106.4 and the
targeted grant is related to Indigenous students, the Indigenous education council
must,

(a) before the grant is spent by the board, approve the board’s plan for the
grant and the board’s spending of the grant, and

{b) after the grant is spent, approve the board’s report, if any, on the grant’s
spending.
Minister may order board
to consult with Indigenous education councils

87.003 The minister may specify, by order, that a board must consult with the Indigenous
education council or specified members of the Indigenous education council on a
matter specified by the minister,

Ministerial orders in velation to
Indigenous education councils

87.004 (1) Subject to this section, the minister may specily, by order, any of the
following in relation to an Indigenous education council:

(a) establishment and composition of a couneil,;
(b) the process to appoint council members;
{c) voting rights of council members;
(d) terms of reference in relation to a council;
(e) rules governing the conduct of the business of a council.
(2) The following individuals may not be membets with voting rights of an
Indigenous education council:
(a) atrustee;
(b) aboard empioyee.
(3) The minister may specify in an order under subsection (1) that different

members of an Indigenous education council may have different voting rights
in respect of different matters.

Indigenous education councils
establish governance rules

87.005An Indigenous education council may make rules governing the following, but
may not make a rule if that rule is inconsistent with this Act, the regulations or the
orders of the minister:

(a) the process to appoint members of a council;
(b) the conduct of a council’s business;
(c) terms of reference in relation to a council.

6



Page 156 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

CLAUSE 5: [School Act, section 93] includes a former Indigenous education council
member for the purposes of the application of the Division.

CLAUSE 6.  [School Act, section 93] expands the list of people a board may choose to
indemnify to include Tndigenous education council members,

CLAUSE 7: [Sehool Act, section 166.4] applies secttons 86.1 to 86.6 for the purposes
of Part 8.1 — Francophone Education Authorities.

CLAUSE 8: [School Act, section 166.4] applies Diviston 2.01 of Part 6 for the purposes
of Part 8.1 — Francophone Education Authorities,



Page 157 of 160

BILL 40 — 2023

5

Section 93 is repealed and the following substiﬁtted:

Interpretation

93

In this Division, a reference to a trustee, ofticer, employee or member of an
Indigenous education council includes a former trustee, officer, employee or
member of an Indigenous education council.

Section 95 is amended

(a) in subsections (1), (2) (a) and (3) by adding “or a member of an Indigenous
education council ” ffer “a trustee, an officer or an employee of the board”,

(b) in subsection (1) (a) by adding “or a member of an Indigenous education
council” after “a trustee, officer or employee of the board”,

(c) in subsection (1) (a) by striking out “the trustee’s, officer’s or employee’s” and
substiruting “the trustee’s, officer’s, employee’s or member’s”,

(d) in subsection (2) (u) by adding “or the member’s council duties” after “the
performance of the trustee’s, officer’s or employee’s board duties”,

{e) in subsection (2) by striking out “on a trustee, officer or employee as a result of
the trustee’s, officer’s or employee’s conviction” and substituting “on a trustee,
officer, employee or member as a result of the trustee’s, officer’s, employee’s or
member’s conviction”,

(f) in subsection (3} by striking ont “the trustee, officer or employee” and
substituting “the trustee, officer, employee or member”, and

(g) by repealing subsection (3) (1) and substituting the following:

(a) against a trustee, officer, employee or member if the claim for damages
arises out of the gross negligence of the trustee, officer, employee or
member, or.

Section 166.4 is amended in subsection (2) by striking out “85.1 to 86” and
substituting “85.1 to 86.6”,

Section 166.4 is amended in subsection (2.1) by striking put “Division 2.1 of Part 6
applies” and substituting “Divisions 2,01 and 2.1 of Part 6 apply ™.



Page 158 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

CLAUSE9: [School Act, section I66.43] expands the list of people a francophone
education authority may choose to indemnify to include Indigenous
education council members,



Page 159 of 160

BILL 40 - 2023

9 Section 166.43 is amended

(a) in subsections (1} (a), (2) (a) and (4) by adding “or a member of an Indigenous
education council” gfter “a regional trustee, officer or employee of the
francophone education authority ”,

(b) in subsectiony (1) (a) (i), (2) (a) and (3) by striking out “the regional trustee’s,
officer’s or employee’s” and substituting “the regional trustee’s, officet’s,
employee’s or member’s”,

(¢} in subsection (4) by striking out “the regional trustee, officer or employee” and
substituting “the regional trustee, officer, employee or member”, ¢nd
(d) by repealing subsection (4) (a) and substituting the following:

(a) against a regional trustee, officer, employee or member if the claim for
damages arises out of the gross negligence of the regional trustee,
officer, employee or member, or.

Commencement

10 The provisions of this Act referred to in column 1 of the following table come into
force as set ont in column 2 of the table:

Item Column 1 Column 2
Provisions of Act Commencement
1  Anything not elsewhere The date of Royal Assent
covered by this table
2 Section 3 April 3¢, 2024
Section 7 April 30, 2024

King's Printer for British Columbia®
Victoria, 2023



Item 11.1 - Public Board Meeting

Page 160 of 160

SOOKE
SCHOOLS . .
School District 62 (Sooke)
Board of Education 90-Day Plan Work Plan Summary
Action May 2024 June 2024 July 2024
- Annual Plan Package: Adopt Vision, Mission, Values and Be-
- FESL targets liefs for the 2025-2029 Strategic Plan
Approve - Strategic plan targets
- Na'tsa’'maht Annual Report
Auditor engagement/plan Superintendent Growth Report
3rd Quarter Report Package: - District Operations Plan for 2024- - Approve Vision, Mission, Values
Review - Strategic Plan Q3 2025
- Review all Board Motions for the year
Municipal Partner Meetings (Board/ |- Host Retirement/Long Service Event. |- Strategic Plan Renewal - Vision,
Complete Council) - TBD Mission, Values and Beliefs
Board Annual Self-Assessment -
Workshop 2 - Values and Beliefs - Grad/Year End Ceremonies -
Strategic Plan Renewal (May 21) - Acknowledgement Letters to Partner
Groups
Engage - National Indigenous Peoples Day
(June 21)
- Host Retirement/Long-Service Event
(Jun 5)




	6.1 Correspondence (page )
	a. Email from Justine C, dated April 1, 2024, RE: Build Seamless Before & After School Childcare
	7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of April 16, 2024 – Christine Lervold (page )
	8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of April 9, 2024 – Cendra Beaton (page )
	6.1 Correspondence
	Email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King Elementary School
	43. MOVED Ebony Logins/Allison Watson
	That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the email from Vickie Heist, dated March 5, 2024, RE: PA System Usage at Ruth King Elementary School.
	CARRIED
	6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each
	Committee Report of
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
	2. COMMITTEE REPORT
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	4. BUSINESS

	COMMITTEE REPORT
	EDUCATION COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
	PUBLIC MEETING
	April 23, 2024 – 6:00 p.m.
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	Sheet1



